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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Earnings
EMERSON ELECTRIC CO. & SUBSIDIARIES

Three and six months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts; unaudited)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

March 31, March 31,
2021 2022 2021 2022

Net sales $ 4,431 4,791 8,592 9,264

Cost of sales 2,569 2,839 5,007 5,490

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,054 1,049 2,052 2,060

Gain on subordinated interest — — — (453)

Other deductions, net 33 40 155 91

Interest expense (net of interest income of $4, $4, $6, and $7, respectively) 38 52 78 90
Earnings before income taxes 737 811 1,300 1,986
Income taxes 169 136 280 416
Net earnings 568 675 1,020 1,570
Less: Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 7 1 14 —
Net earnings common stockholders $ 561 674 1,006 1,570
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.94 1.13 1.68 2.64
Diluted $ 0.93 1.13 1.67 2.63
Weighted average outstanding shares:
Basic 599.4 593.3 599.0 593.9
Diluted 602.8 596.5 602.3 597.3

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
EMERSON ELECTRIC CO. & SUBSIDIARIES

Three and six months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022
(Dollars in millions; unaudited)

Net earnings

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign currency translation

Pension and postretirement

Cash flow hedges

Total other comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income
Less: Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
Comprehensive income common stockholders

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Three Months Ended March 31,

Six Months Ended March 31,

2021 2022 2021 2022

$ 568 675 1,020 1,570
(21) (60) 168 (132)

27 18 54 36

1 6 32 10

7 (36) 254 (86)

575 639 1,274 1,484

6 — 13 (1)

$ 569 639 1,261 1,485




Consolidated Balance Sheets
EMERSON ELECTRIC CO. & SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars and shares in millions, except per share amounts; unaudited)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and equivalents
Receivables, less allowances of $116 and $114, respectively
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net
Other assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Other
Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Other liabilities

Equity

Common stock, $0.50 par value; authorized, 1,200.0 shares; issued, 953.4 shares; outstanding, 595.8 shares

and 593.9 shares, respectively
Additional paid-in-capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Cost of common stock in treasury, 357.6 shares and 359.5 shares, respectively

Common stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Sept 30, 2021 Mar 31, 2022
2,354 6,929
2,971 2,958
2,050 2,399
1,057 1,253
8,432 13,539
3,738 3,567
7,723 7,631
2,877 2,699
1,945 2,061

12,545 12,391
24,715 29,497
872 2,762
2,108 2,049
3,266 3,261
6,246 8,072
5,793 8,203
2,753 2,608
477 477
522 579
26,047 27,003
(872) (957)
(16,291) (16,527)
9,883 10,575
40 39
9,923 10,614
24,715 29,497




Consolidated Statements of Equity
EMERSON ELECTRIC CO. & SUBSIDIARIES

Three and six months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022
(Dollars in millions; unaudited)

Common stock
Additional paid-in-capital
Beginning balance
Stock plans
Ending balance

Retained earnings
Beginning balance
Net earnings common stockholders
Dividends paid (per share: $0.505, $0.515, $1.01 and $1.03, respectively)
Adoption of accounting standard
Ending balance

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Beginning balance
Foreign currency translation
Pension and postretirement
Cash flow hedges
Ending balance

Treasury stock
Beginning balance
Purchases
Issued under stock plans
Ending balance

Common stockholders' equity

Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
Beginning balance
Net earnings
Other comprehensive income
Dividends paid
Ending balance

Total equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Three Months Ended March 31,

Six Months Ended March 31,

2021 2022 2021 2022
$ 477 477 477 477
499 564 470 522

12 15 41 57

511 579 511 579
25,096 26,636 24,955 26,047
561 674 1,006 1,570
(303) (307) (606) (614)

— — (1) —
25,354 27,003 25,354 27,003
(1,330) (922) (1,577) (872)
(20) (59) 169 (131)

27 18 54 36

1 6 32 10

(1,322) (957) (1,322) (957)
(15,847) (16,506) (15,920) (16,291)
(69) (27) (82) (285)

26 6 112 49
(15,890) (16,527) (15,890) (16,527)
9,130 10,575 9,130 10,575

44 39 42 40

7 1 14 _

(1) (1) (1) (1)

— — (5) —

50 39 50 39

$ 9,180 10,614 9,180 10,614




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
EMERSON ELECTRIC CO. & SUBSIDIARIES

Six Months Ended March 31, 2021 and 2022
(Dollars in millions; unaudited)

Operating activities

Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock compensation
Pension expense
Changes in operating working capital
Gain on subordinated interest
Other, net

Cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Capital expenditures
Purchases of businesses, net of cash and equivalents acquired
Proceeds from subordinated interest
Other, net
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Financing activities
Net increase in short-term borrowings
Proceeds from short-term borrowings greater than three months
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments of long-term debt
Dividends paid
Purchases of common stock
Other, net
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equivalents
Increase (Decrease) in cash and equivalents
Beginning cash and equivalents

Ending cash and equivalents

Changes in operating working capital
Receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Total changes in operating working capital

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Six Months Ended

March 31,

2021 2022
1,020 1,570
483 452
125 91
16 2
66 (588)
— (453)
(95) (109)
1,615 965
(222) (225)
(1,611) (37)
— 438

61 (17)
(1,772) 159
60 871

— 1,040

— 2,975
(301) (504)
(606) (613)
(78) (285)
83 15
(842) 3,499
26 (48)
(973) 4,575
3,315 2,354
2,342 6,929
75 (68)
(61) (428)
(16) (24)
55 18

13 (86)
66 (588)




(Dollars and shares in millions, except per share amounts or where noted)

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of
operating results for the interim periods presented. Adjustments consist of normal and recurring accruals. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in accordance with the requirements of Form 10-Q and consequently do not include all disclosures required for annual financial statements presented in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Effective October 1, 2021, the Company adopted three accounting standard updates which had no impact or an immaterial impact on the Company's financial
statements as of and for the six months ended March 31, 2022. These included:

» Updates to ASC 805, Business Combinations, which clarify the accounting for contract assets and liabilities assumed in a business combination. In
general, this will result in contract liabilities being recognized at their historical amounts under ASC 606, rather than at fair value in accordance with the
general requirements of ASC 805.

» Updates to ASC 740, Income Taxes, which require the recognition of a franchise tax that is partially based on income as an income-based tax with any
incremental amount as a non-income based tax. These updates also make certain changes to intra-period tax allocation principles and interim tax
calculations.

* Updates to ASC 321, Equity Securities, ASC 323 Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures, and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, which clarify
how to account for the transition into and out of the equity method of accounting when evaluating observable transactions.

Emerson is a global manufacturer that combines technology and engineering to provide innovative solutions to its customers, largely in the form of tangible
products. The vast majority of the Company's revenues relate to a broad offering of manufactured products which are recognized at the point in time when
control transfers, while a smaller portion is recognized over time or relates to sales arrangements with multiple performance obligations. See Note 13 for
additional information about the Company's revenues.

The following table summarizes the balances of the Company's unbilled receivables (contract assets), which are reported in Other current assets, and its
customer advances (contract liabilities), which are reported in Accrued expenses.

Sept 30, 2021

Unbilled receivables (contract assets) $ 528
Customer advances (contract liabilities) (730)
Net contract liabilities $ (202)

The majority of the Company's contract balances relate to arrangements where revenue is recognized over time and payments from customers are made
according to a contractual billing schedule. The increase in net contract liabilities was due to customer billings which exceeded revenue recognized for
performance completed during the period. Revenue recognized for the three and six months ended March 31, 2022 included $108 and $456 that was included
in the beginning contract liability balance. Other factors that impacted the change in net contract liabilities were immaterial. Revenue recognized for the three
and six months ended March 31, 2022 for performance obligations that were satisfied in previous periods, including cumulative catchup adjustments on the
Company's long-term contracts, was not material.



As of March 31, 2022, the Company's backlog relating to unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) performance obligations in contracts with its customers was
approximately $7.8 billion. The Company expects to recognize approximately 85 percent of its remaining performance obligations as revenue over the next 12
months, with the remainder substantially over the subsequent two years thereafter.

Reconciliations of weighted-average shares for basic and diluted earnings per common share follow. Earnings allocated to participating securities were
inconsequential.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2021 2021
Basic shares outstanding 599.4 599.0
Dilutive shares 3.4 3.3
Diluted shares outstanding 602.8 602.3

The Company changed the terms of its annual performance share awards issued in the first quarter of fiscal 2022. The new terms meet the criteria for equity
classification in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation, and therefore expense will be recognized on a fixed basis over the three-year
performance period. The terms of the performance share awards issued in fiscal 2020 and 2021 are unchanged and will therefore continue to be accounted for
as liability awards and marked-to-market each period based on changes in the stock price.

On March 3, 2022 the Company announced an agreement to sell its Therm-O-Disc sensing and protection technologies business, which is reported in the
Climate Technologies segment, to an affiliate of One Rock Capital Partners, LLC. Assets and liabilities for this business are reported as held-for-sale as of
March 31, 2022 and included in other current assets, accrued expenses, other assets and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. The transaction is
expected to close in the third quarter subject to regulatory approvals and other customary closing conditions.

On October 11, 2021, the Company announced that it entered into a definitive agreement with Aspen Technology, Inc. ("AspenTech") to contribute two of
Emerson's stand-alone industrial software businesses, Open Systems International, Inc. and the Geological Simulation Software business, along with
approximately $6.0 billion in cash to AspenTech stockholders, to create "new AspenTech", a diversified, high-performance industrial software leader with greater
scale, capabilities and technologies. Upon closing of the transaction, the Company will own 55 percent of new AspenTech and its results and financial position
will be consolidated in Emerson's financial statements.

On October 1, 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of Open Systems International, Inc. ("OSI"), a leading operations technology software provider in
the global power industry, for approximately $1.6 billion, net of cash acquired. This business, which had net sales of $191 in fiscal 2021 and is reported in the
Automation Solutions segment, expands the Company's offerings in the power industry to include the digitization and modernization of the electric grid. The
Company recognized goodwill of $967 (none of which is expected to be tax deductible), identifiable intangible assets of $783, primarily intellectual property and
customer relationships with a weighted-average useful life of approximately 11 years, and deferred tax liabilities of approximately $193. Results of operations
for the three months ended March 31, 2021 included first year pre-tax acquisition accounting charges related to backlog amortization and deferred revenue of
$6 and $4, respectively, while year-to-date results included $17 and $8, respectively.

As previously disclosed, the Company sold its network power systems business (rebranded as Vertiv, now a publicly traded company, symbol VRT) in 2017 and
retained a subordinated interest contingent upon the equity holders first receiving a threshold cash return on their initial investment. In the first quarter of fiscal
2022, the equity holders' cumulative cash return exceeded the threshold and as a result, the Company received a distribution of $438 in November 2021 (in
total, a gain of $453 was recognized in the first quarter). Based on the terms of the agreement and the current calculation, the Company could receive
additional distributions of approximately $75 which are expected to be received over the next two-to-three years. However, the distributions are contingent on
the timing and price at



which Vertiv shares are sold by the equity holders and therefore, there can be no assurance as to the amount or timing of the remaining distributions to the
Company.

(5) PENSION & POSTRETIREMENT PLANS

Total periodic pension and postretirement (income) expense is summarized below:

Three Months Ended March 31, Six Months Ended March 31,
2021 2022 2021 2022
Service cost $ 21 19 42 38
Interest cost 32 34 64 68
Expected return on plan assets (84) (78) (168) (156)
Net amortization 35 23 70 46
Total $ 4 (2) 8 (4)
(6) OTHER DEDUCTIONS, NET
Other deductions, net are summarized below:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2021 2022 2021 2022
Amortization of intangibles (intellectual property and customer relationships) $ 74 62 152 125
Restructuring costs 17 10 83 19
Other (58) (32) (80) (53)
Total $ 33 40 155 91

In the second quarter of fiscal 2022, the decrease in intangibles amortization for the three and six months ended March 31, 2022 was largely due to backlog
amortization of $6 and $17, respectively, in the prior year related to the OSI acquisition. Other is composed of several items, including acquisition/divestiture
costs, foreign currency transaction gains and losses, pension expense and other items. For the three and six months ended March 31, 2022, the change in
other included acquisition/divestiture costs of $13 and $36, respectively, and a favorable impact from foreign currency transactions of $9 and $35, respectively.
In the first quarter of fiscal 2022, other also included gains from the sales of capital assets of $15. Comparisons were also impacted by prior year investment-
related gains, including $21 from an investment sale and $17 from the acquisition of full ownership of an equity investment in the first quarter of fiscal 2021, and
a gain of $31 from the sale of an equity investment in the second quarter of fiscal 2021.

(7) RESTRUCTURING COSTS

Restructuring expense reflects costs associated with the Company’s ongoing efforts to improve operational efficiency and deploy assets globally in order to
remain competitive on a worldwide basis. Costs incurred in the first six months of fiscal 2022 relate to the Company's initiatives that began in the third quarter of
fiscal 2019 to improve operating margins and were subsequently increased in response to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on demand for the Company's
products. Expenses incurred in the first six months of fiscal 2022 included costs related to workforce reductions of approximately 200 employees. The Company
expects fiscal 2022 restructuring expense and related costs to be approximately $150, including costs to complete actions initiated in the first six months of the
year.



Restructuring expense by business segment follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
March 31, March 31,

2021 2022 2021 2022

Automation Solutions $ 12 8 76 13
Climate Technologies 3 1 4 3
Tools & Home Products 1 1 2 2
Commercial & Residential Solutions 4 6 5

Corporate 1 — 1 1

Total $ 17 10 83 19

Details of the change in the liability for restructuring costs during the six months ended March 31, 2022 follow:

Sept 30, 2021 Expense Utilized/Paid Mar 31, 2022

Severance and benefits $ 172 5 32 145
Other 4 14 17 B 1
Total $ 176 19 49 146

The tables above do not include $4 and $5 of costs related to restructuring actions incurred for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022, respectively,
that are required to be reported in cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses; year-to-date amounts are $7 and $14, respectively.

(8) TAXES

Income taxes were $136 in the second quarter of fiscal 2022 and $169 in 2021, resulting in effective tax rates of 17 percent and 23 percent, respectively. The
current year rate included a 6 percentage point benefit related to the completion of tax examinations, while both years included unfavorable discrete items
which increased the rates 1 percentage point.

Income taxes were $416 for the first six months of 2022 and $280 for 2021, resulting in effective tax rates of 21 percent and 22 percent, respectively. The
current year rate included a 3 percentage point benefit related to the completion of tax examinations, partially offset by portfolio restructuring activities which
negatively impacted the rate by 2 percentage points.

On March 27, 2020, the CARES Act was enacted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and among other things, provides tax relief to businesses. Tax
provisions of the CARES Act include the deferral of certain payroll taxes, relief for retaining employees, and other provisions. The Company deferred $73 of
certain payroll taxes through the end of calendar year 2020, of which approximately $37 was paid in December 2021 with the remaining amount due in
December 2022.

(9) OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Sept 30,2021 Mar 31, 2022

Inventories

Finished products $ 616 764

Raw materials and work in process 1,434 1,635
Total $ 2,050 2,399




Mar 31,

Sept 30, 2021 2022
Property, plant and equipment,_net
Property, plant and equipment, at cost $ 9,427 9,198
Less: Accumulated depreciation 5,689 5,631
Total $ 3,738 3,567
Goodwill by business segment
Automation Solutions $ 6,552 6,504
Climate Technologies 753 723
Tools & Home Products 418 404
Commercial & Residential Solutions 1,171 1,127
Total $ 7,723 7,631
Other intangible assets
Gross carrying amount $ 5,911 5,897
Less: Accumulated amortization 3,034 3,198
Net carrying amount $ 2,877 2,699

Other intangible assets include customer relationships, net, of $1,495 and $1,401 as of September 30, 2021 and March 31, 2022, respectively.

Three Months Ended March Six Months Ended March
3 3

2021 2022 2021 2022
Depreciation and amortization expense include the following:
Depreciation expense $ 122 121 246 249
Amortization of intangibles (includes $14, $14, $28, and $28 reported in Cost of Sales, 88 76 180 153
respectively)
Amortization of capitalized software 29 24 57 50
Total $ 239 221 483 452

Amortization of intangibles included backlog amortization of $6 and $17 related to the OSI acquisition for the three and six months ended March 31, 2021,

respectively.

Sept 30,2021 Mar 31, 2022
Other assets include the following:
Pension assets $ 1,015 1,076
Operating lease right-of-use assets 558 523
Deferred income taxes 115 103
Asbestos-related insurance receivables 95 88
Accrued expenses include the following:
Customer advances (contract liabilities) $ 730 868
Employee compensation 690 493
Operating lease liabilities (current) 155 151
Product warranty 146 137

10



Mar 31,

Sept 30, 2021 2022
Other liabilities include the following:
Deferred income taxes $ 711 750
Pension and postretirement liabilities 676 666
Operating lease liabilities (noncurrent) 413 382
Asbestos litigation 256 242

(10) DEBT

In December 2021, the Company issued $1 billion of 2.0% notes due December 2028, $1 billion of 2.2% notes due December 2031, and $1 billion of 2.8%
notes due December 2051. The Company expects to use the net proceeds from the sale of the notes to pay a portion of its contribution of approximately $6.0
billion to existing stockholders of AspenTech as part of the transaction discussed further in Note 4. If the transaction with AspenTech is not completed or is
terminated, the Company will be required to redeem the notes at a redemption price equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company increased its commercial paper borrowings by approximately $2.2 billion to generate additional cash to fund
the AspenTech transaction.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company repaid $500 of 2.625% notes that matured.

(11) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Hedging Activities — As of March 31, 2022, the notional amount of foreign currency hedge positions was approximately $2.6 billion, and commodity hedge
contracts totaled approximately $120 (primarily 32 million pounds of copper and aluminum). All derivatives receiving hedge accounting are cash flow hedges.
The majority of hedging gains and losses deferred as of March 31, 2022 are expected to be recognized over the next 12 months as the underlying forecasted
transactions occur. Gains and losses on foreign currency derivatives reported in Other deductions, net reflect hedges of balance sheet exposures that do not
receive hedge accounting.

Net Investment Hedge — In fiscal 2019, the Company issued euro-denominated debt of €1.5 billion. The euro notes reduce foreign currency risk associated
with the Company's international subsidiaries that use the euro as their functional currency and have been designated as a hedge of a portion of the investment
in these operations. Foreign currency gains or losses associated with the euro-denominated debt are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) and will remain until the hedged investment is sold or substantially liquidated.

The following gains and losses are included in earnings and other comprehensive income (OCI) for the three and six months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022:

Into Earnings Into OCI
2nd Quarter Six Months 2nd Quarter Six Months

Gains (Losses) Location 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
Commodity Cost of sales $ 8 6 1 13 13 10 26 23
Foreign currency Sales 1 — 2 1 (2) (2) 3 (2)
Foreign currency Cost of sales 2 9 2 11 — 14 27 17
Foreign currency Other deductions, net 29 8 25 52
Net Investment Hedges
Euro denominated debt 53 35 (27) 79

Total $ 40 23 40 77 64 57 29 117

Regardless of whether derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments receive hedge accounting, the Company expects hedging gains or losses to be
offset by losses or gains on the related underlying exposures. The amounts ultimately recognized will differ from those presented above for open positions,
which remain subject to ongoing market price fluctuations until settlement. Derivatives receiving hedge accounting are highly effective and no amounts were
excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness.

1



Fair Value Measurement — Valuations for all derivatives and the Company's long-term debt fall within Level 2 of the GAAP valuation hierarchy. As of March 31,
2022, the fair value of long-term debt was $8.5 billion, which exceeded the carrying value by $230. The fair values of commodity and foreign currency contracts
were reported in Other current assets and Accrued expenses and did not materially change since September 30, 2021.

Counterparties to derivatives arrangements are companies with investment-grade credit ratings. The Company has bilateral collateral arrangements with
counterparties with credit rating-based posting thresholds that vary depending on the arrangement. If credit ratings on the Company's debt fall below pre-
established levels, counterparties can require immediate full collateralization of all derivatives in net liability positions. The maximum amount that could
potentially have been required was immaterial. The Company also can demand full collateralization of derivatives in net asset positions should any counterparty
credit ratings fall below certain thresholds. No collateral was posted with counterparties and none was held by the Company as of March 31, 2022.

(12) ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Activity in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the three and six months ended March 31, 2021 and 2022 is shown below, net of income taxes:
Three Months Ended March

31, Six Months Ended March 31,
2021 2022 2021 2022

Foreign currency translation

Beginning balance $ (522) (701) (711) (629)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax of $(13), $(8), $6 and $(18), respectively (20) (59) 169 (131)

Ending balance (542) (760) (542) (760)
Pension and postretirement

Beginning balance (837) (241) (864) (259)

Amortization of deferred actuarial losses into earnings, net of tax of $(8), $(5), $(16) and 27 18 54 36

$(10), respectively

Ending balance (810) (223) (810) (223)
Cash flow hedges

Beginning balance 29 20 (2) 16

Gains deferred during the period, net of taxes of $(2), $(5), $(13) and $(9), respectively 9 17 43 29

Reclassification of realized (gains) losses to sales and cost of sales, net of tax of $3, $4, (8) (11) (11) (19)

$4 and $6, respectively

Ending balance 30 26 30 26
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ (1,322) (957) (1,322) (957)

12



(13) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Summarized information about the Company's results of operations by business segment follows:
Three Months Ended March 31,

Automation Solutions

Climate Technologies
Tools & Home Products
Commercial & Residential Solutions

Stock compensation
Unallocated pension and postretirement costs
Corporate and other
Gain on subordinated interest
Eliminations/Interest

Total

Six Months Ended March 31,

Sales Earnings Sales Earnings
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
2,793 2,937 471 556 5,485 5,742 832 1,082
1,160 1,341 245 262 2,191 2,504 457 454
485 516 112 103 930 1,024 210 210
1,645 1,857 357 365 3,121 3,528 667 664
(61) (50) (125) (91)
23 25 47 51
(15) (33) (43) (83)
— —_ — 453
() (3 (38) (52) (14) (6) (78) (90)
4,431 4,791 737 811 8,592 9,264 1,300 1,986

Automation Solutions sales by major product offering are summarized below.

Measurement & Analytical Instrumentation
Valves, Actuators & Regulators

Industrial Solutions

Systems & Software

Automation Solutions

Three Months Ended March 31,

Six Months Ended March 31,

2021 2022 2021 2022

$ 732 767 1,430 1,502
836 883 1,642 1,699

555 602 1,063 1,168

670 685 1,350 1,373

$ 2,793 2,937 5,485 5,742

Depreciation and amortization (includes intellectual property, customer relationships and capitalized software) by business segment are summarized below:
Three Months Ended March
3

Automation Solutions

Climate Technologies
Tools & Home Products
Commercial & Residential Solutions

Corporate and other
Total
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Six Months Ended March 31,

2021 2022 2021 2022
$ 156 147 312 302
47 46 96 93

20 19 39 39

67 65 135 132

16 9 36 18

$ 239 221 483 452




Sales by geographic destination are summarized below:
Three Months Ended March 31,

2021 2022

Commercial & Commercial &

Automation Residential Automation Residential
Solutions Solutions Total Solutions Solutions Total
Americas $ 1,223 1,119 2,342 1,383 1,283 2,666
Asia, Middle East & Africa 953 305 1,258 995 338 1,333
Europe 617 221 838 559 236 795
Total $ 2,793 1,645 4,438 2,937 1,857 4,794

Six Months Ended March 31,

2021 2022
Commercial & Commercial &
Automation Residential Automation Residential
Solutions Solutions Total Solutions Solutions Total
Americas $ 2,390 2,100 4,490 2,624 2,427 5,051
Asia, Middle East & Africa 1,896 613 2,509 2,000 660 2,660
Europe 1,199 408 1,607 1,118 441 1,559
Total $ 5,485 3,121 8,606 5,742 3,528 9,270

(14) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 4, 2022, Emerson announced its intention to exit business operations in Russia and is exploring strategic options to divest Metran, its Russia-based
manufacturing subsidiary. Emerson is committed to an orderly transfer of these assets and will support its employees through this process. Emerson's historical
net sales in Russia were principally in the Automation Solutions segment and in total, represent approximately 1.5 percent of consolidated annual sales. As of
March 31, 2022, Emerson's Russian operations had net assets of approximately $50 and accumulated foreign currency translation losses of approximately
$145 (which will be recognized as a non-cash charge when the exit is completed). The Company is currently unable to estimate the full financial consequences
of the exit due to uncertainty regarding the commercial terms of the exit and related tax impacts.
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Items 2 and 3.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(Dollars are in millions, except per share amounts or where noted)

OVERVIEW

For the second quarter of fiscal 2022, net sales were $4.8 billion, up 8 percent compared with the prior year. Underlying sales, which exclude foreign currency
translation, acquisitions and divestitures, were up 10 percent. Foreign currency translation had a 2 percent unfavorable impact. Sales growth continued to be
strong in the quarter with favorable results across both business platforms and all geographies.

Net earnings common stockholders were $674, up 20 percent, and diluted earnings per share were $1.13, up 22 percent compared with $0.93 in the prior year.
Adjusted diluted earnings per share were $1.29 compared with $1.07 in the prior year, reflecting strong operating results and a lower effective tax rate in the
quarter.

The table below presents the Company's diluted earnings per share on an adjusted basis to facilitate period-to-period comparisons and provide additional
insight into the underlying, ongoing operating performance of the Company. Adjusted diluted earnings per share excludes intangibles amortization expense,
restructuring expense, first year purchase accounting related items and transaction and AspenTech pre-closing costs, and certain gains, losses or impairments.

Three Months Ended Mar 31 2021 2022

Diluted earnings per share $ 0.93 1.13
Restructuring and related costs 0.03 0.02
Amortization of intangibles 0.10 0.10
Acquisition/divestiture costs and interest on AspenTech debt — 0.04
OSi first year acquisition accounting charges 0.01 —

Adjusted diluted earnings per share $ 1.07 1.29

The table below summarizes the changes in adjusted diluted earnings per share. The items identified below are discussed throughout MD&A, see further
discussion above and in the Business Segments and Financial Position sections below.

Three Months

Ended
Adjusted diluted earnings per share - Mar 31, 2021 $ 1.07
Operations 0.1
Stock compensation 0.02
Pensions 0.01
Gain on sale of investment - prior year (0.04)
Foreign currency 0.01
Lower effective tax rate 0.08
Share repurchases 0.03
Adjusted diluted earnings per share - Mar 31, 2022 $ 1.29
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31

Following is an analysis of the Company’s operating results for the second quarter ended March 31, 2021, compared with the second quarter ended March 31,

2021 2022 Change
Net sales $ 4,431 4,791 8 %
Gross profit $ 1,862 1,952 5%
Percent of sales 42.0 % 40.7 %
SG&A $ 1,054 1,049 — %
Percent of sales 23.8% 21.9%
Other deductions, net $ 33 40
Amortization of intangibles $ 74 62
Restructuring costs $ 17 10
Interest expense, net $ 38 52
Earnings before income taxes $ 737 811 10 %
Percent of sales 16.6 % 16.9 %
Net earnings common stockholders $ 561 674 20 %
Percent of sales 12.7 % 14.1 %
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.93 1.13 22 %

2022.

Net sales for the second quarter of fiscal 2022 were $4.8 billion, up 8 percent compared with 2021. Automation Solutions sales were up 5 percent and
Commercial & Residential Solutions sales were up 13 percent. Underlying sales were up 10 percent on 6 percent higher volume and 4 percent higher price,
while foreign currency translation had a 2 percent negative impact. Underlying sales were up 14 percent in the U.S. and up 6 percent internationally. The
Americas was up 14 percent, Europe was up 2 percent and Asia, Middle East & Africa was up 7 percent (China up 11 percent).

Cost of sales for the second quarter of fiscal 2022 were $2,839, an increase of $270 compared with 2021, due to higher sales volume and higher materials
costs. Gross margin of 40.7 percent decreased 1.3 percentage points compared with the prior year as price increases were largely offset by higher material
costs, and other inflation negatively impacted margins.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses of $1,049 decreased $5 and SG&A as a percent of sales decreased 1.9 percentage points to 21.9 percent
compared with the prior year, reflecting leverage on higher sales, lower stock compensation expense of $11 and savings from the Company's cost reset
actions, partially offset by wage and other inflation.

Other deductions, net were $40 in 2022, an increase of $7 compared with the prior year, reflecting acquisition/divestiture costs of $13, a decline in restructuring
costs of $7 and a favorable impact from foreign currency transactions of $9. Intangibles amortization was lower by $12, partially due to backlog amortization of
$6 in the prior year related to the OSI acquisition. The prior year also included a gain on the sale of an equity investment of $31. See Notes 6 and 7.

Pretax earnings of $811 increased $74, up 10 percent compared with the prior year. Earnings increased $85 in Automation Solutions and increased $8 in
Commercial & Residential Solutions, while costs reported at Corporate increased $5. See the Business Segments discussion that follows and Note 13.

Income taxes were $136 in the second quarter of fiscal 2022 and $169 in 2021, resulting in effective tax rates of 17 percent and 23 percent, respectively. The
current year rate included a 6 percentage point benefit related to the completion of tax examinations, while both years included unfavorable discrete items
which increased the rates 1 percentage point.
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Net earnings common stockholders in the second quarter of fiscal 2022 were $674, up 20 percent, compared with $561 in the prior year, and earnings per
share were $1.13, up 22 percent, compared with $0.93 in the prior year. See discussion in the Overview above and the analysis below of adjusted earnings per
share for further details.

The table below, which shows results on an adjusted EBITA basis, is intended to supplement the Company's discussion of its results of operations herein. The
Company defines adjusted EBITA as earnings excluding interest expense, net, income taxes, intangibles amortization expense, restructuring expense, first year
purchase accounting related items and transaction fees, and certain gains, losses or impairments. Adjusted EBITA and adjusted EBITA margin are measures
used by management and may be useful for investors to evaluate the Company's operational performance.

Three Months Ended Mar 31 2021 2022 Change
Earnings before income taxes $ 737 811 10 %
Percent of sales 16.6 % 16.9 %
Interest expense, net 38 52
Restructuring and related costs 21 15
Amortization of intangibles 82 76
Acquisition/divestiture costs — 13
OSl first year acquisition accounting charges 10 —
Adjusted EBITA $ 888 967 9%
Percent of sales 20.0 % 20.2 %

Business Segments

Following is an analysis of operating results for the Company’s business segments for the second quarter ended March 31, 2021, compared with the second
quarter ended March 31, 2022. The Company defines segment earnings as earnings before interest and taxes. See Note 13 for a discussion of the Company's
business segments.

AUTOMATION SOLUTIONS

Three Months Ended Mar 31 2021 2022 Change
Sales $ 2,793 2,937 5%
Earnings $ 471 556 18 %
Margin 16.8 % 18.9 %
Restructuring and related costs $ 14 11
Amortization of intangibles $ 69 64
Adjusted EBITA $ 554 631 15 %
Adjusted EBITA Margin 19.8 % 21.5%
Sales by Major Product Offering
Measurement & Analytical Instrumentation $ 732 767 5%
Valves, Actuators & Regulators 836 883 6 %
Industrial Solutions 555 602 8 %
Systems & Software 670 685 2%
Total $ 2,793 2,937 5%

Automation Solutions sales were $2.9 billion in the second quarter, an increase of $144 or 5 percent. Foreign currency translation had a 2 percent unfavorable
impact. Underlying sales increased 7 percent on 5 percent higher volume and 2 percent higher price, reflecting strength in North America and China and
favorable results in all major end markets. Supply chain and logistics constraints continued to unfavorably impact sales in the second quarter. Underlying sales
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increased 13 percent in the Americas (U.S. up 14 percent), as process end markets continue to recover, while Europe was down 3 percent, and Asia, Middle
East & Africa increased 6 percent (China up 17 percent). Sales for Measurement & Analytical Instrumentation increased $35, or 5 percent as market conditions
continued to improve for North American process industries. Measurement & Analytical sales were strong in North America and Asia, Middle East & Africa, with
China up over 25 percent, while Europe was down over 10 percent due to supply chain issues and lower project activity. Valves, Actuators & Regulators
increased $47, or 6 percent, reflecting strength in power and chemical end markets. Demand was favorable in the Americas (up mid-teens) and China (up over
20 percent), while sales increased modestly in the rest of Asia, Middle East & Africa and were down mid-single digits in Europe. Industrial Solutions sales were
up $47, or 8 percent, on continued strength in discrete end markets. Systems & Software increased $15, or 2 percent, reflecting strength in process end
markets in North America and China, partially offset by weakness in Europe, while power end markets were strong in North America. Earnings were $556, an
increase of $85, or 18 percent, and margin increased 2.1 percentage points to 18.9 percent, reflecting leverage on higher volume, favorable mix, savings from
cost reduction actions and a 0.3 percentage point benefit from foreign currency transactions. Price-cost was neutral while freight and other inflation was slightly
negative.

COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL SOLUTIONS

Three Months Ended Mar 31 2021 2022 Change
Sales:
Climate Technologies $ 1,160 1,341 16 %
Tools & Home Products 485 516 6 %
Total $ 1,645 1,857 13 %
Earnings:
Climate Technologies $ 245 262 7%
Tools & Home Products 112 103 (7)%
Total $ 357 365 2%
Margin 21.7 % 19.7 %
Restructuring and related costs $ 5 3
Amortization of intangibles $ 13 12
Adjusted EBITA $ 375 380 1%
Adjusted EBITA Margin 22.8% 20.5 %

Commercial & Residential Solutions sales were $1.9 billion in the second quarter, up $212, or 13 percent compared to the prior year. Foreign currency
translation had a 1 percent unfavorable impact. Underlying sales increased 14 percent on 5 percent higher volume and 9 percent higher price, reflecting growth
across nearly all businesses and geographies, with strength in commercial and industrial end markets. Overall, underlying sales increased 15 percent in the
Americas (U.S. up 15 percent), 14 percent in Europe and 11 percent in Asia, Middle East & Africa (China down 6 percent). Climate Technologies sales were
$1.3 billion in the second quarter, an increase of $181, or 16 percent. Air conditioning, heating and refrigeration sales were strong, reflecting global demand
across all end markets. Tools & Home Products sales were $516 in the second quarter, an increase of $31, or 6 percent. Sales of food waste disposers and
professional tools were both up approximately 10 percent, while wet/dry vacuums sales decreased 9 percent. Earnings were $365, up 2 percent compared with
the prior year driven by slightly favorable price-cost due to higher prices. Margin decreased 2.0 percentage points to 19.7 percent, as the benefit from higher
prices was mostly offset by higher materials costs. Freight and other inflation also negatively impact margin, partially offset by leverage on higher sales volume
and savings from cost reduction actions.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31

Following is an analysis of the Company’s operating results for the six months ended March 31, 2021, compared with the six months ended March 31, 2022.

2021 2022 Change
Net sales $ 8,592 9,264 8%
Gross profit $ 3,585 3,774 5%
Percent of sales 41.7 % 40.7 %
SG&A $ 2,052 2,060 — %
Percent of sales 23.9% 22.2 %
Gain on subordinated interest $ — (453)
Other deductions, net $ 155 91
Amortization of intangibles $ 1562 125
Restructuring costs $ 83 19
Interest expense, net $ 78 90
Earnings before income taxes $ 1,300 1,986 53 %
Percent of sales 15.1% 214 %
Net earnings common stockholders $ 1,006 1,570 56 %
Percent of sales 11.7 % 16.9 %
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.67 2.63 57 %

Net sales for the first six months of 2022 were $9.3 billion, up 8 percent compared with 2021. Automation Solutions sales were up 5 percent while Commercial
& Residential Solutions sales were up 13 percent. Underlying sales were up 9 percent on 5 percent higher volume and 4 percent higher price, and foreign
currency translation subtracted 1 percent. Underlying sales increased 12 percent in the U.S. and increased 6 percent internationally. The Americas was up 13
percent, Europe was up 2 percent and Asia, Middle East & Africa was up 7 percent (China up 11 percent).

Cost of sales for 2022 were $5,490, an increase of $483 versus $5,007 in 2021, primarily due to higher sales volume and higher materials costs. Gross margin
of 40.7 percent decreased 1.0 percentage point compared to the prior year, reflecting unfavorable price-cost in Commercial & Residential Solutions, partially
offset by leverage on higher sales volume and favorable mix.

SG&A expenses of $2,060 increased $8 compared with the prior year on increased sales volume, partially offset by lower stock compensation expense of $34.
SG&A as a percent of sales decreased 1.7 percentage points to 22.2 percent, reflecting leverage on higher sales, lower stock compensation expense, and
savings from the Company's restructuring and cost reset actions.

As previously disclosed, the Company sold its network power systems business (rebranded as Vertiv, now a publicly traded company, symbol VRT) in 2017 and
retained a subordinated interest contingent upon the equity holders first receiving a threshold cash return on their initial investment. In the first quarter of fiscal
2022, the equity holders' cumulative cash return exceeded the threshold and as a result, the Company received a distribution of $438 in November 2021 (in
total, a gain of $453 was recognized in the first quarter). Based on the terms of the agreement and the current calculation, the Company could receive
additional distributions of approximately $75 which are expected to be received over the next two-to-three years. However, the distributions are contingent on
the timing and price at which Vertiv shares are sold by the equity holders and therefore, there can be no assurance as to the amount or timing of the remaining
distributions to the Company.

Other deductions, net were $91 in 2022, a decrease of $64 compared with the prior year, reflecting a decline in restructuring costs of $64, a favorable impact
from foreign currency transactions of $35 due to losses in the prior year and gains in the current year, and gains from the sales of capital assets of $15 in the
first quarter of fiscal 2022, partially offset by acquisition/divestiture costs of $36. Intangibles amortization decreased $27 largely due to backlog
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amortization in the prior year of $17 related to the OSI acquisition. The prior year also included investment-related gains, including a gain of $21 from an
investment sale, a $17 gain from the acquisition of full ownership of an equity investment and a gain of $31 on the sale of an equity investment. See Notes 6
and 7.

Pretax earnings of $1,986 increased $686, or 53 percent. Earnings increased $250 in Automation Solutions and decreased $3 in Commercial & Residential
Solutions, while costs reported at Corporate increased $2. See the Business Segments discussion that follows and Note 13.

Income taxes were $416 for 2022 and $280 for 2021, resulting in effective tax rates of 21 percent and 22 percent, respectively. The current year rate included a
3 percentage point benefit related to the completion of tax examinations, partially offset by portfolio restructuring activities which negatively impacted the rate by
2 percentage points.

Net earnings common stockholders in 2022 were $1,570, up 56 percent compared with the prior year, and earnings per share were $2.63, up 57 percent
compared with $1.67 in 2021. Results reflected strong operating results and included a pretax gain of $453 ($358 after-tax, $0.60 per share) related to the
Company's subordinated interest in Vertiv. See the analysis below of adjusted earnings per share for further details.

The table below, which shows results on an adjusted EBITA basis, is intended to supplement the Company's discussion of its results of operations herein.

Six Months Ended Mar 31 2021 2022 Change
Earnings before income taxes $ 1,300 1,986 53 %
Percent of sales 15.1 % 21.4 %
Interest expense, net 78 90
Restructuring and related costs 90 33
Amortization of intangibles 163 153
Gain on subordinated interest — (453)
Acquisition/divestiture costs — 36
Gain on acquisition of full ownership of equity investment 17) —
OSl first year acquisition accounting charges and fees 31 —
Adjusted EBITA $ 1,645 1,845 12 %
Percent of sales 19.2 % 19.9 %
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The table below presents the Company's diluted earnings per share on an adjusted basis to facilitate period-to-period comparisons and provide additional
insight into the underlying, ongoing operating performance of the Company.

Six Months Ended Mar 31 2021 2022

Diluted earnings per share $ 1.67 2.63
Restructuring and related costs 0.12 0.04
Amortization of intangibles 0.20 0.20
Gain on subordinated interest — (0.60)
Acquisition/divestiture costs and interest on AspenTech debt — 0.07
Gain on acquisition of full ownership of equity investment (0.03) —
OSi first year acquisition accounting charges and fees 0.04 —

Adjusted diluted earnings per share $ 2.00 2.34

The table below summarizes the changes in adjusted diluted earnings per share. The items identified below are discussed throughout MD&A, see further
discussion above and in the Business Segments and Financial Position sections below.

Six Months Ended

Adjusted diluted earnings per share - Mar 31, 2021 $ 2.00
Operations 0.21
Stock compensation 0.05
Pensions 0.03
Gains on sales of investments - prior year (0.07)
Gains on sales of capital assets - current year 0.02
Foreign currency 0.03
Lower effective tax rate 0.02
Share repurchases 0.05

Adjusted diluted earnings per share - Mar 31, 2022 $ 2.34
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Business Segments
Following is an analysis of operating results for the Company’s business segments for the six months ended March 31, 2021, compared with the six months
ended March 31, 2022. The Company defines segment earnings as earnings before interest and taxes.

AUTOMATION SOLUTIONS

Six Months Ended Mar 31 2021 2022 Change

Sales $ 5,485 5,742 5%

Earnings $ 832 1,082 30 %
Margin 15.2 % 18.8 %

Restructuring and related costs $ 78 23

Amortization of intangibles $ 137 129

Adjusted EBITA $ 1,047 1,234 18 %

Adjusted EBITA Margin 19.1 % 21.5%

Sales by Major Product Offering

Measurement & Analytical Instrumentation $ 1,430 1,502 5%

Valves, Actuators & Regulators 1,642 1,699 3%

Industrial Solutions 1,063 1,168 10 %

Systems & Software 1,350 1,373 2%
Total $ 5,485 5,742 5%

Automation Solutions sales were $5.7 billion in the first six months of 2022, an increase of $257, or 5 percent. Foreign currency translation had a 1 percent
unfavorable impact. Underlying sales increased 6 percent on 5 percent higher volume and 1 percent higher price, reflecting continued recovery in most end
markets and world areas despite supply chain and logistics constraints which unfavorably impacted sales. Underlying sales increased 10 percent in the
Americas, while Europe decreased 2 percent and Asia, Middle East & Africa was up 6 percent (China up 17 percent). Sales for Measurement & Analytical
Instrumentation increased $72, or 5 percent. Sales were strong in Asia, Middle East & Africa and up moderately in North America on continued improvement for
North American process industries, while sales were down moderately in Europe due to supply chain constraints. Valves, Actuators & Regulators increased
$57, or 3 percent, reflecting strong demand in the Americas and China, partially offset by softness in the rest of Asia, Middle East & Africa and Europe.
Industrial Solutions sales increased $105, or 10 percent, reflecting strong global demand in discrete end markets. Systems & Software increased $23, or 2
percent, reflecting strength in process end markets in North America and China, partially offset by weakness in Europe, while power end markets were strong in
Asia, Middle East & Africa and up modestly in North America. Earnings were $1,082, an increase of $250, or 30 percent, and margin increased 3.6 percentage
points to 18.8 percent, reflecting leverage on higher volume, lower restructuring expense which benefited margins 1.0 percentage point, savings from cost
reduction actions and favorable mix, partially offset by higher inflation. Foreign currency transactions also benefited margins by 0.4 percentage points.
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COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL SOLUTIONS
Six Months Ended Mar 31
Sales:
Climate Technologies
Tools & Home Products
Total

Earnings:
Climate Technologies
Tools & Home Products
Total
Margin
Restructuring and related costs
Amortization of intangibles

Adjusted EBITA
Adjusted EBITA Margin

2021 2022 Change
$ 2,191 2,504 14 %
930 1,024 10 %
$ 3,121 3,528 13 %
$ 457 454 (1%
210 210 — %
$ 667 664 — %
21.4% 18.8 %
$ 8 7
$ 26 24
701 695 (1%
22.4% 19.7 %

Commercial & Residential Solutions sales were $3.5 billion in the first six months of 2022, an increase of $407, or 13 percent compared to the prior year.
Underlying sales were up 14 percent on 6 percent higher volume and 8 percent higher price, while foreign currency translation subtracted 1 percent. Overall,
underlying sales increased 16 percent in the Americas, 14 percent in Europe and 7 percent in Asia, Middle East & Africa (China down 3 percent). Climate
Technologies sales were $2.5 billion in the first six months of 2022, an increase of $313, or 14 percent. Air conditioning, heating and refrigeration sales were
strong, reflecting global demand across all end markets. Tools & Home Products sales were $1.0 billion in the first six months of 2022, up $94, or 10 percent.
Sales of professional tools were up nearly 15 percent and food waste disposers were up 10 percent, while wet/dry vacuums were up slightly. Earnings were
$664, flat compared to the prior year, and margin decreased 2.6 percentage points, due to unfavorable price-cost reflecting steel prices, partially offset by

leverage on higher volume and savings from cost reduction actions.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Key elements of the Company's financial condition for the six months ended March 31, 2022 as compared to the year ended September 30, 2021 and the six
months ended March 31, 2021 follow.

Mar 31, 2021 Sept 30, 2021 Mar 31, 2022
Operating working capital $ 781 $ 704 $ 1,300
Current ratio 1.3 1.3 1.7
Total debt-to-total capital 44.4 % 40.3 % 50.9 %
Net debt-to-net capital 351 % 30.4 % 27.6 %
Interest coverage ratio 16.6 X 18.6 X 215 X

The Company's operating working capital increased compared to the same quarter last year and compared to September 30, 2021 due to higher inventory
levels to support sales growth and reflecting ongoing supply chain and logistics constraints. The increase in the current ratio reflects increased cash from the
Company's $3 billion of debt issued in the first quarter of fiscal 2022 to support the AspenTech transaction and cash received in the first quarter related to the
Vertiv subordinated interest of $438. The interest coverage ratio (earnings before income taxes plus interest expense, divided by interest expense) of 21.5X for
the first six months of fiscal 2022 compares to 16.6X for the six months ended March 31, 2021. The increase reflects higher pretax earnings in the current year,
including the Vertiv subordinated interest gain of $453. Excluding the gain, the interest coverage ratio was 16.8X.

In December 2021, the Company issued $1 billion of 2.00% notes due 2028, $1 billion of 2.20% notes due 2031 and $1 billion of 2.80% notes due 2051. The
net proceeds from the sale of the notes will be used to pay a portion of the Company's contribution of approximately $6.0 billion to existing stockholders of
Aspen Technology, Inc. (“AspenTech”) as part of the AspenTech transaction. In the second quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company increased its commercial paper
borrowings by approximately $2.2 billion to generate additional cash to fund the AspenTech transaction. The Company expects to finance the remainder of the
contribution through existing sources, including cash on hand, short-term debt capacity, and cash from operations. See Note 4 and Note 10.

Operating cash flow for the first six months of fiscal 2022 was $965, a decrease of $650 compared with $1,615 in the prior year due to higher inventory levels to
support sales growth and reflecting ongoing supply chain and logistics constraints. Operating cash flow was also negatively impacted by approximately $45 of
taxes paid in the second quarter of fiscal 2022 on the Vertiv subordinated interest gain. The remaining taxes owed on the gain are approximately $45 and are
expected to be paid by the end of fiscal 2022. Free cash flow of $740 in the first six months of fiscal 2022 (operating cash flow of $965 less capital expenditures
of $225) decreased $653 compared to free cash flow of $1,393 in 2021 (operating cash flow of $1,615 less capital expenditures of $222), reflecting the
decrease in operating cash flow. Cash provided by investing activities was $159, reflecting cash received related to the Vertiv subordinated interest of $438.
Cash provided by financing activities was $3,499, primarily due to proceeds of nearly $3 billion from the December 2021 debt issuance and increased
commercial paper borrowings of $2.2 billion to fund the AspenTech transaction, partially offset by the repayment of $500 of long-term debt, dividend payments,
and share repurchases.

On March 27, 2020, the CARES Act was enacted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and among other things, provides tax relief to businesses. Tax
provisions of the CARES Act include the deferral of certain payroll taxes, relief for retaining employees, and other provisions. The Company deferred $73 of
certain payroll taxes through the end of calendar year 2020, of which approximately $37 was paid in December 2021 with the remaining amount due in
December 2022.

Emerson maintains a conservative financial structure to provide the strength and flexibility necessary to achieve our strategic objectives and has been
successful in efficiently deploying cash where needed worldwide to fund operations, complete acquisitions and sustain long-term growth. Emerson is in a strong
financial position, with total assets of $29 billion and stockholders' equity of $11 billion, and has the resources available for reinvestment in existing businesses,
strategic acquisitions and managing its capital structure on a short- and long-term basis.
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FISCAL 2022 OUTLOOK

Emerson continues to see strong overall business performance while managing continued macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty, supply chain
constraints and challenges related to COVID-19. For the full year, consolidated net sales are expected to be up 8 to 10 percent, with underlying sales up 9 to 11
percent excluding a 1 percent unfavorable impact from foreign currency translation. Automation Solutions net sales are expected to be up 6 to 8 percent, with
underlying sales up 7 to 9 percent excluding a 1 percent unfavorable impact from foreign currency translation. Commercial & Residential Solutions net sales are
expected to be up 11 to 13 percent with underlying sales up 12 to 14 percent excluding a 1 percent unfavorable impact from foreign currency translation.
Earnings per share are expected to be $4.77 to $4.92, while adjusted earnings per share are expected to be $4.95 to $5.10. Adjusted earnings per share
exclude a $0.20 impact from restructuring actions, a $0.39 impact from amortization of intangibles, a $0.60 gain from the Vertiv subordinated interest (see Note
4), and a $0.19 impact from transaction and Aspen Tech pre-closing costs. Operating cash flow is expected to be approximately $3.6 billion and free cash flow,
which excludes projected capital spending of $600 million, is expected to be approximately $3.0 billion. Share repurchases are expected to be approximately
$250 to $500 million in fiscal 2022. Emerson's guidance excludes the operational impact of the transaction with AspenTech, which is expected to close in the
second calendar quarter of 2022, but does include estimated transaction fees and interest expense on $3 billion of debt already issued to fund the transaction.
The guidance also excludes the effect of the Therm-O-Disc sale, expected to close in the second calendar quarter of 2022. The guidance includes the
operational impact of exiting the Russia business, discussed below, but excludes any potential charges or other costs associated with the exit.

Statements in this report that are not strictly historical may be "forward-looking" statements, which involve risks and uncertainties, and Emerson undertakes no
obligation to update any such statements to reflect later developments. These risks and uncertainties include the Company's ability to successfully complete on
the terms and conditions contemplated, and the financial impact of, the proposed AspenTech transaction, the scope, duration and ultimate impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, and the Russia-Ukraine conflict, as well as economic and currency conditions, market demand, including related to the pandemic and oil
and gas price declines and volatility, pricing, protection of intellectual property, cybersecurity, tariffs, competitive and technological factors, inflation, among
others, which are set forth in the “Risk Factors” of Part I, ltem 1A, and the "Safe Harbor Statement" of Part Il, Item 7, to the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended September 30, 2021 and in subsequent reports filed with the SEC, which are hereby incorporated by reference.

On May 4, 2022, Emerson announced its intention to exit business operations in Russia and is exploring strategic options to divest Metran, its Russia-based
manufacturing subsidiary. Emerson is committed to an orderly transfer of these assets and will support its employees through this process. Emerson's historical
net sales in Russia were principally in the Automation Solutions segment and in total, represent approximately 1.5 percent of consolidated annual sales. As of
March 31, 2022, Emerson's Russian operations had net assets of approximately $50 and accumulated foreign currency translation losses of approximately
$145 (which will be recognized as a non-cash charge when the exit is completed). The Company is currently unable to estimate the full financial consequences
of the exit due to uncertainty regarding the commercial terms of the exit and related tax impacts.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains a system of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in its reports under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported in a timely manner. This system also is designed to ensure information is
accumulated and communicated to management, including the Company's certifying officers, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on
an evaluation performed, the certifying officers have concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered
by this report.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, there can be no assurance that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures will detect or uncover all failures of persons
within the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries to report material information otherwise required to be set forth in the Company's reports.

There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities (shares in 000s).
Maximum Number of

Total Number of Shares Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number of Shares  Average Price Paid Purchased as Part of Publicly Purchased Under the
Period Purchased Per Share Announced Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
January 2022 268 $91.45 268 57,201
February 2022 25 $91.83 25 57,176
March 2022 — — — 57,176
Total 293 $91.48 293 57,176

In November 2015, the Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to 70 million shares. In March 2020, the Board of Directors authorized the purchase of
an additional 60 million shares and a total of approximately 57.2 million shares remain available for purchase under the authorizations.

Item 6. Exhibits

(a) Exhibits (Listed by numbers corresponding to the Exhibit Table of Item 601 in Regulation S-K).

2(b) Amendment No. 1 to the Transaction Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 23, 2022, among_Emerson Electric Co., Aspen
Technology,_Inc., EMR Worldwide Inc., Emersub CX, Inc. and Emersub CXI, Inc.

2(c)* Amendment No. 2 to the Transaction Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 3, 2022, among_Emerson Electric Co., Aspen Technology,

32 Certifications pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(b).and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

101 Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in iXBRL (Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i)
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the three and six months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, (ii) Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income for the three and six months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30,
2021 and March 31, 2022, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Equity for the three and six months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, (v) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the three
and six months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).

* Certain schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. Emerson agrees to furnish supplementally a copy
of any omitted schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon request. Portions of this exhibit have been redacted in compliance with Regulation S-K Item
601(b)(10).
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

EMERSON ELECTRIC CO.

By /s/ F. J. Dellaquila
Frank J. Dellaquila
Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(on behalf of the registrant and as Chief Financial Officer)
May 4, 2022
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Exhibit 2(b)

AMENDMENT NO. 1
TO THE TRANSACTION AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

This AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO TRANSACTION AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this “Amendment No. 1), dated as
of March 23, 2022, is by and among Aspen Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Aspen”), Emerson Electric Co., a Missouri corporation
(“Emerson”), EMR Worldwide Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Emerson (“Emerson Sub”), Emersub CX, Inc., a
Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Emerson (“Newco”), and Emersub CXI, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly
owned subsidiary of Newco (“Merger Subsidiary”). Each of Aspen, Emerson, Emerson Sub, Newco and Merger Subsidiary is referred to as a
“Party,” and collectively, as the “Parties.”

WHEREAS, the Parties are parties to the Transaction Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Transaction Agreement”), dated as of
October 10, 2021 (the “Original Execution Date”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 13.03 of the Transaction Agreement, the Parties desire to amend certain terms of the Transaction
Agreement to the extent provided herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the
Parties hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Amendment to Exhibit G to the Transaction Agreement. Exhibit G (Form of Newco Certificate of Incorporation) to the
Transaction Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced in its entirety with Exhibit G-1 hereto.

Section 2. Effect of Amendment. From and after the date hereof, each reference in the Transaction Agreement to “this Agreement,”
“hereof,” “hereunder” or words of like import referring to the Transaction Agreement (or any schedule or exhibit thereof) shall be deemed a
reference to the Transaction Agreement (and such schedule or exhibit) as amended hereby. The Parties agree that all references in the Transaction
Agreement to “the date hereof” or “the date of this Agreement” shall refer to the Original Execution Date. Except as and to the extent expressly
modified by this Amendment No. 1, the Transaction Agreement (or any schedule or exhibit thereof) is not otherwise amended, modified or
supplemented and shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.

Section 3. Other Provisions. This Amendment hereby incorporates the provisions of Sections 1.02 (Other Definitional and Interpretive
Provisions), 13.03 (Amendments and Waivers), 13.05 (Disclosure Schedules), 13.06 (Binding Effect; Benefit; Assignment), 13.07 (Governing
Law), 13.08 (Jurisdiction), 13.09 (Counterparts; Effectiveness); 13.10 (Entire Agreement), 13.11 (Severability) and 13.12 (Specific Performance)
of the Transaction Agreement as if fully set forth herein, mutatis mutandis.

[Signature Page Follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 1 to be duly executed by their respective authorized
officers as of the day and year first above written.

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ Antonio J. Pietri

Name: Antonio J. Pietri

Title: President and Chief Executive
Officer

EMERSON ELECTRIC CO.

By: /s/ Vincent M. Servello
Name: Vincent M. Servello
Title: Vice President

EMR WORLDWIDE INC.

By: /s/ Vincent M. Servello
Name: Vincent M. Servello
Title: Vice President

EMERSUB CX, INC.

By: /s/ Vincent M. Servello
Name: Vincent M. Servello
Title: Vice President

EMERSUB CXI, INC.

By: /s/ Vincent M. Servello
Name: Vincent M. Servello
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to the Transaction Agreement and Plan of Merger]
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Exhibit G-1

FORM OF AMENDED AND RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
Aspen Technology, Inc.

The date of the filing of its original certificate of incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware was October 8, 2021.
The Corporation was originally incorporated under the name Emersub CX, Inc.

ARTICLE 1
NAME

The name of the corporation is Aspen Technology, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

ARTICLE 2
REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

The address of its registered office in the State of Delaware is Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, City of Wilmington, County
of New Castle, Delaware 19801. The name of its registered agent at such address is The Corporation Trust Company.

ARTICLE 3
PURPOSE AND POWERS

The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (the “DGCL”).



ARTICLE 4
CAPITAL STOCK

(A) Authorized Shares

1. Classes of Stock. The total number of shares of stock that the Corporation shall have authority to issue is [®], consisting of [®] shares of
Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock”), and [e] shares of Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the
“Preferred Stock™).

2. Preferred Stock. Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more classes or series pursuant to a resolution or
resolutions providing for such issue duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) and the filing of a certificate
pursuant to the DGCL (a “Preferred Designation”), authority to do so being hereby expressly vested in the Board. The Board is further
authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by law, to fix by resolution or resolutions the designations, powers, preferences and rights, and the
qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, of any classes or series of Preferred Stock, including without limitation authority to fix by
resolution or resolutions the dividend rights, dividend rate, conversion rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption (including sinking fund
provisions), redemption price or prices, and liquidation preferences of any such class or series, and the number of shares constituting any such
class or series and the designation thereof, or any of the foregoing. The powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special
rights of each class or series of Preferred Stock, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, if any, may differ from those of any and
all other classes or series at any time outstanding. The number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock may be increased or decreased (but not
below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of all of the then-
outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon, irrespective of the provisions of Section 242(b)(2) of the DGCL,
subject to obtaining a vote of the holders of any classes or series of Preferred Stock, if such a vote is required pursuant to the terms of this
Certificate of Incorporation (including any Preferred Designation).

(B) Voting Rights

Each holder of Common Stock, as such, shall be entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held of record by such holder on all
matters on which stockholders generally are entitled to vote; provided that, except as otherwise required by law, holders of Common Stock, as
such, shall not be entitled to vote on any amendment to this Certificate of Incorporation (including any Preferred Designation) that relates solely to
the terms of one or more outstanding classes or series of Preferred Stock if the holders of such affected class or series are entitled, either separately
or together with the holders of one or more other such classes or series, to vote thereon pursuant to this Certificate

G-1-2



of Incorporation (including any Preferred Designation) or pursuant to the DGCL.

ARTICLE 5
BYLAWS

Subject to the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, dated as of [®], among the Corporation, Emerson Electric Co., a Missouri corporation
(“Emerson”), and EMR Worldwide Inc., a Delaware corporation (as amended from time to time, the “Stockholders Agreement”), the Board shall
have the power to adopt, amend or repeal the bylaws of the Corporation (the “Bylaws”). The Stockholders Agreement shall be publicly available
with the Company’s public filings.

ARTICLE 6
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(A) Power of the Board of Directors. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the
Board.

(B) Election of Directors. Subject to the terms of the Stockholders’ Agreement and any Preferred Designation, the number of directors of
the Corporation shall be as from time to time fixed by, or in the manner provided in, the Bylaws of the Corporation. There shall be no cumulative
voting in the election of directors. Election of directors need not be by written ballot unless the Bylaws so provide.

(C) Vacancies. Subject to the terms of the Stockholders Agreement and any Preferred Designation, vacancies on the Board resulting from
death, resignation, removal or otherwise and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors may be filled
solely by a majority of the directors then in office (although less than a quorum) or by the sole remaining director, and each director so elected
shall hold office until his or her successor is elected and qualified.

(D) Removal. Any director or the entire Board may be removed from office at any time with or without cause by the affirmative vote of

the holders of a majority of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon or
pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders Agreement with respect to the parties to such agreement and any Preferred Designation.
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ARTICLE 7
MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

(A) Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of stockholders for the election of directors to succeed those whose terms expire and for the
transaction of such other business as may properly come before the meeting shall be held at such place, if any, on such date, and at such time as
the Bylaws may provide.

(B) Special Meetings. Except as otherwise provided for in any Preferred Designation, special meetings of the stockholders may only be
called as set forth in the Bylaws.

(C) Action by Consent. If Emerson and its affiliates beneficially own in the aggregate at least 20% of the voting power of all of the then-
outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation, any action required or permitted to be taken at any annual or special meeting of
stockholders may be taken by consent of stockholders without a meeting; provided that, if Emerson and its affiliates do not beneficially own at
least 20% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation, then any action required or permitted to be
taken at any annual or special meeting of stockholders may be taken upon the vote of stockholders at an annual or special meeting duly noticed
and called in accordance with the DGCL and this Article 7 and may not be taken by consent of stockholders without a meeting (except pursuant to
any Preferred Designation). For purposes of this Section (C) of Article 7, “affiliate” means a person that directly, or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, another person.

ARTICLE 8
INDEMNIFICATION

(A) Limited Liability. A director of the Corporation shall not be liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for
breach of fiduciary duty as a director to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

(B) Right to Indemnification.

(1) Each person (and the heirs, executors or administrators of such person) who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to, or
is involved in any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason
of the fact that such person is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director or
officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise (each, a “Covered Person”), shall be indemnified and held
harmless by the Corporation to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL. The right to indemnification
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conferred in this Article 8 shall also include the right to be paid by the Corporation the expenses incurred in connection with any such proceeding
in advance of its final disposition to the fullest extent authorized by applicable law. The right to indemnification conferred in this Article 8 shall be
a contract right.

(2) If a claim for indemnification (following the final disposition of such proceeding) or advancement of expenses under this Article 8 is
not paid in full within 30 days after a written claim therefor by the Covered Person has been received by the Corporation, the Covered Person may
file suit to recover the unpaid amount of such claim and, if successful in whole or in part, shall be entitled to be paid the expense (including
attorney’s fees) of prosecuting such claim to the fullest extent permitted by law. In any such action the Corporation shall have the burden of
proving that the Covered Person is not entitled to the requested indemnification or advancement of expenses under applicable law.

(3) The Corporation may, by action of the Board, provide indemnification and advancement of expenses to such of the employees and
agents of the Corporation to such extent and to such effect as the Board shall determine to be appropriate and authorized by applicable law.

(C) Insurance. The Corporation shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director,
officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of
another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss incurred by such person in any such
capacity or arising out of such person’s status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against
such liability under the DGCL.

(D) Priority of Corporation Obligations. The Corporation hereby acknowledges that a Covered Person may have certain rights of
indemnification, advancement of expenses and/or insurance provided by persons (an “Other Indemnitor”) other than the Corporation or an
affiliate of the Corporation. The Corporation hereby agrees (i) that it is the indemnitor of first resort (i.e., its obligations to the Covered Persons are
primary and any obligation of the Other Indemnitors to advance expenses or to provide indemnification for the same expenses or liabilities
incurred by such Covered Persons are secondary), (ii) that it shall be required to advance the full amount of expenses incurred by such Covered
Persons and shall be liable for the full amount of all expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and amounts paid in settlement, in each case to the
extent legally permitted and as required by the terms of this Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws (or any other agreement between the
Corporation and such Covered Persons), without regard to any rights such Covered Persons may have against the Other Indemnitors, and (iii) that
it irrevocably waives, relinquishes and releases the Other Indemnitors from any and all claims against the Other Indemnitors for contribution,
subrogation or any other recovery of any kind in respect thereof. The Corporation further agrees that no advancement or
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payment by the Other Indemnitors on behalf of such Covered Persons with respect to any claim for which such Covered Persons have sought
indemnification from the Corporation shall affect the foregoing and the Other Indemnitors shall be subrogated to the extent of such advancement
or payment to all of the rights of recovery of such Covered Persons against the Corporation. The Other Indemnitors are express third party
beneficiaries of the terms of this clause (D).

(E) Nonexclusivity of Rights. The rights and authority conferred in this Article 8 shall not be exclusive of any other right that any person
may otherwise have or hereafter acquire.

(F) Preservation of Rights. Neither the amendment nor repeal of this Article 8, nor the adoption of any provision of this Certificate of
Incorporation or the Bylaws, nor, to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, any modification of law, shall adversely affect any right or
protection of any person granted pursuant hereto existing at, or arising out of or related to any event, act or omission that occurred prior to, the
time of such amendment, repeal, adoption or modification (regardless of when any proceeding (or part thereof) relating to such event, act or
omission arises or is first threatened, commenced or completed).

ARTICLE 9
CORPORATE OPPORTUNITIES

The Corporation has waived certain corporate opportunities as identified in the Stockholders Agreement, such that Emerson and the other
persons specified therein shall not be liable to the Corporation, its affiliates or its stockholders for breach of any fiduciary duty as a stockholder or
director of the Corporation from pursuit of such opportunities as set forth in the Stockholders Agreement. Any person or entity purchasing or
otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in the shares of capital stock of the Corporation shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the
foregoing.

ARTICLE 10
AMENDMENTS

The Corporation reserves the right to amend this Certificate of Incorporation in any manner permitted by the DGCL and all rights and
powers conferred upon stockholders, directors and officers herein are granted subject to this reservation.

ARTICLE 11
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION FOR CERTAIN ACTIONS AND SEVERABILITY

Unless the Board otherwise approves in writing the selection of an alternate forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if
the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware does not have jurisdiction, the Superior
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Court of the State of Delaware, or, if the Superior Court of the State of Delaware also does not have jurisdiction, the United States District Court
for the District of Delaware) shall, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, be the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or
proceeding brought on behalf of the Corporation, (ii) any action asserting a claim for or based on a breach of a duty (including any fiduciary duty)
owed by any current or former director, officer or other employee or stockholder to the Corporation or the Corporation’s stockholders, including a
claim alleging the aiding and abetting of such a breach of a fiduciary duty, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any provision of the
DGCL or this Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, (iv) any action asserting a claim related to, involving or against the Corporation
governed by the internal affairs doctrine or (v) any action asserting an “internal corporate claim” as that term is defined in Section 115 of the
DGCL (each, a “Covered Proceeding”); provided that the foregoing shall not apply to claims arising under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Unless the Board otherwise approves in writing the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United States of
America shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Failure to enforce the provisions of this Article 11 would cause the Corporation irreparable harm and the Corporation shall be entitled to
equitable relief, including injunctive relief and specific performance, to enforce the foregoing provisions. Any person or entity purchasing or
otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in the shares of capital stock of the Corporation shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the
provisions of this Article 11 and waived any argument relating to the inconvenience of the forums referenced above in. The existence of any prior
written approval by the Corporation of an alternative forum shall not act as a waiver of the Corporation’s ongoing consent right as set forth in this
Article 11 with respect to any current or future actions or claims.

If any provision or provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable as applied to any
person or entity or circumstance for any reason whatsoever, then, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the validity, legality and enforceability of
such provisions in any other circumstance and of the remaining provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation (including each portion of any
paragraph of this Certificate of Incorporation containing any such provision held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable that is not itself held to be
invalid, illegal or unenforceable) shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
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ARTICLE 12
DGCL SECTION 203 AND BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(A) The Corporation hereby expressly elects not to be governed by Section 203 of the DGCL.

(B) The Corporation shall not engage in any business combination with any interested stockholder for a period of three years following the
time that such stockholder became an interested stockholder, unless:

1. prior to such time, the Board approved either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the stockholder
becoming an interested stockholder;

2. upon consummation of the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested
stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation at the
time the transaction commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of
capital stock of the Corporation (but not the voting power of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation owned
by the interested stockholder) those shares owned (i) by persons who are directors and also officers and (ii) employee stock plans in
which employee participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be
tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or

3. at or subsequent to such time, the business combination is approved by the Board and authorized at an annual or special meeting of
stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 66%:% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding
shares of capital stock of the Corporation which is not owned by the interested stockholder.

For purposes of this Article 12, references to:

“affiliate” means a person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common
control with, another person.

“associate,” when used to indicate a relationship with any person, means: (i) any corporation, partnership, unincorporated association or

other entity of which such person is a director, officer or partner or is, directly or indirectly, the owner of 20% or more of any class of
voting
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stock; (ii) any trust or other estate in which such person has at least a 20% beneficial interest or as to which such person serves as trustee or
in a similar fiduciary capacity; and (iii) any relative or spouse of such person, or any relative of such spouse, who has the same residence
as such person.

“Emerson Direct Transferee” means any person that acquires (other than in a registered public offering or through a broker’s transaction
executed on any securities exchange or other over-the-counter market) directly from Emerson or any of its affiliates or successors or any
“group,” or any member of any such group, of which such persons are a party under Rule 13d-5 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
beneficial ownership of 5% or more of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation.

“business combination,” when used in reference to the Corporation and any interested stockholder of the Corporation, means:

1. any merger or consolidation of the Corporation or any direct or indirect majority-owned subsidiary of the Corporation (a) with the
interested stockholder, or (b) with any other corporation, partnership, unincorporated association or other entity if the merger or
consolidation is caused by the interested stockholder and as a result of such merger or consolidation Section (B) of this Article 12 is
not applicable to the surviving entity;

2. any sale, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge, transfer or other disposition (in one transaction or a series of transactions), except
proportionately as a stockholder of the Corporation, to or with the interested stockholder, whether as part of a dissolution or
otherwise, of assets of the Corporation or of any direct or indirect majority-owned subsidiary of the Corporation which assets have
an aggregate market value equal to 10% or more of either the aggregate market value of all the assets of the Corporation
determined on a consolidated basis or the aggregate market value of all the outstanding stock of the Corporation;

3. any transaction which results in the issuance or transfer by the Corporation or by any direct or indirect majority-owned subsidiary
of the Corporation of any stock of the Corporation or of such subsidiary to the interested stockholder, except: (a) pursuant to the
exercise, exchange or conversion of securities exercisable for, exchangeable for or convertible into stock of the Corporation or any
such subsidiary which securities were outstanding prior to the time that the interested stockholder became such; (b) pursuant to a
merger under Section 251(g) of the DGCL; (¢) pursuant to a dividend or distribution paid or made, or the exercise, exchange or
conversion of securities
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exercisable for, exchangeable for or convertible into stock of the Corporation or any such subsidiary which security is distributed,
pro rata to all holders of a class or series of stock of the Corporation subsequent to the time the interested stockholder became such;
(d) pursuant to an exchange offer by the Corporation to purchase stock made on the same terms to all holders of said stock; or (e)
any issuance or transfer of stock by the Corporation; provided, however, that in no case under items (c)-(e) of this clause (3) shall
there be an increase in the interested stockholder’s proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the Corporation or of
the voting stock of the Corporation (except as a result of immaterial changes due to fractional share adjustments);

4. any transaction involving the Corporation or any direct or indirect majority-owned subsidiary of the Corporation which has the
effect, directly or indirectly, of increasing the proportionate share of the stock of any class or series, or securities convertible into
the stock of any class or series, of the Corporation or of any such subsidiary which is owned by the interested stockholder, except as
a result of immaterial changes due to fractional share adjustments or as a result of any purchase or redemption of any shares of
stock not caused, directly or indirectly, by the interested stockholder; or

5. any receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit, directly or indirectly (except proportionately as a stockholder of the
Corporation), of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges, or other financial benefits (other than those expressly permitted in
clauses 1 to 4) provided by or through the Corporation or any direct or indirect majority-owned subsidiary.

EENT3

“control,” including the terms “controlling,” “controlled by” and “under common control with,” means the possession, directly or
indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through the ownership of
voting stock, by contract, or otherwise. A person who is the owner of 20% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the Corporation,
partnership, unincorporated association or other entity shall be presumed to have control of such entity, in the absence of proof by a
preponderance of the evidence to the contrary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a presumption of control shall not apply where such person
holds voting stock, in good faith and not for the purpose of circumventing this Article 12, as an agent, bank, broker, nominee, custodian or
trustee for one or more owners who do not individually or as a group have control of such entity.
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“interested stockholder” means any person (other than the Corporation or any direct or indirect majority-owned subsidiary of the
Corporation) that (i) is the owner of 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the Corporation, or (ii) is an affiliate or associate of
the Corporation and was the owner of 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the Corporation at any time within the three year
period immediately prior to the date on which it is sought to be determined whether such person is an interested stockholder; and the
affiliates and associates of such person; but “interested stockholder” shall not include or be deemed to include, in any case, (a) Emerson,
any Emerson Direct Transferee, or any of their respective affiliates or successors or any “group,” or any member of any such group, to
which such persons are a party under Rule 13d-5 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or (b) any person whose ownership of shares in
excess of the 15% limitation set forth herein is the result of any action taken solely by the Corporation, provided that such person shall be
an interested stockholder if thereafter such person acquires additional shares of voting stock of the Corporation, except as a result of
further corporate action not caused, directly or indirectly, by such person. For the purpose of determining whether a person is an interested
stockholder, the voting stock of the Corporation deemed to be outstanding shall include stock deemed to be owned by the person through
application of the definition of “owner” below but shall not include any other unissued stock of the Corporation which may be issuable
pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, or upon exercise of conversion rights, warrants or options, or otherwise.

“owner,” including the terms “own” and “owned,” when used with respect to any stock, means a person that individually or with or
through any of its affiliates or associates:

1. beneficially owns such stock, directly or indirectly; or

2. has (a) the right to acquire such stock (whether such right is exercisable immediately or only after the passage of time) pursuant to
any agreement, arrangement or understanding, or upon the exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights, warrants or options, or
otherwise; provided that a person shall not be deemed the owner of stock tendered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made by
such person or any of such person’s affiliates or associates until such tendered stock is accepted for purchase or exchange; or (b) the
right to vote such stock pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding; provided that a person shall not be deemed the
owner of any stock because of such person’s right to vote such stock if the agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such
stock arises solely from a revocable proxy or consent given in response to a proxy or consent solicitation made to ten or more
persons; or
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3. has any agreement, arrangement or understanding for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting (except voting pursuant to a
revocable proxy or consent as described in item (b) of subsection (2) above), or disposing of such stock with any other person that
beneficially owns, or whose affiliates or associates beneficially own, directly or indirectly, such stock.

“person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, unincorporated association or other entity.
“stock” means, with respect to any corporation, capital stock and, with respect to any other entity, any equity interest.
“voting stock” means stock of any class or series entitled to vote generally in the election of directors.

ARTICLE 13
STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT

Notwithstanding anything in this Certificate of Incorporation to the contrary (including the provisions of Article 3 hereof), (i) the
Corporation is not authorized to engage in any act or activity that would constitute a breach by the Corporation of Article IIT (except for Section
3.7), Section 4.2(e), Section 4.3, Section 4.4, Section 4.9 or Section 7.6 of the Stockholders Agreement (the “Specified Provisions™), and (ii) the
Corporation shall lack the power to engage in any such act or activity, unless (in the case of either of clauses (i) or (ii)) such act or activity is
approved, or ratified after such act or activity occurs, by the parties to the Stockholders Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, a breach of the
Specified Provisions shall not occur if an act or activity would constitute a breach of a contractual right relating to such Specified Provision of one
or more of the parties to the Stockholders Agreement and such right has been waived (either by a limited waiver or otherwise) by such parties.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation this day of
,20 .

Aspen Technology, Inc.

Aspen Technology, Inc.

[Name]
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Title: Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 2(c)

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO TRANSACTION AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
This AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO TRANSACTION AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this “Amendment”), dated as of May 3, 2022, is by and among Aspen
Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Aspen”), Emerson Electric Co., a Missouri corporation (“Emerson”), EMR Worldwide Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly
owned subsidiary of Emerson (“Emerson Sub”), Emersub CX, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Emerson (“Newco”), and Emersub CXI, Inc., a
Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Newco (“Merger Subsidiary”). Each of Aspen, Emerson, Emerson Sub, Newco and Merger Subsidiary are referred to
as a “Party,” and collectively, as the “Parties.”

WHEREAS, the Parties are parties to that certain Transaction Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 10, 2021 (the “Original Execution Date”) as
amended on March 23, 2022 (the “Agreement”);

WHEREAS, this Amendment is being delivered pursuant to Section 13.03 of the Agreement which provides that the Agreement may not be amended except by an
instrument in writing signed by each of the Parties; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend certain terms of the Agreement to the extent provided herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Defined Terms. Each capitalized term used herein but not defined herein has the meaning assigned to such term in the Agreement.
Section 2. Amendment to Certain Sections of the Agreement.

(a) The definition of “Emerson Excluded Assets” in Section 1.01(a) of the Agreement is hereby amended by (i) striking the word “and” that appears at the
end of clause (x) thereof, (ii) adding at the end of clause (xi) thereof the word “and” and (iii) adding a new clause (xii) as follows:

(xii) the other property and assets described on Section 1.01(m) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule;
(b) The definition of “Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employees” in Section 1.01(a) of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:
“Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employees” means the Echo Business Employees (other than the Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business
Employees) who fall within the scope of the Automatic Transfer Regulations and whose employment will automatically transfer at the Effective Time to Newco or one

of its Subsidiaries (including an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary) pursuant to the Automatic Transfer Regulations in connection with the Transactions.
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(¢) The definition of “Continuing Echo Business Employees” in Section 1.01(a) of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

“Continuing Echo Business Employees” means, collectively, (i) the Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employees and the Deferred TSA Automatic
Transfer Business Employees who do not expressly object to the transfer of their employment, (ii) the Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Business Employees who are
employed by an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary or any Subsidiary of an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary as of immediately prior to the Closing and (iii) the Emerson
Offer Business Employees, the Deferred Transfer Business Employees and the Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employees who accept (or are deemed
to accept) an offer of employment from Newco or Aspen or one of their Subsidiaries, in each case of the foregoing clauses (i), (ii) and (iii), who continue as employees
of Newco or Aspen or one of their Subsidiaries immediately following the Applicable Transfer Time (or such later time as may be required by Applicable Law).

(d) The definition of “Emerson Offer Business Employee” in Section 1.01(a) of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

“Emerson Offer Business Employee” means any Echo Business Employee who is not an Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employee, a Deferred Transfer
Business Employee, a Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employee, a Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employee, or an Emerson
Contributed Subsidiary Business Employee.

(e) Section 1.01(a) of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding new definitions as follows:

“Abu Dhabi Conditions” means the closing conditions set forth under the heading “Abu Dhabi Conditions” on Section 7.05(c) of the Emerson Disclosure
Schedule.

“Applicable Transfer Time” means, (a) with respect to a Continuing Employee who is either (i) an Emerson Offer Business Employee, (ii) an Aspen Offer
Employee, (iii) an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Business Employee, (iv) an Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employee or (v) an Aspen Employee, the Effective
Time, (b) with respect to a Continuing Employee who is a Deferred Transfer Business Employee, in the case (i) the Deferred Transfer Business Employee’s
jurisdiction of employment is Malaysia, the effective time of the Deferred Malaysia Closing, (ii) the Deferred Transfer Business Employee’s jurisdiction of
employment is Saudi Arabia, the effective time of the Deferred Saudi Closing, (iii) the Deferred Transfer Business Employee’s jurisdiction of employment is Bahrain,
the effective time of the Deferred Bahrain Closing, and (iv) the Deferred Transfer Business Employee’s jurisdiction of employment is Abu Dhabi, the effective time of
the Deferred Abu Dhabi Closing and (c) with respect to a Continuing Employee who is a Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employee or a Deferred TSA
Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employee, the date such employee ceases to provide services pursuant to the Transition Services Agreement.
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“Bahrain Conditions” means the closing conditions set forth under the heading “Bahrain Conditions” on Section 7.05(c) of the Emerson Disclosure
Schedule.

“Deferred Abu Dhabi Business” means the Emerson Contributed Assets and Emerson Assumed Liabilities held by the UAE branch of Emerson Process
Management Distribution Limited.

“Deferred Abu Dhabi Closing” means the transfer of the Deferred Abu Dhabi Business to Newco or one of its designated Subsidiaries at or after the Closing
upon the satisfaction or waiver of Abu Dhabi Conditions.

“Deferred Bahrain Business” means the Deferred Transfer Business Employees employed by Rosemount Tank Gauging (Middle East) SPC and the services
provided by such employees.

“Deferred Bahrain Closing” means the transfer of the Deferred Bahrain Business to Newco or one of its designated Subsidiaries at or after the Closing upon
the satisfaction or waiver of Bahrain Conditions.

“Deferred Business” means the Deferred Malaysia Business, the Deferred Saudi Business, the Deferred Bahrain Business or the Deferred Abu Dhabi
Business, as applicable.

“Deferred Closing” means the Deferred Malaysia Closing, Deferred Saudi Closing, the Deferred Bahrain Closing and Deferred Abu Dhabi Closing, as
applicable.

“Deferred Closing Conditions” means the Malaysia Conditions, Saudi Conditions, Bahrain Conditions and Abu Dhabi Conditions, as applicable.

“Deferred Closing Date” means the date of the Deferred Malaysia Closing, the date of the Deferred Saudi Closing, the date of the Deferred Bahrain Closing
or the date of the Deferred Abu Dhabi Closing, as applicable.



“Deferred Closing Period Taxes” means, with respect to a Deferred Business, Taxes for the period beginning on the day after the Closing Date and ending
on the applicable Deferred Closing Date (the “Deferred Closing Period”) incurred by, or imposed on, such Deferred Business, computed on the basis of apportioning
items attributable to each Deferred Business under applicable accounting principles, as if such Deferred Business were a separate legal entity, solely during the
Deferred Closing Period that was not part of any Combined Group (as defined in the Tax Matters Agreement) with any Emerson Retained Subsidiary as follows:

a. with respect to Taxes that are based on or measured by income, sales, use, receipts, or other similar items, the amount of such Taxes attributable to the Deferred Closing
Period shall be determined based on a hypothetical closing of the books and records on the close of the Closing Date and a hypothetical closing of the books and
records on the close of the applicable Deferred Closing Date; provided that, exemptions, allowances or deductions that are attributable to such Deferred Business
under applicable accounting principles and are calculated on an annual basis (including, but not limited to, depreciation and amortization deductions) shall be allocated
to the Deferred Closing Period by multiplying the total amount of such exemptions, allowances or deductions for the annual period by a fraction, the numerator of
which is the number of calendar days in the Deferred Closing Period, and the denominator of which is the number of calendar days in the annual period (except to the
extent otherwise agreed by Emerson and Newco); and

b. for Taxes other than those described in the preceding clause a, the amount of such Taxes attributable to the Deferred Closing Period shall be determined by multiplying
the total amount of such Tax for the entire taxable period by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of calendar days in the Deferred Closing Period, and the
denominator of which is the number of calendar days in the entire taxable period.

“Deferred Malaysia Business” means the Emerson Contributed Assets and Emerson Assumed Liabilities held by Emerson Process Management (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd.

“Deferred Malaysia Closing” means the transfer of the Deferred Malaysia Business to Newco or one of its designated Subsidiaries at or after the Closing upon the
satisfaction or waiver of Malaysia Conditions.

“Deferred Saudi Business” means the Emerson Contributed Assets and Emerson Assumed Liabilities held by Emerson Saudi Arabia LLC.

“Deferred Saudi Closing” means the transfer of the Deferred Saudi Business to Newco or one of its designated Subsidiaries at or after the Closing upon the
satisfaction or waiver of Saudi Conditions.

“Deferred Transfer Business Employee” means each Echo Business Employee who, as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, is employed by Emerson or any
of its Subsidiaries (other than the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries) in either Saudi Arabia, Bahrain, Abu Dhabi or Malaysia.
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“Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employee” means each Echo Business Employee who (i) as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, is employed
by Emerson or any of its Subsidiaries (other than the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries), (ii) from and after the Effective Time provides services under the Transition Services
Agreement and (iii) falls within the scope of the Automatic Transfer Regulations and whose employment will automatically transfer at the Applicable Transfer Time to Newco
or one of its Subsidiaries (including an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary) pursuant to the Automatic Transfer Regulations in connection with the cessation of his or her
provision of services pursuant to the Transition Services Agreement.

“Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employee” means each Echo Business Employee (other than any Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business
Employee) who, (i) as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, is employed by Emerson or any of its Subsidiaries (other than the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries) and (ii)
from and after the Effective Time provides services under the Transition Services Agreement.

“Malaysia Conditions” means the closing conditions set forth under the heading “Malaysia Conditions” on Section 7.05(c) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule.

“Recipient,” when used in connection with the Specified Agreements, shall have the meaning ascribed to it as set forth on Section 4.14(d) of the Emerson Disclosure
Schedule.

“Saudi Conditions” means the closing conditions set forth under the heading “Saudi Conditions” on Section 7.05(c) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule.

“Specified Agreements” means (a) the Specified License Agreement and (b) any and all other Contracts between Emerson or any of its Affiliates, on the one hand,
and the Recipient, on the other hand, in each case, in effect (in whole or in part) as of the Closing Date and any and all amendments, attachments, exhibits, annexes, schedules,
extensions and other modifications thereto.

“Specified Amount,” when used in connection with the Specified License Agreement, shall have the meaning ascribed to it as set forth on Section 4.14(d) of the
Emerson Disclosure Schedule.

“Specified License Agreement” means the license agreement set forth on Section 4.14(d) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule.
(f) Section 2.01 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

The Closing. Except for the Deferred Closings, the closing of the Transactions (the “Closing”) shall take place in New York City at the offices of Davis Polk &
Wardwell LLP, 450 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York, 10017 at 10:00 a.m., Eastern time, as soon as possible after (but in any event no later than the second Business
Day after) the date the conditions set forth in Article 10 (other than conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or, to the
extent permitted by Applicable Law, waiver of such conditions by the party or parties entitled to the benefit thereof at the Closing) have been satisfied or, to the extent permitted
by Applicable Law, waived by the party or parties entitled to the benefit thereof, or at such other place, at such other time or on such other date as Emerson and Aspen may
mutually agree (the date on which the Closing occurs, the “Closing Date”).



(g) Section 2.02(a)(ii) of the Agreement is hereby amended by changing the reference to “Section 2.02(a)” therein to “Section 2.02(a)(i)”.

(h) Section 4.03 of the Agreement is hereby amended by striking “and” and adding “(iv) as described in the Deferred Closing Conditions and (v)” after
“federal securities laws,” therein.

(i) Each of Sections 4.12, 4.13(a), 4.13(b) and 4.13(c) of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “and the Deferred Closings” after “after giving effect
to the Pre-Closing Restructuring” in each place where such language occurs.

(j) Section 4.13(d) of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

(i) (1) The properties and assets of Newco, Merger Subsidiary and the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries ((x) including, after giving effect to the Pre-
Closing Restructuring, the Emerson Contributed Assets, but (y) excluding the Emerson Contributed Assets held by all Deferred Businesses, and (z) taking into account
any property and services to be provided under the Ancillary Agreements and the Intellectual Property licensed under Section 7.17(b)) constitute in all material
respects all of the property and assets that are owned, licensed or controlled by Emerson or any of its Affiliates as of the Closing Date that are reasonably necessary for
the conduct of the Echo Business (other than the Deferred Businesses) as conducted as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date.

(2) Other than with respect to Intellectual Property, none of the Emerson Excluded Assets are owned, used or held for use primarily in the conduct
of the Echo Business.

(i) With respect to each Deferred Business, after giving effect to the Deferred Closings, the properties and assets of Newco, Merger Subsidiary and the
Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries (including, after giving effect to the Deferred Closings in the applicable jurisdiction, the Emerson Contributed Assets, and taking
into account any property and services to be provided under the Ancillary Agreements and the Intellectual Property licensed under Section 7.17(b)) constitute in all
material respects all of the property and assets that are owned, licensed or controlled by Emerson or any of its Affiliates as of the applicable Deferred Closing Date that
are reasonably necessary for the conduct of the Echo Business in the jurisdiction of such Deferred Business as conducted as of the date hereof and as of the applicable
Deferred Closing Date.

(iii) The properties and assets of Newco, Merger Subsidiary and the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries ((x) including, after giving effect to the Pre-Closing
Restructuring but without giving effect to the Deferred Closings, the Emerson Contributed Assets and (y) taking into account the Intellectual Property licensed under
Section 7.17(b)), together with the Echo Business Employees (excluding the Deferred Transfer Business Employees) and with any property and services to be
provided by Emerson and the Emerson Retained Subsidiaries to Newco, Merger Subsidiary or the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries under the Ancillary Agreements
(and if applicable, the Commercial Agreement Term Sheet), comprise all of the assets, personnel and properties that would be necessary and sufficient in all material
respects for Newco to conduct the Echo Business (other than the Deferred Businesses) in substantially the same manner as conducted as of the date hereof and as of
the Closing Date.



(iv) With respect to each Deferred Business, after giving effect to the Deferred Closings, the properties and assets of Newco, Merger Subsidiary and the
Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries ((x) including, after giving effect to the Pre-Closing Restructuring and the applicable Deferred Closing, the Emerson Contributed
Assets as of the Closing, (y) including the Emerson Contributed Assets transferred to Newco or its Subsidiaries at the applicable Deferred Closing pursuant to Section
7.05, and (z) taking into account the Intellectual Property licensed under Section 7.17(b)), together with the Echo Business Employees (excluding the Deferred
Transfer Business Employees but including any such employee transferred at the applicable Deferred Closing) and with any property and services to be provided by
Emerson and the Emerson Retained Subsidiaries to Newco, Merger Subsidiary or the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries under the Ancillary Agreements (and if
applicable, the Commercial Agreement Term Sheet), comprise all of the assets, personnel and properties that would be necessary and sufficient in all material respects
for Newco to conduct the Echo Business in the jurisdiction of such Deferred Business in substantially the same manner as conducted as of the date hereof and as of the
Closing Date.

(k) Section 4.14(b) of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “and the Deferred Closings” after “after giving effect to the Pre-Closing Restructuring”
in each of the four places where such language occurs in Section 4.14(b).

(I) Section 4.14(c) of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “(excluding any Echo Business Intellectual Property owned by any Deferred Business)”
after “all Echo Business Intellectual Property”.



(m) Section 4.14 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following section “(d)” at the end thereof.

Except as would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, an Emerson Material Adverse Effect: (i) the Specified Agreements are in writing
and true, complete and correct copies of the Specified Agreements have been made available to Aspen, (ii) the Specified Agreements are in full force and effect, (iii) Emerson
and its Affiliates have timely paid any and all amounts, including royalties, owed to the Recipient under the Specified Agreements and all amounts payable or paid under the
Specified Agreements have been fully reflected in Emerson Carveout Financial Statements, (iv) following Closing, none of Newco or any of its Subsidiaries will be restricted
from using, or sublicensing, in connection with the operation of the Echo Business, or assigning to any Aftiliates of Newco, any Intellectual Property owned (solely or jointly)
by, or licensed to, Newco or its Affiliates as a result of or pursuant to the Specified License Agreement and (v) under the Specified License Agreement, no more than the
Specified Amount has been owed to the Recipient during each of the past five (5) years.

(n) The first paragraph of Section 6.01 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “and the Deferred Closings” after “(including with respect to the
implementation of the Pre-Closing Restructuring”.

(0) Section 6.05 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following before “.” at the end of Section 6.05:

; provided that, at Emerson’s and Aspen’s mutual election, the foregoing termination with respect to any Contract or intercompany account relating to a Deferred
Business need not occur until at or prior to the applicable Deferred Closing. For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties acknowledge that Newco and/or its applicable
Subsidiaries, if any, shall be entitled to all benefits and will bear all Liabilities with respect to such Contracts during the period between the Closing and the applicable
Deferred Closing to the same extent as provided for in Section 7.05(e).

(p) Section 7.01(c) of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “(it being understood that the Deferred Closings shall not be a breach of this Section
7.01)” after “so as to enable the Merger to occur prior to the End Date”.



(q) Section 7.05 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Pre-Closing Restructuring.

(a) Prior to the Closing, Emerson shall, and shall cause its Affiliates to, at Emerson’s sole cost and expense, undertake the restructuring transactions set
forth on Exhibit I (the “Pre-Closing Restructuring”) in the manner described on such Exhibit I (the “Pre-Closing Restructuring Plan”), including (a) the transfer by
Emerson and the Emerson Retained Subsidiaries to an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary of each Emerson Contributed Asset, (b) the assumption by an Emerson
Contributed Subsidiary of each Emerson Assumed Liability, (c) the transfer by each Emerson Contributed Subsidiary to Emerson or an Emerson Retained Subsidiary
of each asset of such Emerson Contributed Subsidiary that would be an Emerson Excluded Asset were it held by an Emerson Retained Subsidiary and (d) the
assumption by Emerson or an Emerson Retained Subsidiary of each Liability of an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary that would be an Emerson Excluded Liability
were it a Liability of an Emerson Retained Subsidiary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Emerson shall not, and shall cause its Affiliates not to, (A) transfer any assets,
properties or businesses of any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary to Emerson or any Emerson Retained Subsidiary (other than any asset that would be an Emerson
Excluded Asset were it held by an Emerson Retained Subsidiary) or (B) transfer to any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary, or have any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary
otherwise assume, any Liabilities of Emerson or any Emerson Retained Subsidiary (other than the Emerson Assumed Liabilities). The Pre-Closing Restructuring shall
be consummated in compliance with Applicable Law and pursuant to local share and asset transfer documentation that Aspen has had a reasonable opportunity to

review and comment upon (which final documentation shall incorporate such reasonable comments of Aspen); provided that in the event of any conflict or
inconsistency between the terms of any such local transfer documentation and the Transaction Documents, the terms of the Transaction Documents shall control in all
respects. For the avoidance of doubt, without limiting any rights of Emerson and Newco hereunder, Emerson and Newco shall not, and shall cause their respective
Affiliates not to, bring any claim for any cause of action under any such local transfer documentation. For the avoidance of doubt, except as expressly set forth in this
Agreement, the Tax Matters Agreement governs all tax related matters between or among the Parties or any of their Subsidiaries with respect to the Pre-Closing
Restructuring. The Pre-Closing Restructuring may be amended or modified by Emerson so long as such amendments or modifications would not reasonably be
expected, individually or in the aggregate (1) to be material to Newco and its Subsidiaries (after giving effect to the Closing) (including any new material Liability),
(2) to prevent or materially delay the consummation of the Transactions, (3) to materially interfere with, prevent or materially delay the ability of Aspen or, following
the Closing, Newco or any of its Subsidiaries to perform their obligations under the Transaction Documents or consummate the transactions contemplated thereby, (4)
to change in any material way the scope of the Echo Business being transferred to Newco under this Agreement or the allocation of assets and Liabilities contemplated
by this Agreement, (5) to impose restrictions on the business of Newco following the Closing (other than pursuant to the Tax Matters Agreement) or (6) to result in
material adverse Tax consequences to Aspen, its Affiliates, Newco or any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary that would not be the subject of indemnification by
Emerson under the Tax Matters Agreement; provided that, in each case, Emerson shall reasonably in advance consult in good faith with Aspen in connection with, and
provide Aspen with written notice of, any such amendments and modifications. Emerson shall keep Aspen reasonably informed, upon request, of the status and details
of the Pre-Closing Restructuring.



(b) Emerson agrees that, as of the Closing, each of the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries set forth on Section 7.05(b) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule shall have
at least the amount of cash set forth opposite such Emerson Contributed Subsidiary on Section 7.05(b) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule and such cash shall be used to effect
the applicable Deferred Closings. The Parties agree that the purchase price for the applicable Deferred Business shall be the amount of cash set forth opposite such Deferred
Business on Section 7.05(b) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule.

(c) If one or more of the Malaysia Conditions, the Saudi Conditions, the Bahrain Conditions or the Abu Dhabi Conditions have not been satisfied or waived as of the
Closing, then, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Deferred Malaysia Business, the Deferred Saudi Business, the Deferred Bahrain Business and the
Deferred Abu Dhabi Business, as applicable, shall not be transferred to Newco or its Subsidiaries at the Closing, and the Parties shall work together to effect such transfer as
follows: for each Deferred Closing, the applicable Deferred Business shall be transferred to Newco or its Subsidiaries as soon as possible after (but in any event no later than
the second Business Day after) the date all of the conditions to the relevant Deferred Closing (other than conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at such Deferred
Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law or the applicable Deferred Closing Conditions, waiver of such conditions by Emerson and
Newco at the applicable Deferred Closing) have been satisfied or, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law or the applicable Deferred Closing Conditions, waived by Emerson
and Newco, or at such other place, at such other time or on such other date as Emerson and Newco may mutually agree; provided that (i) it is understood and agreed that not all
Deferred Closings need to occur contemporaneously, (i) Emerson and Newco may mutually elect to waive any applicable Deferred Closing Conditions and may further
mutually elect not to proceed with consummation of any Deferred Closing, and (iii) to the extent a Deferred Closing shall not have occurred by the date that is eighteen months
following the Closing (or such other date as Emerson and Newco may mutually agree), such Deferred Closing shall occur on such date. For the avoidance of doubt, if the
Malaysia Conditions, the Saudi Conditions, the Bahrain Conditions or the Abu Dhabi Conditions are satisfied or waived by Emerson and Aspen prior to the Closing, then the
Deferred Malaysia Closing, the Deferred Saudi Closing, the Deferred Bahrain Closing and the Deferred Abu Dhabi Closing, respectively, shall occur at the Closing. In no event
shall the Deferred Malaysia Closing, the Deferred Saudi Closing, the Deferred Bahrain Closing or the Deferred Abu Dhabi Closing occur prior to the Closing.
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(d) At each Deferred Closing, (i) each of Emerson and Newco shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the other party a duly signed counterpart to a local transfer
agreement in a form substantially similar to the forms included on Section 7.05(d)(i) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule to effectuate each of the Deferred Closings, and any
other documents to the extent required by Applicable Law and (ii) with respect to each Deferred Closing, Newco shall cause the payment of the cash amount and in such
currency, in each case, as set forth opposite such Deferred Closing on Section 7.05(d)(ii) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule in immediately available funds by wire transfer to
such Person and to such account designated by Emerson. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of any such local transfer agreement and the
Transaction Documents, the terms of the Transaction Documents shall control in all respects.

(e)

(i)  With respect to each Deferred Business, as of the Effective Time, Emerson shall transfer, assign and convey, and Newco (or its Affiliates) shall acquire and accept
all of Emerson’s (or its Affiliates’) economic rights, benefits, and interests in and to each Deferred Business; provided that, the foregoing shall not entitle Newco or any of its
Affiliates to the benefit of any payments (including under any “cost-plus” arrangement) made by Newco or its Affiliates to Emerson or its Affiliates, under the Transition
Services Agreement, in respect of the operation of such Deferred Business between the Closing and the applicable Deferred Closing. Newco (or one or more of its Affiliates)
shall assume all of Emerson’s economic risk, encumbrances and obligations with respect to ownership and management of the Deferred Businesses and the employment of the
Deferred Transfer Business Employees. For the avoidance of doubt, such economic rights and interest in and to the Deferred Businesses include all income, profits, and gains
arising from, attributable to, or inuring to the benefit of each Deferred Business after the Effective Time through the applicable Deferred Closing Date. Such economic risk,
encumbrances and obligations with respect to the Deferred Businesses include the Emerson Assumed Liabilities and include all risk of economic loss with respect to each
Deferred Business solely to the extent such Deferred Business is operated by Emerson in the manner described herein. As of the Effective Time, Newco (or its Affiliates) shall,
assume the obligations and bear the economic burdens, costs and Liabilities (including (x) any Liability for Deferred Closing Period Taxes with respect to such Deferred
Business and (y) the cost of any compensation or benefits (including any base salary, wages, commissions, incentive compensation, health or welfare benefits or other
employee benefits, severance or other termination-related payments or benefits) in respect of any Deferred Transfer Business Employee) associated with managing, operating
and owning such Deferred Business and the employment of the Deferred Transfer Business Employees solely to the extent the Deferred Business is operated by Emerson in the
manner described herein (determined as if such Deferred Business had been transferred to Newco or one of its Subsidiaries on the Closing Date pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, rather than the applicable Deferred Closing Date). Newco shall, subject to Emerson’s compliance with the terms hereof, be solely responsible for any Liability
arising out of the ownership and management of such Deferred Business in such period consistent with the terms and conditions of this Section 7.05(e). In the event that the
transfer of the benefits, obligations, and burdens as contemplated by this Section 7.05(e)(i) is not permitted under Applicable Law or Contract, Emerson and Newco shall work
together in good faith to implement an alternative arrangement with equivalent effect as permissible under Applicable Law or Contract with respect to the operation of such
Deferred Business until the applicable Deferred Closing.



(ii) Newco and Emerson shall use reasonable best efforts to cooperate in a mutually agreeable arrangement to effect the provisions of Section 7.05(e)(i). With respect
to each Deferred Business, for the period between Closing and the applicable Deferred Closing, Newco and Emerson agree that Newco will, after reasonable consultation with
the Emerson personnel, direct the operation and management of the Deferred Businesses and shall have the sole authority to undertake any material decision that relate to such
Deferred Business, subject to Applicable Law and provided that Emerson may undertake any such decision to ensure that the Deferred Businesses comply with all policies and
procedures that apply to Emerson and its Subsidiaries generally and any decision permitted to be taken by Emerson in Section 7.05(e)(iii)(2) without the consent of Newco;
provided that Emerson shall not be responsible for any losses or expenses incurred as a result of Newco’s delay in making any decisions in a timely manner. Emerson shall, or
cause its Affiliates to, (i) provide Newco and its Affiliates reasonable access to the offices, properties, books, records and personnel of the Deferred Business, during normal
business hours and with reasonable prior notice, (ii) furnish such financial and operating data and other information relating to the Deferred Businesses as Newco may
reasonably request and (iii) instruct its employees, counsel, financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives to reasonably cooperate with Newco and its
Affiliates in support of the operation of the Deferred Business. All information furnished pursuant to this Section shall be subject to the Confidentiality Agreement. Any
investigation pursuant to this Section shall be conducted in such manner as not to interfere unreasonably with the conduct of the business of Emerson.

(iii)  Subject to Section 7.05(e)(ii), with respect to each Deferred Business, from the Closing Date through the applicable Deferred Closing Date:

(1) Emerson shall, and shall cause its Subsidiaries to, use reasonable best efforts to (A) to conduct such Deferred Business in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice and in compliance with Applicable Law, (B) maintain and preserve intact such Deferred Business and, to the extent relating to the Deferred
Business, their business organizations, their rights, franchises and other authorizations issued by Governmental Authorities and their relationships with their customers,
regulators and other Persons with which they have advantageous business relationships (including any employees of the Deferred Businesses), and (C) maintain and keep in
good repair (ordinary wear and tear excepted) the material properties, assets and businesses of such Deferred Business; and
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(2) Emerson shall not and shall cause its Affiliates not to, without the prior written consent of Newco (x) incur or assume any Liabilities over $10,000 other
than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or (y) distribute, transfer or sell any assets other than sales of inventory and dispositions of obsolete assets,
in each case, in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or except to effect the Deferred Closings in each case of clauses (x) and (y) with respect to such
Deferred Business.

(iv) Without limiting the generality of Section 7.05(e)(i), (A) with respect to each Deferred Business, from and after the Closing Date until the applicable Deferred
Closing Date with respect to such Deferred Business, Emerson shall, or shall cause its Affiliates to, fund the ongoing operations and maintenance of such Deferred Business,
including any liability for Deferred Closing Period Taxes with respect to such Deferred Business and (B) with respect to each Deferred Transfer Business Employee, from and
after the Closing Date until the Applicable Transfer Time, Emerson shall, or shall cause its Affiliates to, fund the cost of any compensation or benefits (including any base
salary, wages, commissions, incentive compensation, health or welfare benefits or other employee benefits, severance or other termination-related payments or benefits) in
respect of Deferred Transfer Business Employees (the “Operating Expenses”). Emerson’s expenditure of Operating Expenses of each Deferred Business shall be consistent
with the ordinary course operations of such Deferred Business consistent with past practice at Aspen’s direction and, in the case of the Deferred Transfer Business Employees,
subject to the terms of Section 6.01(k) (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any exceptions thereto set forth in Section 6.01 of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule), until the
Applicable Transfer Time; provided that Emerson shall not be responsible for any losses or expenses incurred due to Aspen’s failure to approve any such Operating Expenses.

(v) With respect to each Deferred Business, in the event Emerson or any of its Affiliates receives any income, profits, or gains attributable to such Deferred Business,
or any property with respect to such Deferred Business, on or after the Effective Time, it will do so as custodian or, to the fullest extent permissible under Applicable Law, in
trust for and on behalf of Newco. All such income, profits, gains or property (together with interest thereon at an arm’s length rate from the date of receipt) received by
Emerson shall be offset against the Operating Expenses funded by Emerson with respect to the applicable Deferred Business and (i) the net amount shall be paid to Newco on
the applicable Deferred Closing Date (taking into account the net result of the benefits and liabilities set forth in Section 7.05(e)(i)) and (ii) to the extent that the Operating
Expenses are greater than such income, profits, gains or property received by Emerson or there is otherwise insufficient cash of the Deferred Business to reimburse Emerson for
the Operating Expenses (taking into account the net result of the benefits and liabilities set forth in Section 7.05(e)(i)), such Operating Expenses shall be paid by Newco to
Emerson on the applicable Deferred Closing Date. Emerson shall and shall cause its Aftiliates to furnish such financial and operating data and other supporting information as
Newco may reasonably request to support the calculation of the net amount (including the Operating Expenses as set out above).
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(vi) Without limiting any Party’s obligations under Section 7.01, but subject to the terms thereof, with respect to each Deferred Business, from the Closing Date until
the applicable Deferred Closing, each Party shall use its reasonable best efforts to execute and deliver all documents, certificates, agreements or other writings, and take such
other actions as may be reasonably requested by the other Party in furtherance of the transfer of each Deferred Business to Newco (or one or more of its Subsidiaries).

(vii) For all Tax purposes, the Parties will cooperate to characterize the arrangements adopted in connection with each Deferred Closing consistent with one another
and in a manner consistent with the principles set forth in this Section 7.05(e).

(viii)  Solely for the period between the Closing Date and the Deferred Closing Date with respect to each Deferred Business, Newco (on behalf of itself and its
Subsidiaries) hereby grants Emerson or any of the Emerson Retained Subsidiaries a non-exclusive, limited, royalty-free, non-transferable license to use the Echo Business
Intellectual Property owned by Newco or any of the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries, to the extent licensable, solely for use in the conduct of such Deferred Business in a
manner contemplated by Section 7.05(e)(ii).

(ix) With respect to each Deferred Business, from and after the Closing Date until the applicable Deferred Closing Date, Emerson and Newco shall, and shall cause
their respective Affiliates to, use reasonable best efforts to cooperate with each other and to facilitate and expedite the identification and resolution of any issues arising with
respect to such Deferred Business at the earliest practicable dates. Such reasonable best efforts and cooperation shall include, but are not limited to (i) keeping each other
reasonably informed of communications from and to personnel of relevant Governmental Authorities and (ii) conferring with each other regarding contacts with and response to
personnel of such Governmental Authorities and the content of any such contacts or responses prior to making any such contacts or responses, in each case with respect to any
material matter.

(r) Section 7.06 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:
Third-Party Approval and Permits.

(a) Except with respect to Consents which are addressed in Section 7.01, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, prior to the Closing or the Deferred
Closing as applicable, (i) each of Aspen and Emerson shall, and shall cause its respective Affiliates to, use its reasonable best efforts to obtain, as promptly as practicable, all
Consents required to be obtained from any third party that are necessary to (x) consummate the Transactions (including, to the extent Aspen does not replace, renew, refinance
or refund the indebtedness under the Aspen Credit Agreement, the Aspen Credit Agreement Consents) and (y) in the case of Emerson and its Affiliates, transfer and assign the
Emerson Contributed Assets to Newco or one of the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries and otherwise complete the Pre-Closing Restructuring and the Deferred Closings, in
each case, pursuant to Section 7.05, and (ii) each of Aspen and Emerson shall, and shall cause its respective Affiliates to, use its reasonable best efforts to provide all notices
and otherwise take all actions necessary to transfer any transferable Aspen Permits and Emerson Permits, respectively, or reissue or obtain any replacement Aspen Permits and
Emerson Permits, respectively, in each case, to the extent necessary to consummate the Transaction (including, in the case of Emerson, for Newco and the Emerson Contributed
Subsidiaries to operate, as of the Closing Date, the Echo Business).



(b) Without limiting the foregoing, Section 7.05 or Section 10.03(a)(i), to the extent permitted by Applicable Law, in the event any Consent required to be obtained
from any third party or Governmental Authority in connection with the transfer of any Emerson Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset has not been obtained by the
Closing or the applicable Deferred Closing, then this Agreement (or the applicable transfer instrument) shall not constitute an agreement to sell, assign, transfer or convey such
asset. The party contemplated to be transferring or causing to be transferred such asset (the “Transferring Party”) shall hold in trust for the party to whom such asset is
contemplated to be transferred under this Agreement (the “Transferee”), and shall promptly forward to the Transferee any income, proceeds and other monies received in
respect of, the relevant Emerson Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable, and Transferee will promptly pay, perform or discharge when due any Liabilities
arising thereunder, in each case, until such time as the required Consent is obtained and the transfer is effectuated. To the extent not prohibited by the relevant Emerson
Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable, or under Applicable Law, (i) the Transferring Party agrees to use reasonable best efforts to provide the Transferee
with the economic benefits of any such Emerson Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable, and the Transferee agrees to assume and bear all costs and
Liabilities thereunder, in each case, in a manner to place the Transferring Party and Transferee in a substantially similar position as if such Emerson Contributed Asset or
Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable, had been assigned or transferred at the Closing or the applicable Deferred Closing, (ii) the parties agree to use reasonable best efforts to
enter into and cooperate in arrangements with each other and the relevant third party intended to transitionally allow the Transferring Party to operate with or under the relevant
Emerson Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable, so that the Transferee can receive or incur the relevant benefits and Liabilities of such Emerson
Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable, until the expiration or renewal thereof in a manner to place the Transferring Party and the Transferee in a
substantially similar position as if such Emerson Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable, had been assigned or transferred at the Closing or the applicable
Deferred Closing and (iii) the Transferring Party agrees to perform all applicable obligations under such Emerson Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable,
and enforce, at the request and for the account of the Transferee, or allow the Transferee and its Affiliates to enforce, in a commercially reasonable manner, any rights in respect
of such Emerson Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable. Except for as otherwise provided in Section 7.05, upon obtaining any such requisite Consent, the
relevant Emerson Contributed Asset or Emerson Excluded Asset, as applicable, shall promptly be transferred and assigned to the Transferee at no additional cost to Newco or
any of its Subsidiaries.



(s) Section 7.08 of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “If following the Closing,” with “If, following the Closing and the applicable Deferred
Closings,”.

(t) Section 7.12(b) of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “no later than twelve months from the Closing Date (the “Transition Period”)” with
“no later than twenty-four (24) months from the Closing Date (or, with respect to the Deferred Businesses, as soon as reasonably practicable following the Deferred
Closing, but in any event no later than twenty-four (24) months from the applicable Deferred Closing Date) (the “Transition Period”)”.

(u) Section 7.12(e) of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “twelve months after the Closing” with “twelve (12) months after the Closing” and
replacing “during the twelve month period following the Closing” with “during the twelve (12)-month period following the Closing”.

(v) Section 8.01 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Business Employee, Emerson Offer Business Employees, Deferred Transfer Business Employees and Deferred TSA
Transfer Business Employees. Newco shall (or shall cause the Subsidiaries of Newco to) (i) continue the employment as of the Closing of each Emerson Contributed
Subsidiary Business Employee and (ii) within a reasonable period of time (but not fewer than fifteen Business Days) prior to the Applicable Transfer Time, make an
offer to employ each Emerson Offer Business Employee, each Deferred Transfer Business Employee and each Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business
Employee which such offer of employment shall be contingent upon the occurrence of the Closing and effective as of the Applicable Transfer Time and that (A) in
each case provides for terms consistent with the terms of this Article 8, and (B) in the case of each Deferred Transfer Business Employee and each Deferred TSA Non-
Automatic Transfer Business Employee, with terms and conditions of employment substantially comparable to the terms and conditions of employment applicable to
such Deferred Transfer Business Employee or such Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employee, as applicable, as of immediately prior to the date of
such employment offer. If it is agreed between the parties that an Emerson Offer Business Employee, a Deferred Transfer Business Employee or a Deferred TSA Non-
Automatic Transfer Business Employee, as applicable, should be employed by Aspen or one of its Subsidiaries with effect from the Applicable Transfer Time (each an
“Aspen Offer Employee”), Aspen shall (or shall cause its appropriate Subsidiary to) within a reasonable period of time (but not fewer than fifteen Business Days if
practicable) prior to the Applicable Transfer Time, make an offer to employ such Aspen Offer Employee (x) on terms consistent with the terms of this Article 8 and (y)
with terms and conditions of employment substantially comparable to the terms and conditions of employment applicable to such Aspen Offer Employee as of
immediately prior to the date of such employment offer, which such offer of employment shall be contingent upon the occurrence of the Closing and effective as of the
Applicable Transfer Time (each such offer, and “Aspen Qualifying Offer”’). Unless a written acceptance of an offer of employment is required by Applicable Law,
any Emerson Offer Business Employee, Deferred Transfer Business Employee or Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employee, as applicable, who does
not expressly reject Newco’s (or as it may be, Aspen’s) offer of employment prior to the Applicable Transfer Time and actually commences employment with Newco
(or Aspen) or one of its Subsidiaries immediately following the Applicable Transfer Time (or such later time as may be required by Applicable Law) shall be deemed
for purposes of this Agreement to have accepted such offer as of the Applicable Transfer Time. Effective as of immediately prior to the Applicable Transfer Time (or
such later time as may be required by Applicable Law), Emerson shall, or shall cause its applicable Subsidiary to, terminate the employment of any Emerson Offer
Business Employee, any Deferred Transfer Business Employee or any Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employee, as applicable, who does not accept
an offer of employment from Newco or its applicable Subsidiary (or, if applicable, Aspen or its applicable Subsidiary). Emerson shall be solely liable, and shall
reimburse Newco (or Aspen) or its applicable Subsidiary for any severance, statutory or other termination-related payments or benefits paid or provided by Newco (or
Aspen) or its applicable Subsidiary to any such Emerson Offer Business Employee, Deferred Transfer Business Employee or Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer
Business Employee who does not accept such offer of employment made in accordance with this Section 8.01; provided, however, that solely to the extent the parties
determine pursuant to this Section 8.01 that Aspen or one of its Subsidiaries shall employ any applicable Aspen Offer Employee, Newco shall be solely liable, and
shall reimburse Emerson or its applicable Subsidiary for any severance, statutory or other termination-related payments or benefits paid or provided by Emerson or its
applicable Subsidiary to any such Aspen Offer Employee who does not receive an Aspen Qualifying Offer.
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(w) Section 8.02 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employees and Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employees. Each of Emerson, Aspen and Newco intend that
the Automatic Transfer Regulations will apply to the employment of each of the Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employees and the Deferred TSA Automatic
Transfer Business Employees and the transfer of each such Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employee’s or such Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business
Employee’s employment contract from Emerson and its applicable Subsidiaries to Newco and its Subsidiaries, effective as of the Applicable Transfer Time. If any such
Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employees or such Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employee do not transfer automatically pursuant to the Automatic
Transfer Regulations, Newco shall, or shall cause the relevant Subsidiary of Newco to, make an offer to employ such employee in accordance with Section 8.01 as
soon as reasonably practicable following such determination and such employee shall constitute an Emerson Offer Business Employee or a Deferred TSA Non-
Automatic Transfer Business Employee, respectively, for purposes of this Agreement.

(x) Section 8.03 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Retained Automatic Transfer Employees. If the contract of employment of any individual who is not an Automatic Transfer Echo Business Employee, an
Emerson Offer Business Employee, a Deferred Transfer Business Employee, a Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employee, or a Deferred TSA Non-
Automatic Transfer Business Employee transfers to Newco or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to the Automatic Transfer Regulations in connection with the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents, or any such individual asserts that this is the case, Newco, Aspen or their Subsidiaries
shall notify Emerson as soon as reasonably practicable after becoming aware and may, where relevant, terminate the employment of such individual no later than
twenty-eight days after such individual’s contract of employment transfers to Newco and Emerson will indemnify and hold harmless Newco, Aspen and their
Subsidiaries, as applicable, for fifty percent of the aggregate Liabilities arising from, or relating to, (a) the employment of the individual up to the date of any such
termination, (b) the termination by Newco, Aspen or any of their Subsidiaries of the contract of employment of such individual, and (c) all other Liabilities Newco,
Aspen or their Subsidiaries may incur pursuant to the Automatic Transfer Regulations (including any Liability for failure to consult) in relation to such individual.
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(y) Section 8.04 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Maintenance of Compensation and Benefits. Subject, and in addition, to the requirements imposed by Applicable Law (including, in the case of Automatic
Transfer Echo Business Employees and Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employees, the Automatic Transfer Regulations), for a period of 12 months
following the Closing Date, Newco shall provide, or shall cause its Subsidiaries to provide, Continuing Employees who remain employed by Newco and its
Subsidiaries following the Applicable Transfer Time with (i) at least the same base salary or wage rate and target annual cash bonus opportunity as provided to such
Continuing Employee as of immediately prior to the Applicable Transfer Time and (ii) employee benefits (excluding defined benefit pension benefits, retiree health or
welfare benefits, severance or other termination-related compensation or benefits, equity-based compensation or change in control, transaction or retention bonuses
(collectively, the “Excluded Benefits”)) that are substantially comparable to in the aggregate to the employee benefits (other than the Excluded Benefits) provided to
such Continuing Employees under Aspen Benefits Plans (in the case of Continuing Aspen Employees) or Echo Business Benefit Plans (in the case of Continuing Echo
Business Employees), as applicable, as of immediately prior to the Applicable Transfer Time; prOVided that in the case of any Continuing Employee whose terms and
conditions of employment are subject to a collective bargaining agreement, Newco shall provide for such continued employment to be on such terms and conditions as
may be required under that collective bargaining agreement.

(z) Section 8.05 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Service Credit. Subject, and in addition, to the requirements imposed by Applicable Law (including, in the case of Automatic Transfer Echo Business
Employees and Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employees, the Automatic Transfer Regulations), from and after the Applicable Transfer Time, with
respect to any “employee benefit plan” (as defined under Section 3(3) of ERISA, whether or not subject to ERISA) maintained by Newco or any of its Subsidiaries
(“Newco Benefit Plans”) in which any Continuing Employee becomes a participant following the Applicable Transfer Time, for purposes of determining eligibility to
participate, vesting and level of benefits (but not for benefit accrual purposes, except for purposes of severance and paid time off), (i) each Continuing Aspen
Employee’s service with Aspen and its Subsidiaries (as well as service with any predecessor employer, to the extent recognized by Aspen or any of its Subsidiaries
prior to the Applicable Transfer Time) shall be treated as service with Newco and its Subsidiaries and (ii) each Continuing Echo Business Employee’s service with
Emerson or any of its Subsidiaries (as well as service with any predecessor employer, to the extent recognized by Emerson or any of its Subsidiaries prior to the
Applicable Transfer Time) shall be treated as service with Newco and its Subsidiaries, in each case (A) to the same extent such service was recognized under an
analogous Aspen Benefit Plan or Echo Business Benefit Plan, respectively, and (B) to the extent that such recognition would not result in any duplication of benefits.
With respect to any Newco Benefit Plans that are health or welfare benefit plans in which any Continuing Employee (and his or her eligible dependents participates)
from and after the Applicable Transfer Time, (i) Newco shall waive, or shall cause its Subsidiaries to waive, any preexisting conditions limitations or exclusions,
actively at work requirements and waiting periods, except to the extent that such items would not have been satisfied or waived under an analogous Aspen Benefit Plan
(in the case of Continuing Aspen Employees) or Echo Business Benefit Plan (in the case of Continuing Echo Business Employees), as applicable, as of immediately
prior to the Applicable Transfer Time, and (ii) Newco shall recognize, or shall cause its Subsidiaries to recognize, all co-payments, deductibles and similar expenses
and out-of-pocket maximums incurred by each Continuing Employee (and his or her eligible dependents) prior to the Applicable Transfer Time during the plan year in
which Applicable Transfer Time occurs for purposes of satisfying any comparable deductible and co-payment limitations and out-of-pocket requirements under the
Newco Benefit Plans, to the extent recognized under an analogous Aspen Benefit Plan (in the case of Continuing Aspen Employees) or Echo Business Benefit Plan (in
the case of Continuing Echo Business Employees), as applicable, as of immediately prior to the Applicable Transfer Time.
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(aa) Section 8.07 of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “prior to the Effective Time” with “prior to the Applicable Transfer Time”.
(bb) Section 8.08 of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “effective as of the Closing” with “effective as of the Applicable Transfer Time”.

(cc) Section 8.10 of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “on or after the Closing” with “on or after the Applicable Transfer Time” and replacing
“prior to the Closing” with “prior to the Applicable Transfer Time”.

(dd) Section 8.15 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Newco Omnibus Incentive Plan; Assumption of Agreements. In the event that Aspen and Emerson mutually determine in good faith that Continuing Echo
Business Employees will not be eligible to receive awards under the Aspen 2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan following the Closing, then, prior to the Aspen Stockholder
Meeting, Newco shall approve and adopt an incentive equity plan, the principal terms of which are substantially similar to the Aspen 2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan and
the final form of which (including any changes to the terms of the Aspen 2016 Omnibus Incentive Plan and the aggregate number of shares of Newco Stock to be
reserved for issuance under such incentive equity plan) shall be mutually agreed to in good faith by Aspen and Emerson (the “Omnibus Incentive Plan”), and the
parties shall cause such Omnibus Incentive Plan to be submitted for applicable stockholder approval. As soon as practicable following the Closing Date, Newco shall
(if such stockholder approval is obtained) file an effective registration statement on Form S-8 (or other applicable form) with respect to the Newco Stock issuable
under the Omnibus Incentive Plan (to the extent applicable, as adjusted by the Aspen Equity Award Exchange Ratio), and Newco shall use reasonable best efforts to
maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement(s) (and maintain the current status of the prospectus or prospectuses contained therein) for so long as awards
granted pursuant to the Omnibus Incentive Plan remain outstanding. From and after the Effective Time, Newco shall assume and agree to perform the agreements set
forth on Section 8.16 of the Aspen Disclosure Schedule, subject to the terms of such applicable agreements.
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(ee) Section 8.16 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Echo Business Employee Census. Emerson shall update Sections 1.01(c), 1.01(d) and 1.01(e) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule at reasonable intervals
before the Closing and, solely with respect to the Deferred Transfer Business Employees, the Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employees, and the Deferred
TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employees, before the Applicable Transfer Time (each, a “Census Update Time”) (it being understood that the last such
Census Update Time shall occur no later than five Business Days prior to the Closing Date (or, in the case of the Deferred Transfer Business Employees, the Deferred

TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employees, and the Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employees, the Applicable Transfer Time); provided,

however, that any updates to the foregoing sections of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule at any Census Update Time (a) shall not add any individual to Section
1.01(c) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule unless such individual (i) was primarily employed in or dedicated to the Echo Business as of the date of this Agreement or
(ii) becomes primarily employed in or dedicated to the Echo Business following the date of this Agreement in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice, (b) shall not add any individual to Section 1.01(e) or remove any individual from Section 1.01(c) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule who is primarily
employed in or dedicated to the Echo Business (other than any individual who ceases to be primarily employed in or dedicated to the Echo Business in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice) and (c) shall not update Section 1.01(d) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule without Aspen’s prior consent (which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned); provided, further, that, in connection with any such updates to such sections of the Emerson
Disclosure Schedule in accordance with sub-clauses (a) and (b) above, at any applicable Census Update Time, Emerson shall provide such updated schedules to Aspen
for its prior review and Aspen shall have the right to provide reasonable comments on such proposed updates (which will be considered by Emerson in good faith).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Emerson may update Sections 1.01(c), 1.01(d) and 1.01(e) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule in order to (A) reflect
the hiring or termination of individuals, subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 6.01(k)(iv), and (B) to add the Dutch Emerson Employees in accordance with
Section 8.18, if applicable. For the avoidance of doubt, any individual listed on Section 1.01(e) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule shall not constitute an Echo
Business Employee.

(ff) Section 8.19 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:
Echo Business Employee Retention Program.

(a) On or promptly following the Applicable Transfer Time, but in any event no later than five (5) Business Days after the Applicable Transfer Time, Newco
shall implement the retention program for the Continuing Echo Business Employees set forth on Section 8.19(a) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedule (including by
making all applicable grants thereunder).

(b) On or promptly following the Effective Time, but in any event no later than five (5) Business Days after the Effective Time, Emerson shall implement
the retention program set forth on Section 8.19(b) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedules for the Non-Transferring TSA Employees (including by making all applicable
grants thereunder), the cost of which shall be the sole responsibility of Newco and which shall constitute Emerson Assumed Liabilities.
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(g2) A new Section 8.20 of the Agreement is hereby added as follows:

Treatment of Liabilities for Non-Transferring TSA Employees, Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer Business Employees, and Deferred TSA Non-Automatic
Transfer Business Employees. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, with respect to (i) the individuals listed in Section 1.01(e) to the Emerson Disclosure
Schedule (other than the first four individuals listed thereon) (and such other individuals as may be mutually agreed by the Parties) (such individuals, collectively, the
“Non-Transferring TSA Employees”) (who, for the avoidance of doubt, shall not constitute Echo Business Employees), and (ii) the Deferred TSA Automatic
Transfer Business Employees and the Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employees, Newco shall be solely liable for, and shall reimburse Emerson or
its applicable Subsidiary for, (A) the cost of any compensation and benefits (including any base salary, wages, commissions, incentive compensation, health or welfare
benefits and other employee benefits) payable in respect of the period during which such Non-Transferring TSA Employees, Deferred TSA Automatic Transfer
Business Employees, or Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business Employees, as applicable, are providing services pursuant to the Transition Services
Agreement, and (B) subject to Emerson’s obligations pursuant to Section 8.01 in respect of severance costs related to Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer Business
Employees who do not accept an offer of employment from Newco, any severance, statutory or other termination-related payments or benefits paid or provided
consistent with past practice, by Emerson or its applicable Subsidiary to any such Non-Transferring TSA Employee or Deferred TSA Non-Automatic Transfer
Business Employee, in each case which shall constitute Emerson Assumed Liabilities (clauses (A) and (B) collectively, the “TSA Employee Costs”). For the
avoidance of doubt, the reimbursement by Newco of the TSA Employment Costs hereunder shall be without duplication of any amounts paid by Newco to Emerson
under the Transition Services Agreement.

(hh) Section 9.01 of the Agreement is hereby amended by replacing “use reasonable its best efforts” with “use its reasonable best efforts”.
(i) Section 9.02 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “or the Deferred Closings,” after “incurred with respect to the Pre-Closing Restructuring,”.

(ji) The first paragraph of Section 10.01 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “(excluding the Deferred Closings)” after “to consummate the
Transactions”.

(kk) The first paragraph of Section 10.02 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “(excluding the Deferred Closings)” after “to consummate the
Transactions”.

(1) The first paragraph of Section 10.03 of the Agreement is hereby amended by adding “(excluding the Deferred Closings)” after “to consummate the
Transactions”.

(mm) Section 10.03(d) of the Agreement is hereby amended by changing “Section 7.05” to “Section 7.05(a)”.
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(nn) Section 12.02 of the Agreement is hereby amended by deleting “and” at the end of subsection (a), adding “; and” at the end of subsection (b), and
adding the following new subsection (c):

any Liability to the extent resulting from or arising in connection with (i) the legal ownership and operation of each Deferred Business from and after the
Effective Time by Emerson or its Affiliates or (ii) the employment, or termination of employment, of each Deferred Transfer Business Employee from and after the Effective
Time, in each case in the manner required by Section 7.05(e) (including any Liabilities related to (x) any compensation or benefits (including any base salary, wages,
commissions, incentive compensation, health or welfare benefits or other employee benefits, severance or other termination-related payments or benefits) in respect of any
Deferred Transfer Business Employee or (y) the employment or termination of employment of any Deferred Transfer Business Employee); provided that this Section
12.02(c) does not apply to any Liability as a result of or related to gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of Emerson or its Affiliates. For the avoidance of doubt,
this Section 12.02(c) shall not limit the generality of Newco’s assumption of Emerson Assumed Liabilities.

(00) Section 13.02 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated as follows:

Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements. The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained herein and in any certificate or
other writing delivered pursuant hereto shall not survive the Effective Time, except for (a) the representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.11, Section 4.09, Section
4.13(d)(i) and Section 4.13(d)(iii), which shall survive the Closing until the date that is eighteen months after the Closing Date, (b) and the representations and warranties set
forth in Section 4.13(d)(ii) and Section 4.13(d)(iv), which shall survive the Closing, with respect to each Deferred Business, until the date that is eighteen months after the
applicable Deferred Closing Date and (c) such covenants or agreements that by their terms are to be performed (in whole or in part) after the Effective Time, which shall
survive the Closing until fully performed in accordance with their terms. For clarity, covenants and agreements under Section 12.01(a) and 12.02 shall survive indefinitely. Any
claim for indemnification under Article 12 asserted in writing prior to the expiration of any such survival period as provided in this Section 13.02 shall have been timely made
for purposes of this Section 13.02 such that the representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or obligation that is the subject of such claim, to the extent of such claim only,
shall survive until such claim has been fully and finally resolved in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Section 3. Amendment to the Emerson Disclosure Schedule.
(a) The content of Annex 1.01(c)(i) to the Emerson Disclosure Schedule is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety with the content of Schedule 1 hereto.
(b) The content of Section 1.01(e) of the Emerson Disclosure Schedules is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety with the content of Schedule 2 hereto.
(¢) The Emerson Disclosure Schedules are amended hereby by adding a new Section 1.01(m) thereof which shall have the text as set forth on Schedule 3 hereto.
(d) The Emerson Disclosure Schedules are amended hereby by adding a new Section 4.14(d) thereof which shall have the text as set forth on Schedule 4 hereto.
(e) Section 6.05 of the Emerson Disclosure Schedules is hereby amended by adding new Items 3 and 4 which shall have the text as set forth on Schedule 5 hereto.
(f) The Emerson Disclosure Schedules are amended hereby by adding a new Section 7.05 thereof which shall have the text as set forth on Schedule 6 hereto.

(g) The content of Annex 4.14(a)-1 to the Emerson Disclosure Schedules is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety with the content of Schedule 7 hereto.

(h) The content of Annex 4.14(a)-2 to the Emerson Disclosure Schedules is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety with the content of Schedule 8 hereto.
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(i) The Emerson Disclosure Schedules are hereby amended by renaming Section 8.19 of the Emerson Disclosure Schedules as Section 8.19(a) of the Emerson
Disclosure Schedules.

(j) The Emerson Disclosure Schedules are hereby amended by adding a new Section 8.19(b) thereof which shall have the text as set forth on Schedule 9 hereto.

Section 4. Amendment to Exhibits. Each of Exhibit B (Form of Stockholders Agreement), Exhibit C (Form of Tax Matters Agreement), Exhibit D (Form of Transition
Services Agreement) and Exhibit I (Pre-Closing Restructuring Plan) is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety with the content of Exhibit B-1, Exhibit C-1, Exhibit D-1
and Exhibit I-1, respectively, hereto.

Section 5. Conforming Section References. All references and cross-references in the Agreement shall be revised as necessary to be consistent with the revisions to the
Agreement set forth in this Amendment.

Section 6. Effect of Amendment. From and after the date hereof, each reference in the Agreement to “this Agreement,” “hereof,” “hereunder” or words of like import
referring to the Agreement (or any schedule thereof) shall be deemed a reference to the Agreement (and such schedule) as amended hereby. The Parties agree that all references
in the Agreement to “the date hereof” or “the date of this Agreement” shall refer to the Original Execution Date. Except as and to the extent expressly modified by this
Amendment, the Agreement is not otherwise being amended, modified or supplemented. The Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.

Section 7. Other Provisions. This Amendment hereby incorporates the provisions of Sections 1.02 (Other Definitional and Interpretive Provisions), 13.03

(Amendments and Waivers), 13.05 (Disclosure Schedules), 13.06 (Binding Effect; Benefit; Assignment), 13.07 (Governing Law), 13.08 (Jurisdiction), 13.09 (Counterparts;
Effectiveness); 13.10 (Entire Agreement), 13.11 (Severability) and 13.12 (Specific Performance) of the Agreement as if fully set forth herein, mutatis mutandis.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed by their respective authorized officers as of the day and year first above
written.

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ Antonio J. Pietri

Name: Antonio J. Pietri

Title: President and Chief Executive
Officer

EMERSON ELECTRIC CO.

By: /s/ Vincent M. Servello
Name: Vincent M. Servello
Title: Vice President

EMR WORLDWIDE INC.

By: /s/ Vincent M. Servello
Name: Vincent M. Servello
Title: Vice President

EMERSUB CX, INC.

By: /s/ Vincent M. Servello
Name: Vincent M. Servello
Title: Vice President

EMERSUB CXI, INC.

By: /s/ Vincent M. Servello
Name: Vincent M. Servello
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to Amendment No. 2 to the Transaction Agreement and Plan of Merger]
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STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT

STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT, dated [¢] (this “Agreement”), among Emerson Electric Co., a Missouri corporation (“Emerson Parent”), EMR Worldwide Inc., a
Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of Emerson Parent (“Emerson”), and Aspen Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation (formerly known as Emersub CX,
Inc.) (the “Company”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Transaction Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 10, 2021, and amended as of March [+], 2022 and [*], 2022,
among Emerson Parent, Aspen Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Old Aspen Tech”), the Company, Emersub CXI, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Emerson (as
further amended from time to time, the “Transaction Agreement”), Emerson Parent and Old Aspen Tech combined the Echo Business (as defined in the Transaction
Agreement) with Old Aspen Tech and effected the Transactions (as defined herein);

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Transactions, Emerson holds Company Common Stock (as defined herein); and

WHEREAS, Emerson Parent, Emerson and the Company desire to enter into this Agreement in order to (i) set forth certain of their rights, duties and obligations as a
result of the Transactions, (ii) provide for the governance of the Company and (iii) set forth rights and restrictions on certain activities in respect of the Company Common
Stock, corporate governance, and other related corporate matters.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1.  Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings specified in this Section 1.1:
“Action” means any action, claim, suit, or proceeding, in each case by or before any arbitrator or Governmental Authority.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person who, as of the relevant time for which the determination of affiliation is being made, directly or
indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such Person; provided that no then-member of the Emerson Group shall be deemed to be an Affiliate of
any then-member of the Company Group for purposes of this Agreement and no then-member of the Company Group shall be deemed to be an Affiliate of any then-member of
the Emerson Group for purposes of this Agreement.

“Applicable Law” means, with respect to any Person, any U.S., non-U.S. or transnational, federal, state or local law (statutory, common or otherwise), constitution,
treaty, convention, ordinance, code, rule, regulation, order, injunction, judgment, decree, ruling or other similar requirement (including any stock exchange listing requirements)
enacted, adopted, promulgated or applied by a Governmental Authority, that is binding upon or applicable to such Person, as amended unless expressly specified otherwise.

“beneficially own” means, with respect to Company Common Stock, having “beneficial ownership” of such stock for purposes of Rule 13d-3 or 13d-5 promulgated
under the Exchange Act, without giving effect to the limiting phrase “within sixty days” set forth in Rule 13d-3(1)(i). The terms “beneficial owner” and “beneficial
ownership” shall have correlative meanings.

“Business Day” means a day, other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in New York, New York are authorized or required by Applicable
Law to close.

“Closing” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Transaction Agreement.



“Common Equivalents” means (i) with respect to Company Common Stock, shares of Company Common Stock, (ii) with respect to any securities that are
convertible into or exchangeable for Company Common Stock, the shares of Company Common Stock issuable in respect of the conversion or exchange of such securities into
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Company Common Stock, (iii) with respect to any options, warrants or other rights to acquire Company Common Stock, the shares of Company Common Stock issuable
thereunder and (iv) with respect to any shares of Company Common Stock subject to restrictions, including the risk of forfeiture or repurchase or voting restrictions, such
shares of Company Common Stock.

“Company Board” means the board of directors of the Company.

“Company Business” means the business of developing, marketing and selling industrial software; provided that the Company Business expressly excludes the
businesses set forth in clauses (ii) and (iii) of the definition of the Emerson Permitted Business.

“Company Common Stock” means the shares of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of the Company and any securities issued in respect thereof, or in
substitution therefor, in connection with any stock split, dividend or combination, or any reclassification, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, exchange or other similar
reorganization.

“Company Covered Employees” means any Continuing Aspen Employees (as defined in the Transaction Agreement) or any Continuing Echo Business Employees
(as defined in the Transaction Agreement).

“Company Group” means the Company and, as of the relevant time for which the determination of Company Group is being made, each Subsidiary of the Company.

“Company Independent Director” means each director of the Company who (i) is an Independent Director and (ii) (A) is not an executive officer or employee of any
Emerson Group member and (B) would not be a director described under Clauses (A) through (F) of Rule 5605(a)(2) of the Nasdaq listing rules in relation to Emerson Parent
assuming Emerson Parent were the “Company” thereunder.

“Company Securities” means (i) the Company Common Stock, (ii) any preferred stock of the Company, (iii) any other capital stock issued by the Company and (iv)
any securities convertible into or exchangeable for, or options, warrants or other rights to acquire, Company Common Stock or any other capital or preferred stock issued by the
Company.

“Emerson Annual Statements” means the audited annual financial statements and annual reports to shareholders of any Emerson Group member.
“Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Transaction Agreement.

“Emerson Covered Employees” means any individual employed by Emerson Parent or any of its Subsidiaries (x) in Emerson’s Automation Solutions business or (y)
who assists in the provision of any Service (as defined in the Transition Services Agreement) under the Transition Services Agreement.

“Emerson Director” means a member of the Company Board who is an Emerson Designee.

“Emerson Group” means, at any given time, Emerson Parent and each Person (other than any then-member of the Company Group) that is then a Subsidiary of
Emerson Parent.

“Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage” means, as of any time, the percentage of the then-outstanding Company Common Stock (as determined on a
Common Equivalents basis) beneficially owned by the members of the Emerson Group as of such time, calculated on a Fully-Diluted basis.

“Emerson Ownership Percentage” means, as of any time, the percentage of the then-outstanding Company Common Stock beneficially owned by the members of
the Emerson Group as of such time.

“Emerson Permitted Business” means (i) any and all of the business activities contemplated under the Intercompany Commercial Agreements, including acting as an
agent or reseller of the Company’s products or services, and the Transition Services Agreement (as defined in the Transaction Agreement), (ii) the business of developing,



marketing and selling control or hardware-connected technology software products, including software and technology intended for control engineering tools, device level
applications, alarm management, distributed control systems (“DCS”), historian, subsystem interfaces, operator environments, human machine interface engineering and
runtime, reporting and trending, IO controllers, programmable logic controllers (PLC), SCADA (non-power), protection and prediction systems, embedded advanced control,
embedded batch, AMS machinery management, control system diagnostics and system health monitoring, tank management
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solutions, sensor-based corrosion and erosion solutions, DCS or skid-based blending & transfer solutions, custody transfer solutions, valves diagnostic solutions, connected
solution — instruments and Plantweb Insight and (iii) the Emerson Retained Businesses and any natural enhancements or extensions thereof (including by further investments
therein).

“Emerson Retained Businesses” means Emerson’s and its Subsidiaries’ software businesses as of immediately after the Closing, including DeltaV, Ovation, ESI,
Geofields, Syncade, Zedi, Progea, Bio-G, Fluxa, AMS Device Manager, Mimic, AgileOps, Inmation, PlantWeb Optics, and KNet.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, together with the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
“First Trigger” means the members of the Emerson Group ceasing to beneficially own more than fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock.

“First Trigger Date” means the date that is forty-five (45) days following the earliest of (x) the date on which the Company notifies Emerson in writing of the First
Trigger, (y) the date on which Emerson makes an amendment to its Schedule 13D filing under the Exchange Act to disclose the First Trigger and (z) the date on which the
General Counsel or Chief Financial Officer of Emerson Parent gains actual knowledge (and not constructive, imputed or other similar concepts of knowledge) of the First
Trigger; provided that if on such first date members of the Emerson Group beneficially own more than fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock (and at
no point during such forty-five (45) day period beneficially owned less than forty-five percent (45%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock), the First Trigger and the
First Trigger Date shall be deemed to not have occurred for all purposes under this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, if at any point during such forty-five (45) day
period, members of the Emerson Group beneficially own less than forty-five percent (45%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock, the First Trigger Date shall occur
regardless of any subsequent acquisition by members of the Emerson Group of additional shares of Company Common Stock.

Fourth Trigger Date” means the date on which members of the Emerson Group cease to beneficially own at least ten percent (10%) of the outstanding Company
Common Stock.

“Fully-Diluted” means, without duplication, all outstanding shares of Company Common Stock, all shares of Company Common Stock issuable in respect of all
outstanding securities convertible into or exchangeable for Company Common Stock, all shares of Company Common Stock issuable in respect of all outstanding options,
warrants or other rights to acquire Company Common Stock (regardless of whether the issuance is subject to vesting or other restrictions) and all outstanding shares of
Company Common Stock that are subject to restrictions, including the risk of forfeiture or repurchase or voting restrictions (regardless of whether the restrictions are still in
force).

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

“Governmental Authority” means any transnational, domestic or foreign federal, state or local governmental, regulatory, self-regulatory or administrative authority,
organization, department, court, agency or official, including any political subdivision thereof.

“Group” means the Emerson Group or the Company Group, as the context requires.

“Independent Director” means a director of the Company who is independent under Nasdaq listing rules; provided that it is understood and agreed that the fact that
an individual is an employee, officer or director of a member of the Emerson Group with the Emerson Group may not be the sole basis for the Company Board to determine
that such person has a relationship that would interfere with his or her exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director under Nasdaq listing
rules.

“Intercompany Commercial Agreements” means any and all Contracts (as defined in the Transaction Agreement) between any member of the Company Group, on
the one hand, and any member of the Emerson Group, on the other hand, for the provision or receipt of goods, products or services (including software), in each case, as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time. Intercompany Commercial Agreements shall include the



Commercial Agreement (as defined in the Transaction Agreement) as it may be amended from time to time but shall exclude this Agreement and the other Transaction
Documents.
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“Nasdaq” means The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC, or any successor thereto, or, any other stock exchange or quotation system on which the Company Common
Stock is traded.

“Parties” means Emerson Parent, Emerson and the Company.

“Percentage Maintenance Share” means, with respect to any transaction in which Company Securities are issued or proposed to be issued or sold (the “Percentage
Maintenance Issued Shares”), a number of other shares of Company Common Stock or other Company Securities, as applicable (which, for the avoidance of doubt, are not
the Percentage Maintenance Issued Shares), such that, after taking into account the total number of outstanding shares of Company Common Stock (on a Common Equivalents
and Fully-Diluted basis) immediately after giving effect to such issuance or sale (including the number of shares of Company Common Stock or such other Company Securities
acquired by Emerson assuming it exercised its right to buy its full Percentage Maintenance Share with respect to such transaction), the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership
Percentage would be, assuming Emerson acquired such number of Company Securities, equal to the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage immediately prior to such
issuance or sale.

“Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, association, trust or other entity or organization, including a government or political
subdivision or an agency or instrumentality thereof.

“Pro Rata Portion” means, with respect to any Company Securities issued or proposed to be issued or sold in connection with any transaction (the “Pro Rata Issued
Shares”), the number of such Pro Rata Issued Shares (calculated on a Common Equivalents and Fully-Diluted basis) such that, after taking into account the total number of
outstanding shares of Company Common Stock (on a Common Equivalents and Fully-Diluted basis) immediately after giving effect to such issuance or sale, the Emerson
Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage would be, assuming Emerson acquired such number of Company Securities, equal to the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage
immediately prior to such issuance or sale.

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction between any member of the Company Group, on the one hand, and any member of the Emerson Group, or, solely
in their capacity as such, any director, officer, employee or “associate” (as defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act) of any member of the Emerson Group,
on the other hand.

“Representatives” means, with respect to any Person (other than an individual), such Person’s directors, officers, employees and other agents and representatives
(including legal counsel and outside advisors).

“RPT Committee” means an ad-hoc committee formed by the Company Board from time to time consisting of at least two (2) directors of the Company, provided
that all members of an RPT Committee must be Company Independent Directors who are designated by a majority of the Independent Directors.

“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission.
“Second Trigger” means the members of the Emerson Group ceasing to beneficially own more than forty percent (40%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock.

“Second Trigger Date” means the date that is forty-five (45) days following the earliest of (x) the date on which the Company notifies Emerson in writing of the
Second Trigger, (y) the date on which Emerson makes an amendment to its Schedule 13D filing under the Exchange Act to disclose the Second Trigger and (z) the date on
which the General Counsel or Chief Financial Officer of Emerson Parent gains actual knowledge (and not constructive, imputed or other similar concepts of knowledge) of the
Second Trigger; provided that if on such first date members of the Emerson Group beneficially own more than forty percent (40%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock
(and at no point during such forty-five (45) day period beneficially owned less than thirty-five percent (35%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock), the Second Trigger
and the Second Trigger Date shall be deemed to not have occurred for all purposes under this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, if at any point during such forty-five (45)
day period, members of the Emerson Group beneficially own less than thirty-five percent (35%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock, the Second Trigger Date shall
occur regardless of any subsequent acquisition by members of the Emerson Group of additional shares of Company Common Stock.



“sole discretion” means being entitled to consider only such interests and factors as the Person making such determination desires, including solely its own interests,
without having any duty or obligation (fiduciary or otherwise) to give any consideration to any interest of or factors affecting the Company or any other Person.
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“Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, (i) any entity (A) of which securities or other ownership interests having ordinary voting power to elect a majority of
the board of directors or other persons performing similar functions are directly or indirectly owned by such Person or (B) of which a majority of the equity interests are
directly or indirectly owned by such Person or (ii) in the case of a partnership, of which such Person is the general partner; provided that, for purposes of this Agreement no
member of the Company Group shall be a Subsidiary of Emerson Parent or Emerson.

“Third Trigger” means the members of the Emerson Group ceasing to beneficially own at least twenty percent (20%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock.

“Third Trigger Date” means the date that is forty-five (45) days following the earliest of (x) the date on which the Company notifies Emerson in writing of the Third
Trigger, (y) the date on which Emerson makes an amendment to its Schedule 13D filing under the Exchange Act to disclose the Third Trigger and (z) the date on which the
General Counsel or Chief Financial Officer of Emerson Parent gains actual knowledge (and not constructive, imputed or other similar concepts of knowledge) of the Third
Trigger; provided that if on such first date members of the Emerson Group beneficially own at least twenty percent (20%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock (and at
no point during such forty-five (45) day period beneficially owned less than seventeen and a half percent (17.5%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock), the Third
Trigger and the Third Trigger Date shall be deemed to have not occurred for all purposes under this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, if at any point during such forty-
five (45) day period, members of the Emerson Group beneficially own less than seventeen and a half percent (17.5%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock, the Third
Trigger Date shall occur regardless of any subsequent acquisition by members of the Emerson Group of additional shares of Company Common Stock.

“Transaction Documents” means, collectively, this Agreement, the Transaction Agreement and the other Ancillary Agreements (as defined in the Transaction
Agreement).

“Transactions” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Transaction Agreement.

“Transfer” means to sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of any Company Common Stock, including by means of a hedge, swap or other derivative, and
excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, (i) any sale, transfer, assignment or other transaction involving any equity interests of Emerson or any of its Affiliates, or any sale of or
merger or consolidation involving Emerson or any of its Affiliates, (ii) subject to Section 3.4, the provision of a proxy in connection with any annual or special meeting of the
stockholders of the Company and (iii) the tender of Company Common Stock in any tender or exchange offer that is approved by the Company Board prior to the
consummation thereof. “Transferred” and “Transferring” shall have correlative meanings.

“Wholly Owned Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, a Subsidiary of such Person where all of the equity interests of such Subsidiary are directly or
indirectly owned by such Person, except for any de minimis ownership by another Person to the extent required by non-U.S. rules under Applicable Law.



Section 1.2.  Other Terms. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings set forth in the sections indicated.

Term Section
Agreement Preamble
Audit Committee 3.2(e)
Company Preamble
Company Auditors 5.3(d)(ii)
Company Confidential Information 4.1(a)
Company Public Documents 5.3(b)
Compensation Committee 3.1
Compliance Audit 5.3(g)
Compliance Program 5.3(g)
Disclosure Committee 5.3()
Dispute 6.1(a)
Emerson Preamble
Emerson Auditors 5.3(d)(ii)
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Term Section
Emerson Confidential Information 4.1(b)
Emerson Designee 3.2(a)
Emerson Law Firms 7.10(a)
Emerson Parent Preamble
Emerson Public Filings 52
Election Period 4.3(c)
Initial Notice 6.2
Issuance Notice 4.3(b)
Lead Independent Director 3.2(i)
Lockup Period 4.2(a)
M&A Committee 3.3(a)
Nominating & Governance Committee 3.2(e)
Non-Emerson Designee 3.2(e)
Non-Emerson Director 3.2(e)
Non-Privileged Deal Communications 7.10(c)
Old Aspen Tech Preamble
Old Aspen Tech Board 3.1(%1)
Old Aspen Tech Chair 3.1(1)
Other Committees 3.3(d)(i)
Other Stockholders 4.2(c)
Percentage Maintenance Share 4.3(b)
Pre-Agreed Procedures 4.5(c)(i)
Pre-Closing Related Party Transactions 4.5(a)
Privilege 5.5
Privileged Communications 7.10(a)
Privileged Deal Communications 7.10(b)
Proposed Purchase Price 4.3(b)(ii)
Related Party Transactions Policy 4.5(b)
Representatives 4.1(a)
Response 6.2
Significant Subsidiary 3.6(a)(i)
Standstill Period 4.2(b)(1)
Transaction Agreement Preamble
ARTICLE IT
TERM

Section 2.1.  Term and Termination. This Agreement is effective as of the date hereof and shall terminate automatically (a) on the Fourth Trigger Date or (b) in the
event that the Emerson Group beneficially owns 100% of the outstanding Company Securities (other than prong (iv) of the definition thereof). Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the provisions of Section 4.1, Section 4.9, Section 5.4, Section 5.5, Article VI and Article VII, and the definitions
contained herein that are used therein, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.



ARTICLE 111
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS

Section 3.1.  Initial Board Composition. Effective as of the Closing, the Company Board shall initially consist of nine (9) members comprised of (i) five directors
designated by Emerson as follows: (A) Jill D. Smith (the “Old Aspen Tech Chair”), the chair of the Old Aspen Tech board of directors (the “Old Aspen Tech Board”) as of
the date of the Transaction Agreement, who shall be the initial chair of the Company Board, (B) one director designated by Emerson, and (C) three (3) directors designated by
Emerson after consultation with the Old Aspen Tech Chair (it being understood that, as of the date of the Transaction Agreement, it was Emerson’s expectation that the persons
in this clause (C) would be (x) members of the Old Aspen Tech Board or
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(y) Independent Directors) (for the avoidance of doubt, the persons in this clause (i) are Emerson Designees), (ii) the Chief Executive Officer of Old Aspen Tech immediately
prior to the Closing, and (iii) three (3) directors that are Independent Directors designated by Old Aspen Tech, and reasonably acceptable to Emerson, which directors shall have
been designated by Old Aspen Tech prior to the designation of any director (other than the Old Aspen Tech Chair) by Emerson pursuant to this Section 3.1. Effective as of the
Closing, the initial chair of the Compensation Committee of the Company Board (the “Compensation Committee”) shall be designated by Old Aspen Tech.

Section 3.2.  Subsequent Board Composition.

(a) From and after the date hereof, the Company shall take all action to cause the Company Board, at any time (including if the size of the Company Board
is increased or decreased), to be comprised of: (i) prior to the Third Trigger Date, a number of persons designated by Emerson (each person so designated by Emerson,
an “Emerson Designee”) equal to the Emerson Ownership Percentage (expressed as a fraction) multiplied by the total authorized number of directors of the Company
Board at such time (including as constituted immediately following any increase in size of the Company Board to comply with this Section 3.2), rounded up to the
nearest whole person (but in no event less than a majority of the members on the Company Board until the Second Trigger Date) and (ii) following the Third Trigger
Date, one Emerson Designee.

(b) The Company shall cause each Emerson Designee to be included in the slate of nominees recommended by the Company Board to holders of Company
Common Stock for election (including at any annual or special meeting of stockholders held for the election of directors) and shall use its best efforts to cause the
election of each such Emerson Designee, including soliciting proxies in favor of the election of such persons.

(c) In the event that any Emerson Director shall cease to serve as a director for any reason, the vacancy resulting therefrom shall be filled by the Company
Board with a substitute Emerson Designee.

(d) The Company hereby agrees to take, at any time and from time to time, all actions necessary to facilitate the removal and replacement of any Emerson
Director upon the written request of Emerson.

(e) From and after the date hereof, in the event of a vacancy on the Company Board upon the death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from
office or other cause of any director who was not an Emerson Director (each such person, a “Non-Emerson Director”), the Nominating & Governance Committee of
the Company Board (the “Nominating & Governance Committee”) shall have the sole right to fill such vacancy or designate a person for nomination for election to
the Company Board to fill such vacancy (such person, a “Non-Emerson Designee”) in accordance with Applicable Law; provided that, until the Third Trigger Date,
(i) the then-current Chief Executive Officer of the Company shall be included for nomination at any annual or special meeting of the Company at which directors are
elected and (ii) each Non-Emerson Designee (other than the then-current Chief Executive Officer of the Company) shall be a Company Independent Director and shall
meet all other requirements under Applicable Law for membership on the Audit Committee of the Company Board (the “Audit Committee”) and one of which such
Non-Emerson Designees shall also be an “audit committee financial expert” under Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K. For the avoidance of doubt, the Company Board
shall at all times include at least three Company Independent Directors.

(f) For so long as the Emerson Ownership Percentage is greater than fifty percent (50%), to the extent permitted by Applicable Law, if so requested by
Emerson, the Company shall avail itself of available “Controlled Company” exemptions to the corporate governance listing standards of Nasdaq (in whole or in part,
as requested by Emerson).

(g) Subject to Applicable Law, each Emerson Director shall keep confidential any information about the Company and its Affiliates he or she receives as a

result of being a director of the Company Board, provided such Emerson Director is permitted to disclose to the Emerson Group, Representatives of the Emerson
Group and such Emerson Director’s advisors information about the Company and its Affiliates that



he or she receives as a result of being a director. Notwithstanding any duty otherwise existing under Applicable Law or in equity, to the fullest extent permitted by
Applicable Law, no Emerson Director shall have any duty to disclose to the Company or the Company Board or any committee of the Company Board

10



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(or subcommittee thereof) confidential information of Emerson or any Affiliates of Emerson in such Emerson Director’s possession even if it is material and relevant
information to the Company, the Company Board or any committee of the Company Board (or subcommittee thereof) and, in any case, such Emerson Director shall
not be liable to the Company, any of its stockholders or any other Person for breach of any duty (including the duty of loyalty or any other fiduciary duties) as a
director by reason of such lack of disclosure of such confidential information.

(h) Until the Second Trigger Date, (i) Emerson shall have the right to nominate a member of the Company Board as the chair of the Company Board and the
Company shall cause the Company Board to take all actions necessary to cause such person to become the chair of the Company Board, and (ii) the Company shall
take, at any time and from time to time, all actions necessary to cause the Company Board to remove and replace the chair of the Company Board with another
member of the Company Board upon the written request of Emerson.

(1) Until the Second Trigger Date, if at any time the chair of the Company Board is not an Independent Director, to the extent the Company Board
designates a director to be the “lead independent director” (the “Lead Independent Director”) (i) Emerson shall have the right to nominate a member of the Company
Board who is an Independent Director to be the Lead Independent Director and the Company shall cause the Company Board to take all actions necessary to cause
such person to become the Lead Independent Director, and (ii) the Company shall take, at any time and from time to time, all actions necessary to cause the Company
Board to remove and replace the Lead Independent Director with another member of the Company Board who is an Independent Director upon the written request of
Emerson.

(j) For the avoidance of doubt, Emerson shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to waive any and all of the rights granted to it under this Section 3.2, by
delivery of written notice to the Company in accordance with Section 7.3.

Section 3.3.  Committees of the Company Board.

(a) The Company Board shall have the following committees: an Audit Committee, a Nominating & Governance Committee, the Compensation Committee,
until the Third Trigger Date an M&A Committee of the Company Board (the “M&A Committee”), and such other committees as determined by the Company Board.
All references to committees in this Section 3.3 shall include any subcommittees of such committees. Until the Third Trigger Date, Emerson shall have the right to
review and approve the charter for each committee and subcommittee of the Company Board (other than any RPT Committee).

(b) Audit Committee. The Company shall cause the Audit Committee to consist solely of three (3) directors, all of whom shall (i) be Company Independent
Directors and (ii) meet all other requirements of Applicable Law and the Nasdaq listing rules for membership on the Audit Committee. Until the Third Trigger Date,
Emerson shall be entitled to designate one non-voting observer who is entitled to attend meetings of the Audit Committee (which non-voting observer need not be a
member of the Company Board).

() M&A Committee. The M&A Committee shall be an advisory committee that will consist of up to four (4) directors. Until the Third Trigger Date,
Emerson shall be entitled to appoint one member of the M&A Committee and designate one non-voting observer who is entitled to attend meetings of the M&A
Committee (which non-voting observer need not be a member of the Company Board). The M&A Committee shall, among other things, (i) review the Company’s
strategy regarding mergers, acquisitions, investments and dispositions with management periodically and (ii) review all proposed mergers, acquisitions, investments or
dispositions of assets or businesses (it being understood that (x) ordinary course capital expenditures which are otherwise unrelated to any acquisition or disposition of
a business shall not be within the purview of the M&A Committee and (y) the charter for the M&A Committee shall permit the M&A Committee to establish
materiality thresholds for transactions as to which the M&A Committee will not review, which thresholds shall be approved by Emerson).

(d) Other Committee Composition. Until the Third Trigger Date, (i) the Company shall take all action to cause the number of Emerson Directors on all
committees and subcommittees of the Company



Board other than the Audit Committee, M&A Committee and any RPT Committee (such committees and subcommittees, the “Other Committees™) at any time
(including if the size of such Other Committee is
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increased or decreased, to the extent permitted hereunder) to be equal to the Emerson Ownership Percentage (expressed as a fraction) multiplied by the total authorized
number of members of such Other Committee at such time (including as constituted immediately following any increase of such committee or subcommittee to
comply with this Section 3.3 to the extent permitted hereunder), rounded up to the nearest whole person, (ii) Emerson shall have the right to designate which Emerson
Director(s) will serve on each Other Committee and (iii) Emerson shall have the right to designate the chair of each Other Committee; provided that (A) until the
Second Trigger Date, in no event shall the number of Emerson Directors on any Other Committee be less than a majority of the members of such Other Committee,
and (B) following the Second Trigger Date, (1) the number of Emerson Directors on each Other Committee calculated pursuant to the foregoing shall be rounded down
to the nearest whole person, but in no event be less than one member and (2) if (x) Emerson Transfers in any transaction or series of related transactions five percent
(5%) or more of the Company Common Stock outstanding at such time (other than to an Emerson Affiliate) or (y) at any time, none of the Emerson Directors is an
officer or employee of any member of the Emerson Group, then this Section 3.3(d) shall be of no further force and effect.

Section 3.4.  Emerson Agreement to Vote. Emerson Parent shall, and shall cause each member of the Emerson Group to, (a) cause their respective Company Common
Stock to be present for quorum purposes at any Company stockholder meeting, and (b) vote in favor of all Non-Emerson Designees nominated in accordance with this
Agreement.

Section 3.5.  Chief Executive Officer. As of the Closing, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company shall be Antonio J. Pietri.
Section 3.6.  Consent Rights.

(a) Until the Second Trigger Date, the Company shall not, and shall cause the other members of the Company Group not to, directly or indirectly, do any of
the following without the prior written consent of Emerson:

(i) any merger, consolidation, reorganization, conversion or any other business combination involving the Company, or sale of all or substantially all
of the consolidated assets of the Company;

(i) any acquisition (including by merger, consolidation, acquisition of stock or assets or otherwise) of any businesses, assets, operations or securities
comprising a business (other than capital expenditures) with a value in excess of $50,000,000 in any transaction or series of related transactions;

(iii) any redemption, repurchase, cancellation or other acquisition or any offer to redeem, repurchase, cancel or otherwise acquire Company Securities
or any equity or equity-linked securities of any Subsidiary of the Company that is a “significant subsidiary” as defined in Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X under the
Exchange Act (a “Significant Subsidiary”), other than (A) repurchases of Company Common Stock of no more than $50,000,000 in any 12-month period and
that are approved by the Company Board or (B) repurchases of equity or equity-linked securities of any Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company by the
Company or any of its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries;

(iv) the declaration or payment of a cash or other dividend or any other distribution on the Company Securities or any equity or equity-linked
securities of any Significant Subsidiary other than to the Company or one of its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries;

(v) any recapitalization, reclassification, spin-off or combination of any Company Securities or any equity or equity-linked securities of any
Significant Subsidiary, other than a recapitalization, reclassification or combination of equity or equity-linked securities of a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the
Company (and solely involving Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of the Company) that remains a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company after the consummation
of such transaction and that does not have any adverse tax consequences to the Emerson Group;



(vi) any sale, transfer, lease, pledge, abandonment or other disposition or exclusive license (in each case of the foregoing, including by merger,
consolidation, reorganization, conversion, joint venture, sale of stock or assets or otherwise) of any assets, businesses, interests, properties, securities or
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Persons in with a value in excess of $25,000,000 in any transaction or series of related transactions in any 12-month period, other than (A) sales of
inventory or services or dispositions of obsolete assets in each case in the ordinary course of business or (B) to the Company or any of its Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries;

(vii) without limiting any other provision of this Agreement, any incurrence, assumption, guarantee, repurchase or other creation of indebtedness for
borrowed money (including through the issuance of debt securities) in an aggregate principal amount in excess of $25,000,000 on a consolidated basis in any 12-
month period, excluding (A) any indebtedness in respect of a revolving debt facility in existence as of the date hereof or which has previously been approved
pursuant to this Section 3.6(a)(vii) and (B) any indebtedness solely among the Company and its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries;

(viil) any initiation, adoption or public proposal of a voluntary liquidation, dissolution, receivership, bankruptcy or other insolvency proceeding
involving the Company or any Significant Subsidiary, other than a liquidation or dissolution of any Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company;

(ix) any establishment, adoption, amendment or termination of any equity incentive plan or arrangement;

(x) any issuance, delivery or sale, or authorization of the issuance, delivery or sale, of Company Securities or any equity or equity-linked securities of
any Subsidiary of the Company, other than (A) pursuant to equity incentive plans and arrangements previously approved pursuant to this Section 3.6 and by the
Company Board, (B) to the Company or one of its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries and (C) in the case of issuance of securities by any Subsidiary of the Company

located outside of the United States, de minimis issuances required by Applicable Law;

(xi) any termination of the employment of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company or any appointment of a new Chief Executive Officer of the
Company;

(xii) any amendment to the organizational documents (whether by merger, consolidation or otherwise) of the Company or any Significant Subsidiary,
other than any such amendment to the organizational documents of any Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company that does not disproportionately and
adversely affect Emerson in its capacity as an indirect stockholder of such Subsidiary as compared to other indirect stockholders of such Subsidiary;

(xiii) any establishment, adoption, material amendment or termination of any disclosure controls and procedures of the Company; and
(xiv) authorize, agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

(b) Following the Second Trigger Date until the Third Trigger Date, the Company shall not, and shall cause the other members of the Company Group not
to, directly or indirectly, do any of the following without the prior written consent of Emerson:

(i) any merger, consolidation, reorganization, conversion or any other business combination involving the Company, or sale of all or substantially all
of the consolidated assets of the Company;

(ii) any sale, transfer, lease, pledge, abandonment or other disposition or exclusive license (in each case of the foregoing, including by merger,
consolidation, reorganization, conversion, joint venture, sale of stock or assets or otherwise) of any assets, businesses, interests, properties, securities or Persons
with a value in excess of $25,000,000 in any transaction or series of related transactions in any 12-month period, other than (A) sales of inventory or services or
dispositions of obsolete assets in each case in the ordinary course of business or (B) to the Company or any of its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries;



(iii) any initiation, adoption or public proposal of a voluntary liquidation, dissolution, receivership, bankruptcy or other insolvency proceeding
involving the Company;

(iv) any material amendment to the organizational documents (whether by merger, consolidation or otherwise) of the Company;
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(v) any establishment, adoption, material amendment or termination of any disclosure controls and procedures of the Company; and
(vi) authorize, agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

(c) Following the Third Trigger Date until the Fourth Trigger Date, the Company shall not, and shall cause the other members of the Company Group
not to, directly or indirectly, do any of the following without the prior written consent of Emerson:

(i) any initiation, adoption or public proposal of a voluntary liquidation, dissolution, receivership, bankruptcy or other insolvency proceeding
involving the Company;

(i) any amendment to the organizational documents (whether by merger, consolidation or otherwise) of the Company that disproportionately and
adversely affects Emerson in its capacity as a stockholder of the Company as compared to other stockholders of the same class of securities of the Company; and
(iii) authorize, agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

(d) The Company shall provide reasonable advance notice and reasonably detailed information of any action (including copies of any related presentations
and definitive agreements) for which it seeks Emerson’s prior written consent pursuant to this Section 3.6 and shall provide all other information reasonably and
promptly requested by Emerson and its Representatives in connection with any such actions; provided that, in each case, the Company shall not be required to provide
any information if providing such information would (i) violate Applicable Law, (ii) result in the loss of attorney-client privilege with respect to such information or
(iii) result in the disclosure of Trade Secrets (as defined in the Transaction Agreement); provided further that the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
provide such information in a way that would not violate such Applicable Law or result in such loss or disclosure. Emerson shall inform the Company in writing as to
whether or not consent is granted pursuant to this Section 3.6 no later than thirty (30) days (provided that, in the case of any requested consent pursuant to Section
3.6(a)(iii), (a)(iv), (a)(xiii) and (a)(xiv) (solely as it relates to the foregoing), and Section 3.6(b)(v) and (b)(vi) (solely as it relates to the foregoing), this shall be no
later than fifteen (15) days) following the date on which the Company provides Emerson with the information regarding the transaction for which Emerson’s consent is
requested, and, for the avoidance of doubt, Emerson shall be deemed to have consented to such transaction if Emerson does not provide a written statement that the
requested consent has been denied within such time period. Emerson Parent shall make its Chief Executive Officer reasonably available to the Company for the
purpose of responding to such requests.

(e) The dollar amounts set forth in Sections 3.6(a)(ii), (a)(iii), (a)(vi) and (a)(vii) and Sections 3.6(b)(ii) shall be increased by (i) on December 31, 2025, by
the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (the “CPI”) on December 31, 2025 as compared to the CPI on
December 31, 2022, (ii) on December 31, 2028, by the percentage increase in the CPI on December 31, 2028 as compared to the CPI on December 31, 2025, and (iii)
every three years from December 31, 2028, mutatis mutandis.

Section 3.7.  Modifications to Business Strategy.

(a) Until the First Trigger Date, the Company shall not, and shall cause the other members of the Company Group not to, directly or indirectly, without the
prior written consent of Emerson, modify the business strategy, or modify or expand the scope or nature of the business or other activities, of the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries beyond the Company Business (which for the purposes of this provision includes control or hardware-connected technology software products for, and
software and technology intended for, historian), or authorize, agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

(b) The Company shall provide reasonable advance notice and reasonably detailed information of any action (including copies of any related presentations
and definitive agreements) for which it seeks



Emerson’s prior written consent pursuant to this Section 3.7 and shall provide all other information reasonably and promptly requested by Emerson and its
Representatives in connection with any such actions; provided that, in each case, the Company shall not be required to provide any information if providing such
information would (i) violate Applicable Law, (ii) result in the loss of attorney-client privilege with respect to such
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information or (iii) result in the disclosure of Trade Secrets (as defined in the Transaction Agreement); provided further that the Company shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to provide such information in a way that would not violate such Applicable Law or result in such loss or disclosure. Emerson shall inform the
Company in writing as to whether or not consent is granted pursuant to this Section 3.7 no later than thirty (30) days following the date on which the Company
provides Emerson with the information regarding the action for which Emerson’s consent is requested, and, for the avoidance of doubt, Emerson shall be deemed to
have consented to such transaction if Emerson does not provide a written statement that the requested consent has been denied within such time period. Emerson
Parent shall make its Chief Executive Officer reasonably available to the Company for the purpose of responding to such requests.

ARTICLE 1V
OTHER AGREEMENTS

Section 4.1.  Confidentiality.

(a) From the date hereof until the date that is three (3) years following the Fourth Trigger Date, subject to Section 4.1(c) and except as contemplated by this
Agreement, any Transaction Document or any Intercompany Commercial Agreement, Emerson Parent shall not, shall cause the other members of the Emerson Group
and its and such other members’ directors and officers not to, and shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause it and such other members’ employees and other agents
and representatives (including legal counsel and outside advisors) not to, directly or indirectly, disclose any Company Confidential Information to any Person;
provided that Company Confidential Information may be disclosed:

(i) to any other member of the Emerson Group;

(i) to any Representative of any member of the Emerson Group in the normal course of the performance of such Representative’s duties or to any
financial institution providing credit to any member of the Emerson Group;

(iii) to any Person to whom any member of the Emerson Group is contemplating a Transfer of Company Common Stock; provided that such Transfer
would not be in violation of the provisions of this Agreement and such potential transferee is advised of the confidential nature of such information and agrees to
be bound by a confidentiality agreement consistent with the provisions hereof;

(iv) to any regulatory authority or ratings agency to which any member of the Emerson Group or any of its Affiliates is subject or with which it has
regular dealings; provided that such authority or agency is advised of the confidential nature of such information; or

(v) if the prior approval or written consent of the Company Board (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed) shall have been obtained.

Nothing contained herein shall prevent the use (subject, to the extent possible, to a protective order) of Company Confidential Information in connection with the
assertion or defense of any claim by or against any member of the Emerson Group or the Company Group, any Affiliates thereof, any Non-Emerson Designee, any Non-
Emerson Director, any Emerson Designee or any Emerson Director.

For purposes of this Section 4.1(a), any confidential information relating to the Company Group furnished to any member of the Emerson Group in connection with
this Agreement, the Transition Services Agreement, the other Transaction Documents or the Intercompany Commercial Agreements is hereinafter referred to as “Company
Confidential Information.” “Company Confidential Information” does not include information that (i) is or becomes generally available to the public, other than as a result
of a breach of this Section 4.1(a), (ii) was or became available to any member of the Emerson Group from a source other than a member of the Company Group or a
Representative thereof on behalf of the Company Group or (iii) is developed independently by a member of the Emerson Group without reference to the Company Confidential
Information; provided that, in the case of clause (ii), the source of such information was not known by such member of the Emerson Group to be bound by a confidentiality
agreement with, or other contractual, legal or fiduciary obligation of confidentiality to, any member of the Company Group with respect to such information.



(b) From the date hereof until the date that is three (3) years following the Fourth Trigger Date, subject to Section 4.1(c) and except as contemplated by this
Agreement, any Transaction Document or any Intercompany Commercial Agreement, the Company shall not, shall cause the other members of the
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Company Group and its and such other members’ directors and officers not to, and shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause it and such other members’ employees
and other agents and representatives (including legal counsel and outside advisors) not to, directly or indirectly, disclose any Emerson Confidential Information to any
Person; provided that Emerson Confidential Information may be disclosed:

(i) to any other member of the Company Group;

(ii) to any Representative of any member of the Company Group in the normal course of the performance of such Representative’s duties or to any
financial institution providing credit to any member of the Company Group;

(iii) to any regulatory authority or ratings agency to which any member of the Company Group or any of its Affiliates is subject or with which it has
regular dealings; provided that such authority or agency is advised of the confidential nature of such information; or

(iv) if the prior approval or written consent of Emerson (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed) shall have been obtained.

Nothing contained herein shall prevent the use (subject, to the extent possible, to a protective order) of Emerson Confidential Information in connection with the assertion or
defense of any claim by or against any member of the Emerson Group or the Company Group, any Affiliates thereof, any Non-Emerson Designee or any Non-Emerson
Director.

For purposes of this Section 4.1(b), any confidential information relating to the Emerson Group furnished to any member of the Company Group in connection with this
Agreement, the Transition Services Agreement, the other Transaction Documents or the Intercompany Commercial Agreements is hereinafter referred to as “Emerson
Confidential Information.” “Emerson Confidential Information” does not include information that (i) is or becomes generally available to the public, other than as a result
of a breach of this Section 4.1(b), (ii) was or became available to any member of the Company Group from a source other than a member of the Emerson Group or a
Representative thereof on behalf of the Emerson Group or (iii) is developed independently by a member of the Company Group without reference to the Emerson Confidential
Information; provided that, in the case of clause (ii), the source of such information was not known by such member of the Company Group to be bound by a confidentiality
agreement with, or other contractual, legal or fiduciary obligation of confidentiality to, any member of the Emerson Group with respect to such information.

(c) If Emerson or any of its Affiliates or Representatives, on the one hand, or the Company or any of its Affiliates or Representatives, on the other hand, are
requested or required (by oral question, interrogatories, requests for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative demand or similar process) by any
Governmental Authority or pursuant to Applicable Law to disclose or provide any Company Confidential Information or Emerson Confidential Information,
respectively, the Person receiving such request or demand or subject to such requirement, or so required by Applicable Law, shall use commercially reasonable efforts
to provide the other Party with written notice of such request, demand or requirement as promptly as practicable under the circumstances so that such other Party shall
have an opportunity to seek an appropriate protective order. The Party receiving such request or demand or subject to such requirement agrees to take, and cause its
Representatives to take, at the requesting Party’s expense, all commercially reasonable steps necessary to obtain confidential treatment by the recipient. Subject to the
foregoing, the Party that received such request or demand or is subject to such requirement may thereafter disclose or provide any Company Confidential Information
or Emerson Confidential Information, as the case may be, to the extent required by such Applicable Law (as so advised by counsel) or such Governmental Authority.

Section 4.2.  Restrictions on Transferability and Acquisitions.

(a) Lockup. For a period of two (2) years beginning on the date hereof (the “Lockup Period”), no member of the Emerson Group shall Transfer any
Company Common Stock to any Person that is not a controlled Affiliate of Emerson Parent, unless approved by an RPT Committee; provided that Section 4.2(a) shall
be of no further force or effect from and after the Third Trigger Date.

(b)  Standstill.



(i) For a period of two (2) years beginning on the date hereof (the “Standstill Period”), Emerson Parent shall not, and shall cause the other members
of the Emerson Group not to, directly or
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indirectly, in any manner, effect or seek, offer or propose (whether publicly or otherwise) to effect, or announce any intention to effect or otherwise participate in
or knowingly encourage, any acquisition of Company Common Stock (including in derivative form) or any tender or exchange offer, merger, consolidation,
business combination or other similar transaction involving the Company or any other member of the Company Group that would result in the Emerson
Ownership Percentage being greater than the Emerson Ownership Percentage as of the date hereof; provided that Emerson Parent shall be permitted to make a
private proposal to the Company Board that would not reasonably be expected to require the Company or any other member of the Company Group to make any
public announcement or other disclosure. The foregoing shall not prohibit:

(A) Emerson Parent or any other member of the Emerson Group from acquiring Company Common Stock by way of stock splits, stock dividends,
reclassifications, recapitalizations or other distributions by the Company to all holders of Company Common Stock on a pro rata basis; or

(B) acquisitions by Emerson Parent or any other member of the Emerson Group of Company Common Stock (A) approved by an RPT Committee,
(B) pursuant to the exercise of the preemptive rights set forth in Section 4.3 or the percentage maintenance rights set forth in Section 4.4, (C) pursuant to the
Pre-Agreed Procedures or (D) of no more than five (5%) of the outstanding Company Common Stock in the aggregate (as measured as of the date hereof)
during the Standstill Period in the open market.

(¢)  Buyout Transaction. Until the Second Trigger Date, any proposal by any member of the Emerson Group to acquire in a transaction or series of related
transactions reasonably expected to result in the acquisition of all of the Company Common Stock held by stockholders other than the Emerson Group (the “Other
Stockholders”) must either be (as elected by Emerson in its sole discretion) (i) subject to review, evaluation and prior written approval of an RPT Committee, or (ii)
submitted for approval to the stockholders of the Company, with a non-waivable condition that a majority of the Company Common Stock held by Other Stockholders
approve the transaction (or equivalent tender offer condition).

(d) Competitors. Following the Second Trigger Date, Emerson Parent shall not, and shall cause the other members of the Emerson Group not to, Transfer, in
a single transaction or in a series of transactions, more than ten percent (10%) of the then-outstanding Company Common Stock to any Person who is engaged in any
business that engages in the Company Business (other than a member of the Company Group or a member of the Emerson Group), unless approved by an RPT
Committee.

(e) Company Obligations. The Company shall not adopt any stockholder rights plan, “poison pill” or similar arrangement, or adopt any anti-takeover
provisions under its organizational documents, that would trigger any right, obligation or event as a result of any Transfer of Company Common Stock by any member
of the Emerson Group.

Section 4.3.  Preemptive Rights.

(a) To the extent permitted under Nasdaq rules, the Company hereby grants to Emerson the right until the Second Trigger Date to purchase up to its Pro
Rata Portion of any Company Securities that the Company may from time to time propose to issue or sell to any Person; provided that, without limiting the Pre-Agreed
Procedures, in the case Company Securities are proposed to be issued (in whole or in part) as consideration in any merger, consolidation, reorganization, conversion,
joint venture or any other business combination, or any acquisition (including by merger, consolidation, acquisition of stock or assets or otherwise) of any businesses,
assets, operations or securities comprising a business (any such transaction, an “M&A Transaction”), Emerson shall only be entitled to purchase a number of such
Company Securities up to its Percentage Maintenance Share.

(b) Without limiting Emerson’s rights pursuant to Section 3.6, the Company shall give written notice to Emerson (an “Issuance Notice”) of any proposed
issuance or sale described in Section 4.3(a) within five (5) Business Days following any meeting of the Company Board or any committee of the Company Board (or
subcommittee thereof) at which any such issuance or sale is approved or, if the approval of the Company Board or any committee of the Company Board (or
subcommittee thereof) is not required in
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connection with such issuance or sale, no less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of the proposed issuance or sale. The Issuance Notice shall, if applicable, be
accompanied by a written offer from any prospective purchaser seeking to purchase Company Securities and shall set forth the material terms and conditions of the
proposed issuance or sale, including:

(i) the number and class of the Company Securities to be issued or sold and the percentage of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company
such issuance or sale would represent;

(ii) the proposed issuance or sale date, which shall be at least thirty (30) days from the date of receipt by Emerson of the Issuance Notice; and

(iii) (x) in the case of an issuance for cash (other than a public offering of Company Securities) or offer from a prospective third party for cash, the
proposed purchase price in cash per Company Security and (y) in all other cases (including a public offering of Company Securities), the Company’s calculation
of the purchase price based on the Pre-Agreed Procedures (such proposed purchase price in clause (x) or (y), the “Proposed Purchase Price”).

(c) For a period of thirty (30) days (such period, as it may be extended pursuant to the proviso of this sentence, the “Election Period”) following the receipt
by Emerson of an Issuance Notice, Emerson shall have the right to elect irrevocably to purchase up to its Pro Rata Portion of the Company Securities (or, to the extent
applicable as set forth in the proviso of Section 4.3(a), a number of Company Securities up to its Percentage Maintenance Share) at the Proposed Purchase Price by
delivering a written notice to the Company; provided that, following receipt of an Issuance Notice, Emerson may agree upon a different Proposed Purchase Price with
an RPT Committee in accordance with the Related Party Transactions Policy in which case (i) Emerson shall purchase up to its Pro Rata Portion of the Company
Securities (or, to the extent applicable as set forth in the proviso of Section 4.3(a), a number of Company Securities up to its Percentage Maintenance Share) at such
other Proposed Purchase Price and (ii) the Election Period shall be tolled for so long as Emerson and an RPT Committee are working in good faith to agree on a
Proposed Purchase Price until such time as Emerson and such RPT Committee agree on the Proposed Purchase Price. If, at the termination of the Election Period,
Emerson shall not have delivered such notice to the Company, Emerson shall be deemed to have waived all of its rights under this Section 4.3 with respect to the
purchase of the Company Securities referred to in the Issuance Notice. The closing of any purchase by Emerson shall be consummated concurrently with the
consummation of the issuance or sale described in the Issuance Notice; provided that the closing of any purchase by Emerson may be extended beyond the closing of
the transaction in the Issuance Notice to the extent necessary to (x) obtain any required approval of a Governmental Authority or (y) to the extent stockholder approval
is required under the Nasdaq rules, in which case the Company and Emerson shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to obtain any such approval(s); provided
that the Emerson Ownership Percentage and the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage shall at all times during this period be calculated as if Emerson shall
have exercised its rights pursuant to this Section 4.3 in full and as if all remaining shares described in the Issuance Notice shall have been issued or sold, until such
time that (i) such sale to Emerson is consummated, (ii) in the case of a required approval of a Governmental Authority, there is a final, non-appealable court order
prohibiting Emerson from acquiring such Company Securities, (iii) in the case stockholder approval is required under the Nasdaq rules, such stockholder vote shall
have occurred and such sale to Emerson not be approved or (iv) Emerson determines not to exercise such rights.

(d) Upon the expiration of the Election Period, the Company shall be free to sell such Company Securities referenced in the Issuance Notice that Emerson
has not elected irrevocably to purchase on terms and conditions no more favorable to the purchasers thereof than those offered to Emerson in the Issuance Notice
delivered in accordance with Section 4.3(b); provided that if such sale is not consummated within thirty (30) days of the expiration of the Election Period, then any
further issuance or sale of such Company Securities shall again be subject to this Section 4.3.

(e) For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of this Section 4.3 shall terminate on the Second Trigger Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
this Agreement, this Section 4.3 shall not apply with respect to the issuance or sale of Other Company Securities (as defined in the Pre-Agreed Procedures) which shall
be subject to the terms and conditions of the Pre-Agreed Procedures.
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(f) Inall cases where Emerson has the right to purchase Company Securities up to its Percentage Maintenance Share pursuant to this Agreement (including
Schedule 4.5(c)), following the issuance or sale of the applicable Company Securities that triggers such Percentage Maintenance Share, the Emerson Ownership
Percentage and the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage shall at all times be calculated as if Emerson shall have exercised such right in full and as if any
Company Securities not yet issued or sold to the third party shall have been issued or sold, until the earlier of (i) the termination of the period for Emerson to elect to
exercise such right if Emerson shall not have elected to exercise such right and (ii) the consummation of Emerson’s exercise of such right, at which time the Emerson
Ownership Percentage and the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage shall be calculated in accordance with the definitions thereof.

Section 4.4.  Percentage Maintenance Share.

(a) Following the Second Trigger Date, to the extent permitted under Nasdaq rules, with respect to any Company Securities that the Company may from
time to time issue or sell to any Person, the Company hereby grants to Emerson the right to purchase Company Securities up to its Percentage Maintenance Share in
connection with such transaction.

(b) Without limiting Emerson’s rights pursuant to Section 3.6, the Company shall give written notice to Emerson (a “Maintenance Notice”) of any issuance
or sale of described in Section 4.4(a) within five (5) Business Days following such issuance or sale. The Maintenance Notice shall set forth the material terms and
conditions of such issuance or sale, including:

(i) the number and class of the Company Securities issued or sold and the percentage of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company such
issuance or sale represented;

(i) the Percentage Maintenance Share with respect to such issuance or sale; and
(iii) the Proposed Purchase Price.

(c) For aperiod of 30 days (such period, as it may be extended pursuant to the proviso of this sentence, the “Maintenance Election Period”) following the
receipt by Emerson of a Maintenance Issuance Notice, Emerson shall have the right to elect irrevocably to purchase up to its Percentage Maintenance Share at the
Proposed Purchase Price by delivering a written notice to the Company; provided that, following receipt of a Maintenance Issuance Notice, Emerson may agree upon a
different Proposed Purchase Price with an RPT Committee in accordance with the Related Party Transactions Policy in which case (i) Emerson shall purchase up to its
Percentage Maintenance Share at such other Proposed Purchase Price and (ii) the Maintenance Election Period shall be tolled for so long as Emerson and an RPT
Committee are working in good faith to agree on a Proposed Purchase Price until such time as Emerson and such RPT Committee agree on the Proposed Purchase
Price. If, at the termination of the Maintenance Election Period, Emerson shall not have delivered such notice to the Company, Emerson shall be deemed to have
waived all of its rights under this Section 4.4 with respect to the purchase of the Company Securities referred to in the Maintenance Issuance Notice. The closing of
any purchase by Emerson shall be consummated promptly following Emerson’s delivery of such notice; provided that the closing of any purchase by Emerson may
be extended to the extent necessary to (x) obtain any required approval of a Governmental Authority or (y) to the extent stockholder approval is required under the
Nasdaq rules, in which case the Company and Emerson shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to obtain any such approval(s); provided that the Emerson
Ownership Percentage and the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage shall at all times during this period be calculated as if Emerson shall have exercised its
rights pursuant to this Section 4.4 in full and as if any Company Securities not yet issued or sold to the third party described in the Maintenance Notice shall have been
issued or sold, until such time that (i) such sale to Emerson is consummated, (ii) in the case of a required approval of a Governmental Authority, there is a final, non-
appealable court order prohibiting Emerson from acquiring such Company Securities, (iii) in the case stockholder approval is required under the Nasdaq rules, such
stockholder vote shall have occurred and such sale to Emerson not be approved or (iv) Emerson determines not to exercise such rights.
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(d) For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of this Section 4.4 shall be in effect following the Second Trigger Date. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Agreement, this Section 4.4 shall not apply with respect to the issuance or sale of Other Company Securities (as defined in the Pre-Agreed Procedures)
which shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Pre-Agreed Procedures.

Section 4.5.  Related Party Transactions.

(a) All transactions and agreements entered into at or prior to the Closing that would have been Related Party Transactions if they were entered into after the
Closing (including any proposed Related Party Transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents) between any member of the Company Group, on the one
hand, and any member of the Emerson Group, on the other hand (the “Pre-Closing Related Party Transactions”) shall not be subject to any further approval of the
Company Board or any committee or subcommittee of the Company Board (including by an RPT Committee), including with respect to any implementation of the
terms of the Pre-Closing Related Party Transactions (including, to the extent applicable, any negotiation of one or more long-form agreements reflecting the terms of
the Commercial Agreement Term Sheet (as defined in the Transaction Agreement); provided that, any material amendments to, material modifications or terminations
(other than as a result of expiration or non-renewal) of, or material waivers, material consents or material elections under any Pre-Closing Related Party Transactions
shall require the prior written approval of an RPT Committee, subject to and consistent with the Related Party Transactions Policy (as defined below).

(b) For so long as the Emerson Ownership Percentage is at least 20%, except as set forth in Section 4.5(c), all Related Party Transactions shall be governed
by the policy set forth on Schedule 4.5(b) (as it may be amended from time to time pursuant to Section 7.7(a), the “Related Party Transactions Policy”).

(c) The Related Party Transactions Policy shall not (i) apply to any transaction pursuant to Section 4.2(c), Section 4.3 or pursuant to the policies and
procedures set forth on Schedule 4.5(c) (as may be amended from time to time, the “Pre-Agreed Procedures”), (ii) apply to any Related Party Transaction that is not a
Material Related Party Transaction (as defined in the Related Party Transactions Policy) or (iii) limit Emerson’s rights and the Company’s obligations with respect to
Section 3.6.

(d) Emerson shall have the right, but not the obligation, to participate in the transactions set forth in the Pre-Agreed Procedures to the extent set forth therein
in accordance with the policies and procedures set forth therein, and the Company shall take all action such that Emerson shall be able to so participate if it so elects to
the extent set forth therein.

Section 4.6.  Non-Compete.

(a) Until the First Trigger Date, Emerson Parent will not, and will not permit any of the other members of the Emerson Group to, own, manage or operate
any business that engages in the Company Business anywhere in the world except:

(i) ownership by Emerson Parent or any of the other members of the Emerson Group of less than an aggregate of 10% of the total equity ownership of
a Person engaged in the Company Business; and

(ii) acquisitions by Emerson Parent or any of the other members of the Emerson Group of any business or Person that is engaged in the Company
Business so long as no more than 20% of such business or Person’s revenues (based on such business or Person’s latest annual consolidated financial statements
prior to such acquisition) are attributable to the Company Business; provided that Emerson Parent and the other members of the Emerson Group may acquire a
diversified business or Person having more than 20% of such business or Person’s revenues (based on such business or Person’s latest annual consolidated
financial statements prior to such acquisition) attributable to the Company Business as long as Emerson Parent or the applicable member of the Emerson Group
divest the portion attributable to the Company Business in excess of such 20% threshold within 18 months following consummation of such acquisition.
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(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event will this Agreement restrict or limit Emerson Parent or any member of the Emerson Group from owning,
managing or operating any business that engages in the Emerson Permitted Business anywhere in the world.

Section 4.7.  No Solicitation of Employees. For a period of twelve (12) months beginning on the date hereof, each of the Company and Emerson Parent shall obtain
the prior written consent of the other before such Party or any of its Affiliates, directly or indirectly, solicits the employment of, in the case of the Company, any Emerson
Covered Employee and, in the case of Emerson Parent, any Company Covered Employee, or make or extend any offer of employment to, or hire, employ or engage (including
as a consultant or any similar role), in the case of the Company, any Emerson Covered Employee and, in the case of Emerson Parent, any Company Covered Employee. This
Section 4.7 shall cease to apply with respect to an Emerson Covered Employee or a Company Covered Employee, six months after the date on which their employment with, in
the case of an Emerson Covered Employee, the Emerson Group and, in the case of a Company Covered Employee, the Company Group, is terminated. Nothing in this Section
4.7 shall restrict or prevent either Party or any of its Affiliates from making generalized solicitations or searches for employees by the use of advertisements in the media of any
form (including trade media) or by engaging search firms that are not instructed to solicit, hire or engage in the case of the Company, Emerson Covered Employees and, in the
case of Emerson Parent, Company Covered Employees.

Section 4.8.  Intercompany Agreements. If the Emerson Ownership Percentage is not in excess of forty percent (40%) for a consecutive period of six (6) months or
more, each of the Company (on behalf of the applicable member of the Company Group) and Emerson Parent (on behalf of the applicable member of the Emerson Group) shall
have the right to terminate any Intercompany Commercial Agreement upon written notice to the other.

Section 4.9.  Corporate Opportunity.

(a) General. In recognition and anticipation (i) that the Company will not be a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Emerson and that Emerson will be a significant
stockholder of the Company, (ii) that directors, officers or employees of Emerson may serve as directors or officers of the Company, (iii) that, subject to any
contractual arrangements that may otherwise from time to time be agreed to between Emerson and the Company including this Agreement (including Section 4.6), the
other Transaction Documents and the Intercompany Commercial Agreements, Emerson may engage in the same, similar or related lines of business as those in which
the Company, directly or indirectly, may engage or other business activities that overlap with or compete with those in which the Company, directly or indirectly, may
engage, (iv) that Emerson may have an interest in the same areas of corporate opportunity as the Company, and (v) that, as a consequence of the foregoing, it is in the
best interests of the Company that the respective rights and duties of the Company and of Emerson, and the duties of any directors or officers of the Company who are
also directors, officers or employees of Emerson, be determined and delineated in respect of any transactions between, or opportunities that may be suitable for both,
the Company, on the one hand, and Emerson, on the other hand, this Section 4.9 shall to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law regulate and define the conduct
of certain of the business and affairs of the Company in relation to Emerson and the conduct of certain affairs of the Company as they may involve Emerson and its
directors, officers or employees, and the power, rights, duties and liabilities of the Company and its officers, directors and stockholders in connection therewith.

(b) Certain Agreements and Transactions Permitted. The Company has entered into this Agreement, and, subject to this Agreement, may from time to time
enter into and perform one or more agreements (including the Intercompany Commercial Agreements) (or modifications or supplements to pre-existing agreements)
with Emerson pursuant to which the Company, on the one hand, and Emerson, on the other hand, agree to engage in transactions of any kind or nature with each other
or agree to compete, or to refrain from competing or to limit or restrict their competition, with each other, including to allocate and to cause their respective directors,
officers or employees (including any who are directors, officers or employees of both) to allocate opportunities between or to refer opportunities to each other. Subject
to this Section 4.9, and except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Company and Emerson, no such agreement, or the performance thereof by the Company or
Emerson shall, to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, be considered contrary to (i) any fiduciary duty that Emerson may owe to the Company or to any
stockholder or other owner of an equity interest in the Company by reason of Emerson being a controlling
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or significant stockholder of the Company or participating in the control of the Company or (ii) any fiduciary duty owed by any director or officer of the Company
who is also a director, officer or employee of Emerson to the Company, or to any stockholder thereof. Subject to Section 4.9(d), to the fullest extent permitted by
Applicable Law, Emerson, as a stockholder of the Company, or as a participant in control of the Company, shall not have or be under any fiduciary duty to refrain from
entering into any agreement or participating in any transaction referred to above, and no director or officer of the Company who is also a director, officer or employee
of Emerson shall have or be under any fiduciary duty to the Company to refrain from acting on behalf of the Company or of Emerson in respect of any such agreement
or transaction or performing any such agreement in accordance with its terms.

(c) Business Activities. Except as otherwise set forth herein (including Section 4.6) or otherwise agreed in writing between the Company and Emerson, and
subject to Section 4.9(d), Emerson shall to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law have no duty to refrain from (i) engaging in the same or similar activities or
lines of business as the Company or (ii) doing business with any client, customer or vendor of the Company, and (except as provided in Section 4.9(d) below) neither
Emerson nor any officer, director or employee thereof shall, to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, be deemed to have breached its fiduciary duties, if any,
to the Company solely by reason of Emerson’s engaging in any such activity. Subject to Section 4.9(d), except as otherwise agreed in writing between the Company
and Emerson, in the event that Emerson acquires knowledge of a potential transaction or matter that may be a corporate opportunity for both the Company and
Emerson, Emerson shall to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law not be liable to the Company or its stockholders for breach of any fiduciary duty as a
stockholder of the Company by reason of the fact that Emerson acquires or seeks such corporate opportunity for itself, directs such corporate opportunity to another
Person, or otherwise does not communicate information regarding such corporate opportunity to the Company, and the Company to the fullest extent permitted by
Applicable Law renounces any interest or expectancy in such business opportunity and waives any claim that such business opportunity constituted a corporate
opportunity that should have been presented to the Company.

(d) Corporate Opportunities. Except as otherwise agreed in writing between the Company and Emerson, in the event that a director or officer of the
Company who is also a director, officer or employee of Emerson acquires knowledge of a potential transaction or matter that may be a corporate opportunity for both
the Company and Emerson, such director or officer shall to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law have fully satisfied and fulfilled his or her fiduciary duty
with respect to such corporate opportunity, and the Company to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law renounces any interest or expectancy in such business
opportunity and waives any claim that such business opportunity constituted a corporate opportunity that should have been presented to the Company, if such director
or officer acts in a manner consistent with the following policy:

(i) such a corporate opportunity offered to any individual who is a director but not an officer or employee of the Company and who is also a director,
officer or employee of Emerson shall belong to the Company only if such opportunity is expressly offered to such person solely in his or her capacity as a
director of the Company and otherwise shall belong to Emerson; and

(i) such a corporate opportunity offered to any individual who is an officer or employee of the Company and also is a director, officer or employee of
Emerson shall belong to the Company unless such opportunity is expressly offered to such person in his or her capacity as a director, officer or employee of
Emerson, in which case such opportunity shall belong to Emerson.

(e) Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Section 4.9, (1) “corporate opportunities” include business opportunities that the Company is financially able to
undertake, which are, from their nature, in the line of the Company’s business, are of practical advantage to it and are ones in which the Company, but for Section
4.9(c)-(d), would have an interest or a reasonable expectancy, (2) “Emerson” shall mean Emerson and each other member of the Emerson Group and (3) the
“Company” shall mean the Company and each other member of the Company Group.

Section 4.10.  Nasdag. The Company Common Stock shall be listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC, or any successor thereto.
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ARTICLE V
FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, each of the covenants and agreements in this Article V shall terminate on the Third Trigger Date.
Section 5.1.  Annual, Quarterly and Monthly Financial Information; Emerson’s Operating Reviews.

(a) The Company shall deliver to Emerson Parent such financial, tax and accounting information and materials as Emerson Parent may reasonably request,
including the following:

(i) within seven (7) Business Days following each calendar month-end, a monthly reporting package including an unaudited balance sheet of the
Company as of the end of such month and the related statements of earnings, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows, and reasonable
supporting schedules and account detail for the month and year-to-date period on Emerson Parent’s year-end basis, in accordance with GAAP, and setting forth in
comparative form the figures for the corresponding periods of the previous fiscal year;

(i) no later than the third (3<) Monday of January, April, July, and October, forecast statements of earnings, cash flow, balance sheet and stockholders’
equity, and reasonable supporting schedules and analysis for the current fiscal quarter and the next three fiscal quarters; and

(iii)) No later than the fifteenth (15*) calendar day of August, a forecast for the next four fiscal quarters (Emerson Parent’s fiscal year-end basis),
including statements of earnings, cash flow, balance sheet and stockholders’ equity, and supporting schedules and analysis by quarter, for the next fiscal year.

(b) On a quarter-end basis, no later than ten (10) Business Days following the end of a fiscal quarter, the Company shall deliver a discussion and analysis by
management of the Company’s and its Subsidiaries’ consolidated financial condition and results of operations for the requisite quarterly and year-to-date periods on
Emerson Parent’s fiscal year basis (as applicable), and other information reasonably required to comply with Emerson Parent’s SEC reporting requirements. The
Company shall provide Emerson Parent an opportunity to meet with management of the Company to discuss such information required to be delivered by this Section
5.1 upon reasonable notice during normal business hours.

(c) No later than five (5) Business Days prior to the day the Company publicly files its Annual Report on Form 10-K or Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
with the SEC, the Company shall deliver to Emerson Parent the substantially final form of its Annual Report on Form 10-K or Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
together with the form of all certifications required by Applicable Law by each of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and, with
respect to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, the form of opinion the Company’s independent certified public accountants expect to provide thereon.

Section 5.2.  Emerson Public Filings. The Company shall cooperate, and cause its accountants to cooperate, with Emerson Parent to the extent reasonably requested
by Emerson Parent in the preparation of Emerson Parent’s press releases, public earnings releases, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Annual Reports to Shareholders, Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, any Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments thereto and any other proxy, information and registration statements, reports, notices,
prospectuses and any other filings made by any member of the Emerson Group with the SEC, any national securities exchange or otherwise made publicly available
(collectively, “Emerson Public Filings”). The Company shall provide to Emerson Parent all information that Emerson Parent reasonably requests in connection with any such
Emerson Public Filings or that is required to be disclosed therein under any Applicable Law. The Company agrees to provide such information in a timely manner, but no later
than ten (10) Business Days following each quarter-end date. If and to the extent reasonably requested by Emerson Parent, the Company shall diligently and promptly review
all drafts of such Emerson Public Filings and prepare in a diligent and timely fashion any portion of such Emerson Public Filing pertaining to the Company or the other
members of the Company Group. Prior to any printing or public release of any Emerson Public Filing, an appropriate executive officer



of the Company, shall, if requested by Emerson Parent, confirm to the best of such officer’s knowledge that the information provided by the Company relating to the Company
Group in such Emerson Public Filing is accurate, true and correct in all material respects. Unless
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required by Applicable Law or GAAP or interpretations thereof, without the prior consent of Emerson Parent, the Company shall not publicly release any financial or other
information that conflicts with the information with respect to the Company, any Affiliate of the Company or the Company Group that is provided by the Company for any
Emerson Public Filing.

Section 5.3.  Other Financial Reporting and Compliance Matters.

(a) Other Information. The Company shall provide to Emerson Parent such other information of the Company and the other members of the Company
Group reasonably requested by Emerson, in a timely manner, in connection with its equity ownership in the Company.

(b)  Public Information and SEC Reports. The Company shall timely file and consult with Emerson Parent in preparing reports, notices and proxy and
information statements to be sent or made available by the Company to its security holders, all regular, periodic and other reports filed under Sections 13, 14 and 15 of
the Exchange Act by the Company and all registration statements and prospectuses (including all financial statements contained therein) to be filed by the Company
with the SEC or any securities exchange pursuant to the listed company manual (or similar requirements) of such exchange (collectively, “Company Public
Documents”). Emerson Parent shall have the right to review and comment on any proposed Company Public Document reasonably in advance of the date the same
are printed for distribution to the Company’s stockholders, sent to the Company’s stockholders or filed with the SEC, whichever is earliest. The Company shall
consider any such comments in good faith and deliver to Emerson Parent, no later than the date the same are printed for distribution to the Company’s stockholders,
sent to the Company’s stockholders or filed with the SEC, whichever is earliest, final copies of all Company Public Documents (except to the extent publicly available
via the SEC’s EDGAR system). The Company shall file on a date reasonably determined by Emerson Parent, (x) its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q with the SEC and
(y) its Annual Report on Form 10-K with the SEC, unless the Company is otherwise required by Applicable Law. The Parties shall cooperate in preparing all press
releases and other statements to be made available by the Company or any other member of the Company Group to the public, including information concerning
material developments in the business, properties, results of operations, financial condition or prospects of the Company or any other member of the Company Group.
Emerson shall have the right to review and comment on, reasonably in advance, but no later than five (5) Business Days of public release or release to financial
analysts or investors (1) all press releases and other statements to be made available by the Company or any other member of the Company Group to the public that
relate to financial or accounting matters and (2) all reports and other information prepared by the Company or any other member of the Company Group for release to
financial analysts or investors. The Company shall consider any such comments in good faith. No press release, report, registration, information or proxy statement,
prospectus or other document which refers, or contains information with respect, to any member of the Emerson Group shall be filed with the SEC or otherwise made
public or released to any financial analyst or investor by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries without the prior written consent of Emerson Parent (which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed) with respect to those portions of such document that contain information with respect to any member of
the Emerson Group, except as may be required by Applicable Law (in such cases the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to notify the relevant member of the
Emerson Group and to obtain such member’s consent before making such a filing with the SEC or otherwise making any such information public).

(c) Earnings Releases. The Company shall publicly release its financial results for each annual and quarterly period on or before the first Tuesday of the
second month following the quarter end for the quarter to which such results relate.

(d) Audit.
(i) Coordination of Auditors. The Company will not change auditors without the prior written consent of Emerson Parent.

(ii) Access to Personnel and Working Papers. The Company will request the independent certified public accountants of the Company (the “Company
Auditors”) to make available to the independent certified public accountants of Emerson Parent (the “Emerson Auditors”) both the



personnel who performed or are performing the annual audit of the Company and, consistent with customary professional practice and courtesy of such auditors
with respect to the furnishing of work
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papers, work papers related to the annual audit of the Company, in all cases within a reasonable time before the Company Auditors’ opinion date, so that the
Emerson Auditors are able to perform the procedures they consider necessary to take responsibility for the work of the Company Auditors as it relates to the
Emerson Auditors’ report on the Emerson Annual Statements, all within sufficient time to enable Emerson to meet its timetable for the printing, filing and public
dissemination of the Emerson Annual Statements.

(e) Operating Review Process. Until the Second Trigger Date, upon Emerson Parent’s request, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and all other relevant
members of the Company’s senior management requested by Emerson Parent shall meet with members of Emerson Parent’s senior management at least four times a
fiscal year to discuss matters relating to Emerson’s investment in the Company, including with respect to reviews of the Company’s operations, affairs, finances or
results and the Company’s business plan and strategy; provided that following the Second Trigger Date and until the Third Trigger Date, (i) such meetings shall be
held at least twice a fiscal year and (ii) if none of the Emerson Directors is a director, officer or employee of Emerson or any member of the Emerson Group, the
Company will not be required to discuss the Company’s business plan and strategy at such meetings.

() Disclosure Committee. The Company shall establish a committee (the “Disclosure Committee”) consisting of members of the Company Board or
management of the Company to, among other things, assist in preparing the disclosures required under Applicable Law. Emerson shall be entitled to appoint one
individual as a non-voting observer to the Disclosure Committee who is entitled to attend meetings of the Disclosure Committee (which non-voting observer need not
be a member of the Company Board).

(g) Compliance. Emerson Parent will be permitted to conduct internal audits on the Company Group to assess the Company Group’s internal controls over
financial reporting as well as perform risk assessments on the Company Group’s controls over financial reporting processes. Such internal audits shall be conducted
upon reasonable prior written notice to the Company, and any such audit shall not occur more than two (2) times during any twelve (12)-month period, unless
reasonably justified. The Company will implement internal control changes as reasonably proposed by Emerson Parent, provided that following the Second Trigger
Date and until the Third Trigger Date, the foregoing shall not apply and instead the Company Board shall determine if the Company will implement any internal
control changes reasonably proposed by Emerson Parent. Emerson may, from time to time and at any time, request an audit (“Compliance Audit”) of the Company’s
compliance programs, policies and procedures (the “Compliance Program”). Each Compliance Audit shall be conducted upon reasonable prior written notice to the
Company, and any such Compliance Audit shall not occur more than two (2) times during any twelve (12)-month period, unless reasonably justified. In the event of a
Compliance Audit, the Company shall (i) provide such information reasonably requested by Emerson relating to the Compliance Program, (ii) make available during
normal business hours its Representatives upon Emerson’s reasonable request and (iii) implement any changes to the Compliance Program as reasonably proposed by
Emerson Parent; provided that following the Second Trigger Date and until the Third Trigger Date, the foregoing Section 5.3(g)(iii) shall not apply and instead the
Company Board shall determine if the Company will implement any changes reasonably proposed by Emerson Parent to the Compliance Program.

(h) Notice of Certain Events.

(i) The Company shall promptly notify Emerson Parent after the Company becomes aware (but no later than two (2) Business Days after it becomes
so aware) of any ethics allegations involving violations of law, members of senior management or financial reporting issues, any material investigations (internal
or external), or audit or Action regarding or involving any member of the Company Group. The Company shall keep Emerson Parent reasonably apprised of the
status of each such allegation, investigation, audit or Action, consult with Emerson Parent with respect thereto and consider in good faith any comments or
suggestions from Emerson Parent. In addition, Emerson Parent shall have the right to assume the defense of, and appoint legal counsel for, any such allegation,
investigation, audit or Action which, if resolved adversely, could reasonably be expected (in Emerson Parent’s judgment) to result in significant reputational,
injunctive or declaratory relief or financial harm to Emerson.
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(ii) The Company shall notify Emerson Parent of any non-material amendment of any disclosure controls and procedures of the Company.
Section 5.4.  Production of Witnesses, Records; Cooperation.

(a) Except in the case of an adversarial Action by one Party against another Party, each of Emerson and the Company shall use its reasonable efforts to make
available to each other Party, upon written request, the former, current and future directors, officers, employees, other personnel and agents of the members of its
respective Group as witnesses and any books, records or other documents within its control or which it otherwise has the ability to make available, to the extent that
any such person (giving consideration to business demands of such directors, officers, employees, other personnel and agents) or books, records or other documents
may reasonably be required in connection with any Action in which the requesting Party may from time to time be involved. The requesting Party shall bear all costs
and expenses in connection therewith.

(b) Without limiting the foregoing, Emerson and the Company shall cooperate and consult to the extent reasonably necessary with respect to any Actions
other than an adversarial Action by one Party against another Party.

(c) The obligation of Emerson and the Company to provide witnesses pursuant to this Section 5.4 is intended to be interpreted in a manner so as to facilitate
cooperation and shall include the obligation to provide as witnesses officers without regard to whether the witness or the employer of the witness could assert a
possible business conflict (subject to the exception set forth in the first sentence of Section 5.4(a)).

(d) In connection with any matter contemplated by this Section 5.4, Emerson and the Company will enter into a mutually acceptable joint defense
agreement so as to maintain to the extent practicable any applicable attorney-client privilege, work product immunity or other applicable privileges or immunities of
any member of any Group.

Section 5.5.  Privilege. The provision of any information pursuant to this Article V shall not be deemed a waiver of any privilege, including privileges arising under
or related to the attorney-client privilege or any other applicable privilege (a “Privilege”). Neither the Company or any member of the Company Group nor Emerson or any
member of the Emerson Group will be required to provide any information pursuant to this Article V if the provision of such information would serve as a waiver of any
Privilege afforded such information.

ARTICLE VI
DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Section 6.1.  General Provisions.

(a) Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of, in connection with, or relating to this Agreement, or the validity, interpretation, breach or termination
thereof (a “Dispute”), shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Article VI, which shall be the sole and exclusive procedures for the
resolution of any such Dispute except as set forth in Section 6.1(g) and Section 7.12.

(b) Commencing with an Initial Notice (as defined in Section 6.2), all communications between the Parties or their Representatives in connection with the
attempted resolution of any Dispute shall be deemed to have been delivered in furtherance of a Dispute settlement and shall be exempt from discovery and production,
and shall not be admissible in evidence for any reason (whether as an admission or otherwise), in any proceeding for the resolution of the Dispute.

(c) The Parties expressly waive and forego any right to trial by jury.
(d) The specific procedures set forth below, including the time limits referenced therein, may be modified by agreement of the Parties in writing.

(e) All applicable statutes of limitations and defenses based upon the passage of time shall be tolled while the procedures specified in this Article VI are
pending. The Parties will take such action, if any, required to effectuate such tolling.



(f) The Parties hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware or, solely if such court lacks subject
matter jurisdiction, any other state court or federal court having subject matter jurisdiction located within the State of Delaware in connection with any such
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Dispute, and each Party hereby irrevocably agrees that all claims in respect of any such Dispute or any suit, action or proceeding related thereto may be heard and
determined solely in such courts. The Parties hereby irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, any objection that they may now or hereafter
have to the laying of venue of any such Dispute brought in such courts or any defense of inconvenient forum for the maintenance of such dispute. Each of the Parties
agrees that a judgment in any such Dispute may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit, on the judgment or in any other manner provided by Applicable Law.

(g) To the extent a Dispute under this Agreement is not resolved pursuant to Section 6.2 herein, a Party may bring such a Dispute in court solely in
accordance with Section 6.1(f) of this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, unless pursuant to Section 7.12, a Party may not bring a Dispute in court without first
following the procedures set forth in Section 6.2.

Section 6.2.  Consideration by Senior Executives. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any Dispute by negotiation at a meeting between the Chief
Executive Officer of Emerson Parent, on the one hand, and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, on the other hand. Either Party may initiate the negotiation process by
providing a written notice to the other (the “Initial Notice”). Fifteen (15) days after delivery of the Initial Notice, the receiving Party shall submit to the other a written response
(the “Response”). The Initial Notice and the Response shall include (i) a statement of the Dispute and of the providing Party’s position and (ii) the name and title of any person
that will represent that Party and of any other person who will accompany such person. Such meeting may be in person or by telephone within ten (10) Business Days of the
date of the Response to seek a resolution of the Dispute.

Section 6.3.  Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. Each Party will bear its own attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection with the resolution of any Dispute in accordance
with this Article VI.

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.1.  Corporate Power-.

(a) Each of Emerson Parent and Emerson represents on behalf of itself and the Company represents on behalf of itself, as follows:
(i) each such Person has the requisite corporate or other power and authority and has taken all corporate or other action necessary in order to execute,
deliver and perform this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby; and
(ii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by it and constitutes a valid and binding agreement of it enforceable in accordance with the
terms thereof.

Section 7.2.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the
conflicts of law rules of such state.

Section 7.3.  Notices. All notices, requests and other communications to any Party hereunder shall be in writing (including facsimile transmission and electronic mail
“e-mail”)) transmission, so long as a receipt of such e-mail is requested and received) and shall be given:

If to Emerson Parent or Emerson, to:

Emerson Electric Co.
8000 West Florissant Avenue

P.O. Box 4100

St. Louis, MO 63136
Attention [name]
Fascimile No.: [number]
E-mail: [address]
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with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP
450 Lexington Avenue

New York, NY 10017
Attention:

Facsimile No.:
E-mail:

If to the Company, to:

with copies to (which shall not constitute notice):

And

or to such other address or facsimile number as such Party may hereafter specify for the purpose by notice to the other Party. All such notices, requests and other

Aspen Technology, Inc.
20 Crosby Drive
Bedford, MA 01703
Attention:

Email:

Aspen Technology, Inc.
20 Crosby Drive
Bedford, MA 01703
Attention:

Email:

Phillip R. Mills

Marc O. Williams

Cheryl Chan

(212) 701-5800
phillip.mills@davispolk.com
marc.williams@davispolk.com
cheryl.chan@davispolk.com

SVP and General Counsel
legalnotices@aspentech.com

President and CEO
legalnotices@aspentech.com

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP

500 Boylston Street
Boston, MA 02116
Attention:

Facsimile No.:
Email:

Graham Robinson

Chadé Severin

(617) 573-4822
graham.robinson@skadden.com
chade.severin@skadden.com

communications shall be deemed received on the date of receipt by the



recipient thereof if received prior to 5:00 p.m. on a business day in the place of receipt. Otherwise, any such notice, request or communication shall be deemed to have been
received on the next succeeding business day in the place of receipt.

Section 7.4.  Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction or other Governmental
Authority to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall
in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially
adverse to any Party. Upon such a determination, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the Parties as closely as
possible in an acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated hereby be consummated as originally contemplated to the fullest extent possible.
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Section 7.5.  Entire Agreement; No Other Representations and Warranties.

(a) This Agreement (including the annexes hereto) and the Transaction Documents constitute the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both oral and written, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof and thereof.

(b) Each Party hereby acknowledges and agrees that, except for any representations and warranties made by the other Party as set forth in Section 7.1,
neither the other Party nor any other Person is making or has made any representations or warranty, expressed or implied, at law or in equity, with respect to or on
behalf of the other Party, or the accuracy or completeness of any information regarding the other Party in any form in expectation of or in connection with this
Agreement.

Section 7.6.  Assignment; No Third-Party Beneficiaries. No Party may assign, delegate or otherwise transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement
without the consent of the other Party except that Emerson Parent and Emerson may assign this Agreement to a member of the Emerson Group or in connection with a Transfer
of Company Common Stock in accordance with this Agreement. No provision of this Agreement is intended to confer any rights, benefits, remedies, obligations or liabilities
hereunder upon any Person other than the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.

Section 7.7.  Amendment; Waiver.

(a) Any provision of this Agreement (including any Schedule, the Related Party Transactions Policy and the Pre-Agreed Procedures) may be amended or
waived if, but only if, such amendment or waiver is in writing and is signed, in the case of an amendment, by each Party or, in the case of a waiver, by the Party
against whom the waiver is to be effective; provided that any material amendment or material modification of this Agreement (including any Schedule, the Related
Party Transactions Policy and the Pre-Agreed Procedures) shall require the prior written approval of an RPT Committee; provided further that any material waiver of
any or all of the Company’s rights granted under this Agreement shall require the prior written approval of an RPT Committee.

(b) No failure or delay by any Party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial
exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided shall be
cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by Applicable Law.

Section 7.8.  Interpretations. The words “hereby,” “herewith,” “hereof,” “herein” and “hereunder” and words of like import used in this Agreement shall refer to this
Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement. The table of contents, captions, headings and the division of this Agreement into Articles, Sections
and other subdivisions herein are included for convenience of reference only and shall be ignored in the construction or interpretation hereof. References to Articles, Sections
and Schedules are to Articles, Sections and Schedules of this Agreement unless otherwise specified. All Schedules annexed hereto or referred to herein are hereby incorporated
in and made a part of this Agreement as if set forth in full herein. Any capitalized terms used in any Schedule but not otherwise defined therein, shall have the meaning as
defined in this Agreement. Any singular term in this Agreement shall be deemed to include the plural, and any plural term the singular. Whenever the words “include,”
“includes” or “including” are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation,” whether or not they are in fact followed by those
words or words of like import. “Writing,” “written” and comparable terms refer to printing, typing and other means of reproducing words (including electronic media) in a
visible form. References to any statute shall be deemed to refer to such statute as amended from time to time and to any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder. References
to any Person include the successors and permitted assigns of that Person. References from or through any date mean, unless otherwise specified, from and including or through
and including, respectively. References to a particular statute or law shall be deemed also to include any Applicable Law. The sign “$” and the term “dollars” means the lawful
currency of the United States of America. References to “or” mean “and/or” unless the context otherwise requires.



Section 7.9.  Exercise of Rights. The exercise of any right under this Agreement by Emerson Parent or Emerson shall be made in each such Person’s sole discretion,
subject to Applicable Law and any express limitations set forth in this Agreement.
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Section 7.10.  Privileged Matters.

(a) Each of the Parties agrees, on its own behalf and on behalf of its directors, officers, employees and Affiliates, that the law firms listed on Schedule
7.10(a) (the “Emerson Law Firms”) may serve as counsel to Emerson and the other members of the Emerson Group, on the one hand, and the Emerson Contributed
Subsidiaries, on the other hand, in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other Transaction
Documents and the consummation of the Transactions, and that, following consummation of the Transactions, the Emerson Law Firms may serve as counsel to any
member of the Emerson Group or any director, officer, employee or Affiliate of any member of the Emerson Group, in connection with any litigation, claim or
obligation arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the other Transaction Documents or the Transactions notwithstanding such representation. In connection with
any representation expressly permitted pursuant to the prior sentence, the Company hereby irrevocably waives and agrees not to assert, and agrees to cause the other
members of the Company Group to irrevocably waive and not to assert any conflict of interest arising from or in connection with (i) prior representation of the
Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries by the Emerson Law Firms, and (ii) representation of any member of the Emerson Group prior to and after the Closing by the
Emerson Law Firms. As to any privileged attorney-client communications between the Emerson Law Firms and any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary prior to the
Closing (collectively, the “Privileged Communications”), the Company, together with any of its Affiliates, successors or assigns, agrees that no such party may use or
rely on any of the Privileged Communications in any action against or involving any of the Parties after the Closing.

(b) The Company further agrees, on behalf of itself and on behalf of the other members of the Company Group, that all privileged communications in any
form or format whatsoever between or among the Emerson Law Firms, on the one hand, and Emerson, any other member of the Emerson Group or the Emerson
Contributed Subsidiaries, or any of their respective directors, officers, employees or other representatives, on the other hand, that relate to the negotiation,
documentation and consummation of the Transactions, any alternative transactions to the Transactions presented to or considered by Emerson Parent, any other
member of the Emerson Group or the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries, or any dispute arising under this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents, unless
finally adjudicated to not be privileged by a court of law (collectively, the “Privileged Deal Communications”), shall remain privileged after the Closing and that the
Privileged Deal Communications and the expectation of client confidence relating thereto shall belong solely to Emerson Parent, shall be controlled by Emerson
Parent, and shall not pass to or be claimed by the Company or any other member of the Company Group. The Company agrees that it will not, and that it will cause the
other members of the Company Group not to, (i) access or use the Privileged Deal Communications, (ii) seek to have any member of the Emerson Group waive the
attorney-client privilege or any other privilege, or otherwise assert that the Company or any other member of the Company Group has the right to waive the attorney-
client privilege or other privilege applicable to the Privileged Deal Communications, or (iii) seek to obtain the Privileged Deal Communications or Non-Privileged
Deal Communications (as defined below) from any member of the Emerson Group or the Emerson Law Firms.

(c¢) The Company further agrees, on behalf of itself and on behalf of the other members of the Company Group, that all communications in any form or
format whatsoever between or among any of the Emerson Law Firms, Emerson Parent, any other member of the Emerson Group or the Emerson Contributed
Subsidiaries, or any of their respective directors, officers, employees or other Affiliates or Representatives that relate to the negotiation, documentation and
consummation of the Transactions, any alternative transactions to the Transactions presented to or considered by Emerson Parent, any other member of the Emerson
Group or the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries, or any dispute arising under this Agreement and that are not Privileged Deal Communications (collectively, the “Non-
Privileged Deal Communications™), shall also belong solely to Emerson Parent, shall be controlled by Emerson Parent and ownership thereof shall not pass to or be
claimed by the Company or any other member of the Emerson Group.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a dispute arises between the Company or any other member of the Company Group, on the one hand,
and a third party other than Emerson Parent, any other member of the Emerson Group or their respective Affiliates, on the other hand, then the Company or such other
member of the Company Group may assert the attorney-client privilege to prevent the disclosure
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of the Privileged Deal Communications to such third party; provided that to the extent such dispute relates to this Agreement, the other Transaction Documents or the
Transactions, none of the Company or any other member of the Company Group may waive such privilege without the prior written consent of Emerson Parent. If the
Company or any other member of the Company Group is legally required to access or obtain a copy of all or a portion of the Privileged Deal Communications, then
the Company shall promptly (and, in any event, within three (3) Business Days) notify Emerson Parent in writing (including by making specific reference to this
Section 7.10(d)) so that Emerson Parent can, at its sole cost and expense, seek a protective order, and the Company agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to
assist therewith.

(e) This Section 7.10 shall apply mutatis mutandis with respect to the representation by the law firms listed on Schedule 7.10(e) of any member of the
Company Group and any successors thereof.

Section 7.11.  Counterparts; Electronic Transmission of Signatures. This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original,
with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. Until and unless each Party has received a counterpart hereof signed by the Party
hereto, this Agreement shall have no effect and no Party shall have any right or obligation hereunder (whether by virtue of any other oral or written agreement or other
communication).

Section 7.12.  Specific Performance. The Parties agree that irreparable damage would occur if any provision of this Agreement were not performed in accordance
with the terms hereof and that the Parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement or to enforce specifically the performance of the
terms and provisions hereof in any federal court located in the State of Delaware or any Delaware state court, in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law
or in equity. Each Party further agrees to waive any requirement for the securing or posting of any bond in connection with such remedy.

[The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank;
the next page is the signature page.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first written above by their respective duly authorized officers.

EMERSON ELECTRIC CO.
By:
Name:
Title:
EMR WORLDWIDE INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:

[Form of Stockholders Agreement]
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SCHEDULE 4.5(c)
PRE-AGREED PROCEDURES

Reference is made to the Stockholders Agreement among Aspen Technology, Inc. a Delaware corporation, Emerson Electric Co., a Missouri corporation and EMR

Worldwide Inc., a Delaware corporation dated [*] (as it may be amended from time to time, the “Stockholders Agreement”). Capitalized terms utilized but not defined herein
shall have the meanings given to them in the Stockholders Agreement.

“Other Company Securities” means: (i) Earnout Shares and (ii) Equity Awards.

ARTICLE 1
PROPOSED PURCHASE PRICE

1. In the case of any issuance or sale of Company Securities (other than an issuance for cash (other than a public offering of Company Securities) or offer from a prospective
third party for cash) subject to Section 4.3 or Section 4.4 of the Stockholders Agreement, the Proposed Purchase Price (as contemplated by Section 4.3(b)(iii) and Section
4.4(b)(iii) of the Stockholders Agreement) in connection with such issuance or sale shall be as follows (unless (x) Emerson elects to propose a different purchase price or
procedure which is agreed to by an RPT Committee or (y) to the extent Article III of this Schedule 4.5(c) is applicable, Emerson exercises its rights pursuant to Article 111
of this Schedule 4.5(c) (and the exercise of such rights is approved as set forth in Article IIT of this Schedule 4.5(c)) in which case Article III of this Schedule 4.5(c) shall
apply):

a.

in the case of Company Common Stock issued or proposed to be issued (in whole or in part) as consideration in any M&A Transaction (including as any earnout,

holdback, escrow or contingent payment (such Company Common Stock, the “Earnout Shares”)), a purchase price per share of Company Common Stock that is the
lowest of (i) the average of the daily volume weighted average price of Company Common Stock on Nasdaq (as reported by Bloomberg L.P. or, if not reported therein,
in another authoritative source selected in good faith by the Company Board) for the twenty (20) consecutive trading days (the “20-Day VWAP”) ending on and
including the last trading day prior to the signing of any definitive agreement with respect to, such transaction, (ii) the closing trading price of Company Common
Stock on Nasdaq (as reported by Bloomberg L.P. or, if not reported therein, in another authoritative source selected in good faith by the Company Board) (the “Spot
Price”) on the last trading day prior to the signing of any definitive agreement with respect to, such transaction, (iii) the 20-Day VWAP ending on and including the
last trading day prior to the consummation of such transaction and (iv) the Spot Price on the last trading day prior to the consummation of such transaction; provided
that in the case of any Earnout Shares, Emerson shall only have the right to buy shares of Company Common Stock up to its Percentage Maintenance Share as such
Earnout Shares are actually issued (but at the same purchase price as set forth in this clause (a)).

in the case of a public offering of Company Securities, a purchase price per Company Security that is equal to the per Company Security price at which the
underwriting bank(s) sells the portion of the offering sold to Persons other than members of the Emerson Group; provided that if such price is more than ten percent
(10%) less than the-then current trading price of such Company Security, Emerson shall have the ability to request to purchase more than its Pro Rata Portion or
Percentage Maintenance Share, as applicable, of such Company Securities in which case the Company and the applicable underwriting bank(s) shall have the ability to
allocate accordingly and, for the avoidance of doubt, such allocation decision by the Company and such banks shall not be subject to the approval of an RPT
Committee; and

in all other cases (other than Equity Awards and Closing Equity Awards) in which (i) Company Common Stock is issued or sold or proposed to be issued or sold
(including upon the conversion or exchange of any other Company Security), at a purchase price per share of Company Common Stock that is the lowest of (A) the
20-Day VWAP ending on and including the last trading day prior to the signing of any definitive agreement with respect to, such issuance, (B) the Spot Price on the
last trading day prior to the signing of any definitive agreement with respect to, such issuance, (C) the 20-Day VWAP ending on and including the last trading day
prior to the consummation of such issuance and (D) the Spot Price on the last trading day prior to the consummation of such issuance, and (ii) any other Company
Security is issued or sold, at a purchase price proposed by an RPT Committee.
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ARTICLE 11
Equity Awards

1. To the extent permitted under Nasdaq rules, the Company hereby grants to Emerson, with respect to each fiscal quarter of the Company after the date of the Stockholders
Agreement: (i) the right to purchase shares of Company Common Stock up to its Equity Award Percentage Maintenance Share in connection with the issuance, grant or
sale by the Company of restricted stock units, restricted shares, performance units or similar securities or rights (“RSUs”) issued, granted or sold during such fiscal quarter
after the date of the Stockholders Agreement, (ii) the right to purchase shares of Company Common Stock up to its Equity Award Percentage Maintenance Share in
connection with the issuance, grant or sale by the Company of stock options, warrants, stock appreciation rights, calls, subscriptions or similar securities or rights to
acquire Company Common Stock (“Options”) issued, granted or sold during such fiscal quarter after the date of the Stockholders Agreement and (iii) the right to purchase
Company Securities up to its Equity Award Percentage Maintenance Share in connection with the issuance, grant or sale of Company Securities pursuant to any “at the
market” program or other similar mechanism (“ATM Program Securities”) during such fiscal quarter after the date of the Stockholders Agreement. The Company Common
Stock or other Company Securities that Emerson has the right to purchase pursuant to this Section 1 of this Article II are the “Equity Awards”. For purposes of this Article
11, “Equity Award Percentage Maintenance Share” means, with respect to any fiscal quarter of the Company after the date of the Stockholders Agreement, a number of
shares of Company Common Stock or other Company Securities, as applicable as specified in this Section 1 of this Article II, such that, after taking into account the total
number of outstanding Company Securities (on a Fully-Diluted basis) at the end of such fiscal quarter after giving effect to RSUs, Options or ATM Program Securities
issued or sold during such fiscal quarter (including the Equity Award Percentage Maintenance Share in full) and excluding any other issuances or sales of Company
Securities by the Company during the fiscal quarter and excluding any purchases, dispositions or sales of Company Securities by members of the Emerson Group during
the fiscal quarter (but for the avoidance of doubt including the Equity Award Percentage Maintenance Share in full), the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage
would be, assuming Emerson acquired such number of shares of Company Common Stock or other Company Securities, equal to the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership
Percentage at the start of such fiscal quarter.

2. Without limiting Emerson’s rights pursuant to Section 3.6 of the Stockholders Agreement, the Company shall provide written notice to Emerson within five (5) Business
Days after the end of each fiscal quarter of the Company after the date of the Stockholders Agreement (the “Quarterly Issuance Notice”). The Quarterly Issuance Notice for
any fiscal quarter shall set forth (w) (A) the number of RSUs or Options issued, granted or sold during such fiscal quarter and the number of shares of Company Common
Stock issuable thereunder and (B) the number, type and price of ATM Program Securities issued, granted or sold during such fiscal quarter, (x) the Percentage Maintenance
Share with respect to such issuances, grants and sales described in the preceding clause (w) for such fiscal quarter (the aggregate amount of Company Common Stock and
other Company Securities that Emerson is entitled to purchase pursuant to such Quarterly Issuance Notice, the “Quarterly Offered Securities™), (y) the Specified Purchase
Price for each Quarterly Offered Security and (z) supporting detailed calculations of, and related documentation for, all such amounts.

a.  “Specified Purchase Price” means:

(i)in the case of any Company Common Stock that Emerson has the right to buy in connection with  the issuance, grant or sale of an RSU or an Option, a per share
price equal to the Spot Price on the last trading day of the fiscal quarter in which such RSU or Option was issued, granted or sold; and

(ii) in the case of any ATM Program Security that Emerson has the right to buy, a per share price equal to the weighted average of the price at which all ATM Program
Securities were issued during the fiscal quarter in which such Company ATM Program Securities were issued.

3. For a period of forty-five (45) days (such period, as it may be extended pursuant to the proviso of this sentence, the “Quarterly Election Period”) following the receipt by
Emerson of a Quarterly Issuance Notice, Emerson shall have the right to elect irrevocably to purchase all or a portion of the Quarterly Offered Securities at the applicable
Specified Purchase Prices noted in the Quarterly Issuance Notice by delivering a written notice to the Company; provided that, following receipt of a Quarterly Issuance
Notice, with respect

34



TABLE OF CONTENTS

to any or all of the Quarterly Offered Securities, Emerson may agree upon a different applicable Specified Purchase Price with an RPT Committee in accordance with the
Related Party Transactions Policy in which case (i) Emerson shall purchase such Quarterly Offered Securities at such other applicable Specified Purchase Price and (ii) the
Quarterly Election Period shall be tolled for so long as Emerson and an RPT Committee are working in good faith to agree on such other applicable Specified Purchase
Price until such time as Emerson and such RPT Committee agree on such other applicable Specified Purchase Price. If, at the termination of the Quarterly Election Period,
Emerson shall not have delivered such notice to the Company, Emerson shall be deemed to have waived all of its rights under this Article II with respect to the purchase of
the Quarterly Offered Securities for such fiscal quarter.

4. The closing of any purchase by Emerson pursuant to this Article II shall be consummated promptly following Emerson’s delivery of such notice; provided that the closing of
any such purchase by Emerson may be extended (i) to the extent necessary to obtain any required approval of a Governmental Authority or (ii) to the extent Company
stockholder approval is required under the Nasdaq rules, in which case the Company and Emerson shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to obtain such
approval(s) and after receipt of such approval(s), the Company and Emerson shall consummate such closing; and provided further that the Emerson Ownership Percentage
and the Emerson Fully Diluted Ownership Percentage shall at all times during this period be calculated as if Emerson shall have exercised its rights pursuant to this Article
I in full until such time that (i) such sale to Emerson is consummated, (ii) in the case of a required approval of a Governmental Authority, there is a final, non-appealable
court order prohibiting Emerson from acquiring such Company Securities, (iii) in the case Company stockholder approval is required under the Nasdaq rules, such
stockholder vote shall have occurred and such sale to Emerson not be approved or (iv) Emerson determines not to exercise its right pursuant to this Article II.

5. For the avoidance of doubt, without limiting any of Emerson’s rights in the Stockholders Agreement, Emerson shall not have any rights pursuant to Section 4.3 or Section 4.4
of the Stockholders Agreement to buy its Pro Rata Portion or Percentage Maintenance Share of Company Common Stock that are issued upon the exercise or vesting of (i)
RSUs or Options described in this Article II at the time of such issuance or (ii) RSUs or Options granted prior to the Closing.

ARTICLE III
M&A TRANSACTION
1. This Article III shall apply from the date of the Stockholders Agreement until the Second Trigger Date.

2. Without limiting Section 3.6, 4.3 or 4.4 of the Stockholders Agreement or Article I of this Schedule 4.5(c), in the event the Company desires to enter into any definitive
agreement for any M&A Transaction and proposes to obtain any financing for such transaction (including an M&A Transaction in which Company Common Stock is
proposed to be issued (in whole or in part) as consideration for such M&A Transaction), the Company shall provide the terms of such M&A Transaction and required
financing, a copy of any draft definitive agreement relating to such M&A Transaction, and any other information reasonably requested by Emerson, no later than thirty (30)
days prior to the entry into such definitive agreement, and Emerson shall have the right (but not the obligation) to provide a percentage of such financing equal to or greater
than the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage (but no more than 100%) at its election: (i) in exchange for additional Company Common Stock, (ii) pursuant to a
credit agreement, promissory note, bond or other debt instrument (a “Debt Instrument”) issued by a member of the Company Group or (iii) pursuant to a Debt Instrument
which is, entirely or partially, permitted to be accounted for as equity in accordance with GAAP (as defined in the Transaction Agreement) at the date of issuance (a
“Hybrid Instrument”) issued by a member of the Company Group, in each case, in accordance with the terms set forth in Section 2(a), Section 2(b) and Section 2(c),
respectively, of this Article III, or, at Emerson’s election, as otherwise agreed by an RPT Committee.

a. In the case of clause (i) above, the price per share of Company Common Stock shall be the product of (1) the lower of (x) the 20-Day VWAP ending on and including the
last trading day prior to the signing of any definitive agreement with respect to, such transaction and (y) the Spot Price on the last trading day prior to the signing of any
definitive agreement with respect to, such transaction and (2) 0.95.



b.In the case of clause (ii) above, Emerson shall propose the collateral or security required for such Debt Instrument, if any, and the applicable interest rate of such Debt
Instrument shall be the greater of
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(1) (x) the observable (or imputed) yield on publicly traded Debt Instruments of similar terms issued by any member of the Company Group plus (y) 50 basis points and (2)
the greater of the average and median of the interest rates proposed in at least two (2) indications for acquisition debt on similar security terms that are received from
commercial or investment banks by Emerson. For the avoidance of doubt, any Debt Instrument in accordance with the foregoing terms shall not be subject to the approval
of an RPT Committee with respect to any other terms of such Debt Instrument.

c. in the case of clause (iii), (1) Emerson shall propose the collateral or security required for such Hybrid Instrument, if any, (2) the applicable interest rate of such Hybrid
Instrument shall be the greater of the average and median of the interest rates proposed in at least two (2) indications for acquisition debt on similar security terms that are
received from commercial or investment banks by Emerson and (3) the applicable conversion price of such Hybrid Instrument shall be the greater of the average and
median of the conversion prices proposed in at least two (2) indications for acquisition debt on similar security terms that are received from commercial or investment
banks by Emerson. For the avoidance of doubt, any Hybrid Instrument in accordance with the foregoing terms shall not be subject to the approval of an RPT Committee
with respect to any other terms of such Hybrid Instrument.

3. Emerson shall notify the Company if it elects to provide any such financing, the structure of any such financing if it so elects, and the terms of such financing in accordance
with this Article III if it so elects, no later than twenty (20) days after receipt of notice from the Company regarding such M&A Transaction and financing. For the
avoidance of doubt, it shall be a breach by the Company of the Stockholders Agreement if the Company obtains any financing for any M&A Transaction without following
the procedures set forth in this Article Il and providing Emerson with an opportunity to provide such financing as set forth herein.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the financing that Emerson elects to provide pursuant to this Article III shall be subject to the approval of an RPT
Committee and, if not so approved, Emerson shall not provide such financing pursuant to this Article I1I; provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, if such financing is not
so approved, Emerson shall continue to have all of its other rights under the Stockholders Agreement, including pursuant to Section 4.3 and 4.4 of the Stockholders
Agreement and the other provisions of this Schedule 4.5(c). For the avoidance of doubt, any transaction consummated pursuant to Section 2 of this Article 111, if completed
in accordance with the terms and procedures set forth herein including the approval of an RPT Committee, shall not be otherwise subject to the Related Party Transactions
Policy (or any other related party, conflict of interest or similar policy or procedure of any member of the Company Group).

ARTICLE IV
CURE PERIODS

1. For a period of forty-five (45) days beginning on the date on which Emerson notifies the Company of the Deconsolidation Trigger (such period, the “Consolidation Cure
Period”), Emerson shall have the right, upon notice to the Company, to elect to purchase a number of shares of Company Common Stock such that the Emerson Ownership
Percentage at the end of the Consolidation Cure Period shall be up to fifty-five percent (55%), at a price per share of Company Common Stock equal to the lower of (x) the
20-Day VWAP ending on and including the last trading day prior to the beginning of the Consolidation Cure Period and (y) the Spot Price on the last trading day prior to
the beginning of the Consolidation Cure Period; provided that this Section 1 of this Article IV shall be of no further force and effect on the date that is six months following
the end of Emerson’s first full fiscal year for which the Emerson Group does not consolidate the Company’s financial statements with the Emerson Group’s financial
statements in accordance with GAAP.

a. “Deconsolidation Trigger” means the members of the Emerson Group no longer being required (or in good faith, after consultation with accounting advisors, believing
they will no longer be required) to consolidate the Company’s financial statements with the Emerson Group’s financial statements in accordance with GAAP.

2. For a period of forty-five (45) days beginning on the earliest of (x) the date on which the Company notifies Emerson in writing of the First Trigger, (y) the date on which
Emerson makes an amendment to its Schedule 13D filing under the Exchange Act to disclose the First Trigger and (z) the date on which the General Counsel or Chief
Financial Officer of Emerson Parent gains actual knowledge (and not constructive, imputed or other similar concepts of knowledge) of the First Trigger (such period, the
“First Cure Period”),
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Emerson shall have the right, upon notice to the Company, to elect to purchase a number of shares of Company Common Stock such that the Emerson Ownership Percentage at
the end of such First Cure Period shall be up to fifty-five percent (55%), at a price per share of Company Common Stock equal to the lower of (x) the 20-Day VWAP
ending on and including the last trading day of the First Cure Period and (y) the Spot Price on the last trading day of the First Cure Period.

3. For a period of forty-five (45) days beginning on the earliest of (x) the date on which the Company notifies Emerson in writing of the Second Trigger, (y) the date on which
Emerson makes an amendment to its Schedule 13D filing under the Exchange Act to disclose the Second Trigger and (z) the date on which the General Counsel or Chief
Financial Officer of Emerson Parent gains actual knowledge (and not constructive, imputed or other similar concepts of knowledge) of the Second Trigger (such period, the
“Second Cure Period”), Emerson shall have the right, upon notice to the Company, to elect to purchase a number of shares of Company Common Stock such that the
Emerson Ownership Percentage at the end of such Second Cure Period shall be up to fifty-five percent (55%), at a price per share of Company Common Stock equal to the
lower of (x) the 20-Day VWAP ending on and including the last trading day of the Second Cure Period and (y) the Spot Price on the last trading day of the Second Cure
Period.

4. For a period of forty-five (45) days beginning on the earliest of (x) the date on which the Company notifies Emerson in writing of the Third Trigger, (y) the date on which
Emerson makes an amendment to its Schedule 13D filing under the Exchange Act to disclose the Third Trigger and (z) the date on which the General Counsel or Chief
Financial Officer of Emerson Parent gains actual knowledge (and not constructive, imputed or other similar concepts of knowledge) of the Third Trigger (such period, the
“Third Cure Period”), Emerson shall have the right, upon notice to the Company, to elect to purchase a number of shares of Company Common Stock such that the
Emerson Ownership Percentage at the end of such Third Cure Period shall be up to twenty percent (20%), at a price per share of Company Common Stock equal to the
lower of (x) the 20-Day VWAP ending on and including the last trading day of the Third Cure Period and (y) the Spot Price on the last trading day of the Third Cure
Period.

5. The closing of any purchase by Emerson pursuant to this Article IV shall be consummated promptly following Emerson’s delivery of the notice to the Company pursuant to
Section 1, Section 2, Section 3 or Section 4 of this ticle IV; provided that the closing of any such purchase by Emerson may be extended (i) to the extent necessary to obtain
any required approval of a Governmental Authority or (ii) to the extent Company stockholder approval is required under the Nasdaq rules, in which case the Company and
Emerson shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to obtain such approval(s) and after receipt of such approval(s), the Company and Emerson shall consummate
such closing; provided that the Emerson Ownership Percentage and the Emerson Fully-Diluted Ownership Percentage shall at all times during this period be calculated as
if Emerson shall have exercised its rights pursuant to this Article IV in full until such time that (i) such sale to Emerson is consummated, (ii) in the case of a required
approval of a Governmental Authority, there is a final, non-appealable court order prohibiting Emerson from acquiring such Company Securities, (iii) in the case Company
stockholder approval is required under the Nasdaq rules, such stockholder vote shall have occurred and such sale to Emerson not be approved or (iv) Emerson determines
not to exercise its rights pursuant to this Article I'V.
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TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT

between
EMERSON ELECTRIC CO.,
on behalf of itself
and the members
of the Emerson Group

and
ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC.,
on behalf of itself
and the members
of the Newco Group

Dated as of []
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TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT

This TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of [*] between Emerson Electric Co., a Missouri corporation (“Emerson”), on behalf of
itself and the members of the Emerson Group, as defined below and Aspen Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation (formerly known as Emersub CX, Inc.) (“Newco,” and
together with Emerson, the “Parties”), on behalf of itself and the members of the Newco Group, as defined below.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax laws of various jurisdictions, certain members of the Newco Group presently file certain Tax Returns on an affiliated, consolidated,
combined, unitary, fiscal unity or other group basis (including as permitted by Section 1501 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)) with certain
members of the Emerson Group;

WHEREAS, Aspen Technology, Inc. (“Aspen”), Emerson, EMR Worldwide Inc. (“Emerson Sub”), Newco and Emersub CXI, Inc. (“Merger Subsidiary”) have
entered into a Transaction Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2021 (the “Transaction Agreement”), pursuant to which the Pre-Closing Restructuring, the Emerson
Contributions and the Merger Exchange, the Deferred Closings and other related transactions will be consummated;

WHEREAS, Emerson and its Subsidiaries have consummated, prior to the Effective Time, the Pre-Closing Restructuring, which except as provided in Section 7.05 of
the Transaction Agreement was consummated in the form depicted in Exhibit I to the Transaction Agreement, pursuant to which, among other things, (i) Roxar AS, an
aksjeselskap organized in Norway (“Roxar AS”), will elect to be classified as disregarded as separate from its owner for U.S. federal income tax purposes (the “Roxar AS
Conversion”), (ii) Aegir Norge Holdings AS, an aksjeselskap organized in Norway (“Aegir”), will elect to be classified as disregarded as separate from its owner for U.S.
federal income tax purposes (the “Aegir Conversion”), (iii) Roxar AS will contribute 100% of the Equity Interests in Roxar Services AS (“Roxar Services”), an aksjeselskap
organized in Norway, to Roxar Software Solutions AS, an aksjeselskap organized in Norway (“Roxar Software” and such contribution, the “Roxar Services Contribution”),
(iv) Roxar AS will distribute 100% of the Equity Interests of Roxar Software to Aegir, (v) Aegir will distribute 100% of the Equity Interests of Roxar Software to Emerson
Electric Nederland BV, a private limited company organized in the Netherlands (“EENBV”), (vi) EENBV will distribute 100% of the Equity Interests in Roxar Software to
Emerson International Holding Co. Ltd., a private limited company organized in the United Kingdom (“EIHCL” and such distribution, the “Roxar Software Distribution”),
(vii) EIHCL will contribute 100% of the Equity Interests in Roxar Software to Paradigm B.V., a private limited company organized in the Netherlands (“Paradigm BV” and
such contribution, the “Roxar Software Contribution”), and (viii) EIHCL will distribute 100% of the Equity Interests in Paradigm BV to Rutherfurd Acquisitions Ltd., a
private limited company organized in the United Kingdom (“RAL”) (such distribution, the “Paradigm Distribution” and together with the Roxar Software Distribution, the
“Distributions”);

WHEREAS, the Pre-Closing Restructuring, the Emerson Contributions and the Merger Exchange are intended to qualify for the Intended Tax Treatment; and

WHEREAS, Emerson and Newco desire to set forth their agreement on the rights and obligations of Emerson and Newco and the members of the Emerson Group and
the Newco Group respectively, with respect to (a) the administration and allocation of U.S. federal, state, local and non-U.S. Taxes incurred in Taxable periods beginning prior
to the Closing Date, (b) Taxes resulting from the Pre-Closing Restructuring, the Deferred Closings, the Emerson Contributions and the Merger Exchange and transactions
effected in connection therewith and (c) various other Tax matters.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:
Section 1. Definitions. (a) As used in this Agreement:

“Active Trade or Business” means (i) with respect to the Roxar Software Distribution, the Roxar Software Business, as defined on Schedule A-1 and (ii) with respect
to the Paradigm Distribution, the Paradigm Software Business, as defined on Schedule A-2 and the Roxar Software Business, as defined on Schedule A-1.
1
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“Closing of the Books Method” means the apportionment of items between portions of a Taxable period based on a closing of the books and records on the close of
the Closing Date (in the event that the Closing Date is not the last day of the Taxable period, as if the Closing Date were the last day of the Taxable period), subject to
adjustment for items accrued on the Closing Date that are properly allocable to the Taxable period following the Closing, as determined by Emerson in its reasonable discretion,
after consultation with Newco; provided that exemptions, allowances or deductions that are calculated on an annual basis (including, but not limited to, depreciation and
amortization deductions) will be allocated between the period ending at the close of the Closing Date and the period beginning after the Closing Date in proportion to the
number of days in each Taxable period.

“Combined Group” means any group that filed or was required to file (or will file or be required to file) a Tax Return on an affiliated, consolidated, combined,
unitary, fiscal unity or other group basis (including as permitted by Section 1501 of the Code).

“Combined Tax Return” means a Tax Return filed in respect of U.S. federal, state, local or non-U.S. income Taxes for a Combined Group.
“Company” means Emerson or Newco (or the appropriate member of each of their respective Groups), as appropriate.
“Deferred Closing Taxes” means any Taxes incurred with respect to any Deferred Closing (other than, for the avoidance of doubt, Deferred Closing Period Taxes).

“Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carried Item” means any Tax Attribute of an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary, or any Tax Return required to be filed by or with
respect to a Deferred Business, in each case that may or must be carried from one Taxable period to another prior Taxable period, or carried from one Taxable period to another
subsequent Taxable period, under the Code or other Applicable Law.

“Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Non-Emerson Group Tax Return” means any Tax Return required to be filed by an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary that is not
a Combined Tax Return with any member of the Emerson Group.

“Emerson Disqualifying Action” means (a) any action (or the failure to take any action) within its control by any member of the Emerson Group (including entering
into any agreement, understanding or arrangement or any negotiations with respect to any transaction or series of transactions), (b) any event (or series of events) involving the
capital stock of Emerson or any assets of any member of the Emerson Group or (c) any breach by any member of the Emerson Group of any representation, warranty or
covenant made by it in this Agreement, that, in each case, would negatively affect clause (v) of the Intended Tax Treatment; provided, however, that the term “Emerson
Disqualifying Action” shall not include any action expressly described in or contemplated by any Transaction Document or that is undertaken pursuant to the Pre-Closing
Restructuring, the Deferred Closings, the Emerson Contributions or the Merger Exchange.

“Emerson Group” shall mean Emerson and each of its direct and indirect Subsidiaries immediately after the Closing, including any predecessors or successors
thereto, other than those entities comprising the Newco Group; provided, that prior to any Deferred Closing (and not thereafter), the Emerson Group shall include the applicable
Deferred Business. For the avoidance of doubt, any reference herein to the “members” of the Emerson Group shall include Emerson.

“Equity Interests” means any stock or other securities treated as equity for Tax purposes, options, warrants, rights, convertible debt, or any other instrument or
security that affords any Person the right, whether conditional or otherwise, to acquire stock or to be paid an amount determined by reference to the value of stock.

“Final Determination” means (i) with respect to U.S. federal income Taxes, (A) a “determination” as defined in Section 1313(a) of the Code (including, for the
avoidance of doubt, an executed IRS Form 906) or (B) the execution of an IRS Form 870-AD (or any successor form thereto), as a final resolution of Tax liability for any
Taxable period, except that a Form 870-AD (or successor form thereto) that reserves the right of the taxpayer to file a claim for refund or the right of the IRS to assert a further
deficiency shall not constitute a Final Determination with respect to the item or items so reserved; (ii) with respect to Taxes other than U.S. federal income Taxes, any final
determination of liability in respect of a Tax that, under Applicable Law, is not subject to further appeal, review or modification through proceedings or otherwise; (iii) with
respect to any Tax, any final disposition by reason of the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations (giving effect to any
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extension, waiver or mitigation thereof); or (iv) with respect to any Tax, the payment of such Tax by any member of the Emerson Group or any member of the Newco Group,
whichever is responsible for payment of such Tax under Applicable Law, with respect to any item disallowed or adjusted by a Taxing Authority; provided, in the case of this
clause (iv), that the provisions of Section 14 hereof have been complied with, or, if such section is inapplicable, that the Company responsible under this Agreement for such
Tax is notified by the Company paying such Tax that it has determined that no action should be taken to recoup such disallowed item, and the other Company agrees with such
determination.

“Group” means, as the context requires, the Emerson Group or the Newco Group or either or both of them.

“Income Tax” means any Tax imposed on, or measured by reference to, net income or gains (and any franchise Tax or other Tax in connection with doing business
imposed in lieu thereof) or any similar Tax, and any related penalties, interest, or other additions in respect thereto.

“Income Tax Return” means any Tax Return in respect of an Income Tax.
“Indemnitee” means a Person that is entitled to seek indemnification from another Person pursuant to the provisions of Section 10.

“Intended Tax Treatment” means the qualification of (i) the Aegir Conversion as a tax-free liquidation for purposes of Sections 332 and 337 of the Code; (ii) the
Roxar AS Conversion as a tax-free liquidation for purposes of Sections 332 and 337 of the Code; (iii) the Roxar Services Contribution and the Roxar Software Distribution,
taken together, (x) as a reorganization described in Sections 355(a) and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code, (y) as a transaction in which the stock distributed thereby is “qualified
property” for purposes of Sections 355(c) and 361(c) of the Code and (z) as a transaction in which EENBV, Roxar Software and EIHCL recognize no income or gain for U.S.
federal income Tax purposes pursuant to Sections 355, 361 and 1032 of the Code; (iv) the Roxar Software Contribution and the Paradigm Distribution, taken together, (x) as a
reorganization described in Sections 355(a) and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code, (y) as a transaction in which the stock distributed thereby is “qualified property” for purposes of
Sections 355(c) and 361(c) of the Code and (z) as a transaction in which EIHCL, Paradigm BV and RAL recognize no income or gain for U.S. federal income Tax purposes
pursuant to Sections 355, 361 and 1032 of the Code; and (v) the Emerson Contributions and the Merger Exchange, taken together, as a transfer governed by Section 351 of the
Code.

“Newco Disqualifying Action” means (a) any action (or the failure to take any action) within its control by any member of the Newco Group after the Closing
(including entering into any agreement, understanding or arrangement or any negotiations with respect to any transaction or series of transactions), (b) any event (or series of
events) after the Closing involving the capital stock of Newco or any assets of any member of the Newco Group or (c) any breach by any member of the Newco Group after the
Closing of any representation, warranty or covenant made by it in this Agreement, that, in each case, would negatively affect the Intended Tax Treatment; provided, however,
that the term “Newco Disqualifying Action” shall not include any Non-Dilutive Equity Issuance or any action expressly described in or contemplated by any Transaction
Document or that is undertaken pursuant to the Pre-Closing Restructuring, the Deferred Closings, the Emerson Contributions or the Merger Exchange.

“Newco Group” means Newco and each of its direct and indirect Subsidiaries immediately after the Closing (including the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries) and
any predecessors or successors thereto, other than those entities comprising the Emerson Group; provided, that following any Deferred Closing (and not prior thereto), the
Newco Group shall include the applicable Deferred Business. For the avoidance of doubt, any reference herein to the “members” of the Newco Group shall include Newco.

“Non-Dilutive Equity Issuance” means a sale or other issuance to any Person of any Equity Interests of Newco if, in connection with such sale or issuance, the
percentage of the outstanding Equity Interests of Newco held directly or indirectly by Emerson (measured by voting power and value, as determined for purposes of Section
355(e) of the Code) is not reduced, directly or indirectly, on a net basis, taking into account any other transaction or series of transactions effected in connection with such sale
or issuance (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any sale or other issuance of Equity Interests of Newco to Emerson or any of its Subsidiaries); provided, that, Emerson and
Newco shall cooperate with each other with respect to the sequencing of any transaction or series of transactions effected in connection with such sale or issuance so that
Emerson will
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acquire Equity Interests of Newco simultaneously with, or prior to, the issuance of such Equity Interests of Newco to any Person other than Emerson; and provided, further,
that, if such simultaneous or prior issuance to Emerson does not occur, then the sale or other issuance to any such other Person shall not be a “Non-Dilutive Equity Issuance”
for purposes of this Agreement.

“OSI” means Open Systems International, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

“Paradigm Group” means Paradigm BV and Roxar Software and each of their direct and indirect Subsidiaries immediately after the Closing.
“Paradigm SAG” shall mean the “separate affiliated group,” as defined in Section 355(b)(3) of the Code, with respect to Paradigm BV.
“Person” has the meaning set forth in Section 7701(a)(1) of the Code.

“Post-Closing Period” means any Taxable period beginning after the Closing Date and the post-Closing portion of any Straddle Period.

“Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Group” means any Combined Group for a Pre-Closing Period that includes at least one member of the Emerson Group and at
least one Emerson Contributed Subsidiary.

“Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return” means any Combined Tax Return for a Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Group.
“Pre-Closing Period” means any Taxable period ending on or before the Closing Date and the pre-Closing portion of any Straddle Period.

“Pre-Closing Restructuring Taxes” means any Taxes incurred with respect to the Pre-Closing Restructuring, including as a result of the failure of the Intended Tax
Treatment of any portion of the Pre-Closing Restructuring.

“Separate Tax Return” means any Tax Return filed or required to be filed by, or with respect to, a member of the Emerson Group or a member of the Newco Group
that is not a Combined Tax Return.

“Specified Tax Elections” means the Tax elections set forth on Schedule B.
“Straddle Period” means a Taxable period that includes (but does not end on) the Closing Date.
“Tax Advisor” means a nationally-recognized law firm or accounting firm retained by Emerson to provide the Tax Opinion.

“Tax Attribute” means a net operating loss, net capital loss, unused investment credit, unused foreign tax credit, excess charitable contribution, unused general
business credit, alternative minimum tax credit or any other Tax Item that could reduce a Tax liability.

“Tax Item” means any item of income, gain, loss, deduction, credit, recapture of credit or any other item that can increase or decrease Taxes paid or payable.

“Tax Opinion” shall mean the legal opinion delivered to Emerson by the Tax Advisor with respect to certain U.S. federal income Tax consequences of the Pre-Closing
Restructuring and the Emerson Contributions.

“Tax Proceeding” means any Tax audit, dispute, examination, contest, litigation, arbitration, action, suit, claim, cause of action, review, inquiry, assessment, hearing,
complaint, demand, investigation or proceeding (whether administrative, judicial or contractual).

“Tax Refund” means any Tax refund, or credit in lieu thereof.



“Tax Representation Letters” means the representations provided by Newco and Emerson to the Tax Advisor in connection with the rendering by the Tax Advisor of
the Tax Opinion.

“Taxing Authority” means any Governmental Authority (domestic or foreign), including, without limitation, any state, municipality, political subdivision or
governmental agency, responsible for the imposition, assessment, administration, collection, enforcement or determination of any Tax.
4
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“Transfer Taxes” means all U.S. federal, state, local or non-U.S. sales, use, privilege, transfer, documentary, stamp, duties, real estate transfer, controlling interest
transfer, recording and similar Taxes and fees (including any penalties, interest or additions thereto).

“Wind-Down Entity” means each of (i) Paradigm Geotechnology (Egypt) S.A.E., a sharikat al-mossahamah organized under the laws of Egypt; (ii) Paradigm
Geophysical Italy SRL, a societa a responsabilita limitata organized under the laws of Italy; (iii) Paradigm Geophysical de Venezuela C.A., a compariia anonima organized
under the laws of Venezuela; (iv) Paradigm Geophysical (KL) Sdn. Bhd., a sendirian berhad organized under the laws of Malaysia; (v) Paradigm Geophysical (Nigeria)
Limited, a private company limited by shares organized under the laws of Nigeria; (vi) Paradigm Kazakhstan LLP, a limited liability partnership organized under the laws of
Kazakhstan; and (vii) Roxar Services OOO, an obshchestvo s ogranichennoy otvetstvennostyu organized under the laws of Russia.

(b) Each of the following terms is defined in the Section set forth opposite such term:

Term Section
Due Date Section 11(a)
Final Allocation Section 5(b)
OSI Acquisition Section 9(c)(i)
OSI Acquisition Date Section 9(c)(1)
OSI Covered Tax Period Section 9(c)(i)
OSI Pass-Through Tax Contest Section 9(c)(ii)
OSI Pass-Through Tax Return Section 9(c)(i)
OSI Sellers Section 9(c)(iii)
Past Practices Section 4(e)(i)
Paradigm Software Business Schedule A-2
Proposed Allocation Section 5(b)
PTI Section 5(b)
Roxar Software Business Schedule A-1
Specified OSI Refunds Section 9(c)(iii)
Spinco Section 9(a)(i)
Tax Arbiter Section 25

Tax Refund Recipient Section 7(c)

(c) All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the same meanings as in the Transaction Agreement. Any term used in this Agreement which is not
defined in this Agreement or the Transaction Agreement shall, to the extent the context requires, have the meaning assigned to it in the Code or the applicable Treasury
Regulations thereunder (as interpreted in administrative pronouncements and judicial decisions) or in comparable provisions of Applicable Law.

Section 2. Sole Tax Sharing Agreement. Any and all existing Tax sharing agreements or arrangements, written or unwritten, between any member of the Emerson
Group, on the one hand, and any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary or Deferred Business, on the other hand, if not previously terminated, shall be terminated as of the Closing
Date without any further action by the parties thereto. Following the Closing, no member of the Emerson Group, Deferred Business or any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary
shall have any further rights or liabilities thereunder, and this Agreement shall be the sole Tax sharing agreement between the members of the Emerson Group, on the one hand,
and the members of the Newco Group (including the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries and, following the applicable Deferred Closing, the Deferred Businesses), on the other
hand.

Section 3. Liability for Taxes.

(a) General Liability for Taxes.



be reported, on any Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return;
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(i) Newco Tax Liability. Except as provided in Section 3(a)(i) and Section 3(c), Newco shall be liable for:

(A) all Taxes reported, or required to be reported, on any Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return to the extent any such Pre-Closing
Emerson Combined Tax Return includes any Tax Items required to be paid by or with respect to any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary or the Echo
Business attributable to any Post-Closing Period, as determined in accordance with Section 3(b);

(B) all Taxes reported, or required to be reported, on any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Non-Emerson Group Tax Return; and

(C) all Taxes attributable to any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary or a Deferred Busines that is not required to be reported on a Tax
Return.

(b) Allocation Conventions. For purposes of Section 3(a):

(1) The amount of any Tax of any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary with respect to a Straddle Period that is based on or measured by income, sales,
use, receipts, or other similar items shall be allocated between the Pre-Closing Period and the Post-Closing Period based on the Closing of the Books Method
as of the end of the Closing Date; provided, however, that if Applicable Law does not permit an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary to close its Taxable year on
the Closing Date, the Tax attributable to the operations of such Emerson Contributed Subsidiary for any Pre-Closing Period shall be the Tax computed using a
hypothetical closing of the books consistent with the Closing of the Books Method (except to the extent otherwise agreed upon by Emerson and Newco).

(i) The amount of any Tax of any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary with respect to a Straddle Period other than Taxes described in Section 3(b)(1)
shall be allocated between the Pre-Closing Period and the Post-Closing Period by multiplying the total amount of such Tax for the entire Straddle Period by a
fraction, the numerator of which is the number of calendar days in the Straddle Period ending on, and including, the Closing Date, and the denominator of
which is the number of calendar days in the entire Straddle Period, and allocating the result to the Pre-Closing Period and the remainder of such Tax to the

Post-Closing Period.

(iii) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3(b)(i), any Tax Item of an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary arising from a transaction engaged in
outside the ordinary course of business on the Closing Date after the Closing shall be allocable to the Post-Closing Period, and any such transaction by or
with respect to Newco or any member of the Newco Group occurring after the Closing shall be treated for all Tax purposes (to the extent permitted by
Applicable Law) as occurring at the beginning of the day following the Closing Date in accordance with the principles of Treasury Regulations Section
1.1502-76(b) (assuming no election is made under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-76(b)(2)(ii) (relating to a ratable allocation of a year’s Tax Items));
provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, the foregoing shall not include any action expressly described in or contemplated by any Transaction Document or
that is undertaken pursuant to the Pre-Closing Restructuring, any Deferred Closing, the Emerson Contributions or the Merger Exchange.

(¢) Special Liability Rules. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Section 3, liability for the following Taxes shall be as follows:
(i) Pre-Closing Restructuring Transfer Taxes. Emerson shall be liable for 100% of Transfer Taxes with respect to the Pre-Closing Restructuring.

(i) Pre-Closing Restructuring Taxes. Any liability for Pre-Closing Restructuring Taxes shall be allocated in a manner consistent with Section 10(a),

(iii)  Deferred Closing Taxes. Emerson shall be liable for 100% of Deferred Closing Taxes.



(iv) Taxes Covered by Transaction Documents. Subject to the preceding clauses of this Section 3(c), any liability or other matter relating to Taxes
that is specifically addressed in any Transaction Document shall be allocated or governed as provided in such Transaction Document.
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Section 4. Preparation and Filing of Tax Returns.

(a) Emerson Prepared Tax Returns. Emerson shall prepare and file, or cause to be prepared and filed, all Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Returns. To
the extent any Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return reflects operations of an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary for a Taxable period that includes the Closing
Date, Emerson shall include in such Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return the results of such Emerson Contributed Subsidiary on the basis of the Closing of the
Books Method to the extent permitted by Applicable Law.

(b) Newco Prepared Tax Returns. Newco shall prepare and file, or cause to be prepared and filed, any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Non-Emerson Group
Tax Return and any other Tax Return of any member of the Newco Group that is not a Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return.

(¢) Provision of Information, Timing. Newco shall maintain all necessary information for Emerson (or any of its Affiliates) to file any Tax Return that
Emerson is required or permitted to file under this Section 4, and shall provide to Emerson all such necessary information in accordance with the Emerson Group’s
past practice. Emerson shall maintain all necessary information for Newco (or any of its Affiliates) to file any Tax Return that Newco is required or permitted to file
under this Section 4, and shall provide Newco with all such necessary information in accordance with the Emerson Group’s past practice.

(d) Right to Review. The Party responsible for preparing (or causing to be prepared) any Tax Return under this Section 4 shall make such Tax Return and
related workpapers available for review by the other Party, if requested, to the extent (i) such Tax Return relates to Taxes for which the requesting Party would be
liable under Section 3, or (ii) such Tax Return relates to Taxes for which the requesting Party would reasonably be expected to have a claim for a Tax Refund under
this Agreement. The Party responsible for preparing (or causing to be prepared) the relevant Tax Return shall (x) use its reasonable best efforts to make such portion of
such Tax Return available for review as required under this paragraph sufficiently in advance of the due date for the filing of such Tax Return (taking into account any
applicable extensions) to provide the requesting Party with a meaningful opportunity to analyze and comment on such Tax Return and (y) use reasonable best efforts to
reflect on such Tax Return any reasonable comments provided by the requesting Party at least twenty (20) Business Days prior to filing, taking into account the Person
responsible for payment of the Tax (if any) reported on such Tax Return and whether the amount of Tax liability of the requesting Party with respect to such Tax
Return is material. The Parties shall consult and attempt in good faith to resolve any issues arising out of the review of such Tax Return.

(e) Special Rules Relating to the Preparation of Tax Returns.

(i) General Rule. Except as provided in this Section 4(e)(i), Newco shall prepare (or cause to be prepared) any Tax Return, with respect to Taxable
periods (or portions thereof) ending prior to or on the Closing Date, for which it is responsible under this Section 4 in accordance with past practices,
accounting methods, elections or conventions (“Past Practices”) used by the members of the Emerson Group prior to the Closing Date with respect to such

Tax Return, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law, and otherwise as reasonably determined by Emerson.

(ii) Consistency with Intended Tax Treatment. All Tax Returns that include any member of the Emerson Group or any member of the Newco Group
shall be prepared in a manner that is consistent with the Intended Tax Treatment, unless otherwise required by a “determination” within the meaning of
Section 1313(a) of the Code (or any analogous provision of Applicable Law).

(iii) Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Non-Emerson Group Tax Returns. With respect to any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Non-Emerson Group
Tax Return, Newco and the other members of the Newco Group shall include Tax Items in such Tax Return in a manner that is consistent with the inclusion of
such Tax Items in any related Tax Return for which Emerson is responsible to the extent liability for such Tax Items is allocated in accordance with this
Agreement.



(iv)  Certain Determinations with respect to Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Returns. Emerson shall be entitled in its reasonable discretion (i)
to determine whether any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary is required under Applicable Law to be included in any Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Group
and (ii) to elect to include any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary in any Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Group if the inclusion of such Emerson Contributed
Subsidiary in such Pre-Closing Emerson
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Combined Tax Return is elective under Applicable Law, except where such an election would be binding on Newco for a Taxable period beginning after the
Closing in which case such determination shall be made by Emerson in its reasonable discretion after consultation with Newco. Newco shall cause each
Emerson Contributed Subsidiary to execute and file such consents, elections and other documents as may be required by Applicable Law or reasonably
requested by Emerson in connection with the filing of any Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return.

(v) Preparation of Transfer Tax Returns. The Company required under Applicable Law to file any Tax Returns in respect of Transfer Taxes shall
prepare and file (or cause to be prepared and filed) such Tax Returns; provided, that Emerson shall prepare and file (or cause to be prepared and filed) all Tax
Returns in respect of Transfer Taxes with respect to the Deferred Closings. If required by Applicable Law, Emerson and Newco shall, and shall cause their
respective Affiliates to, cooperate in preparing and filing, and join the execution of, any such Tax Returns.

(vi) If either Party reasonably determines that any member of the Newco Group may be required to file a Combined Tax Return with at least one
member of the Emerson Group for a Post-Closing Period, the Parties shall cooperate in good faith to (A) determine whether such member of the Newco
Group is required to file such a Combined Tax Return and (B) provide procedures that govern (I) the preparation and filing of such Tax Returns, (II) the
allocation of the liability for Taxes reported on or otherwise due in respect of such Tax Returns, (III) the control and participation rights in any Tax
Proceedings with respect to such Tax Returns and (IV) other related matters.

(f) Payment of Taxes. Emerson shall pay (or cause to be paid) to the proper Taxing Authority the Tax shown as due on any Tax Return for which a member
of the Emerson Group is responsible for filing under this Section 4, and Newco shall pay (or cause to be paid) to the proper Taxing Authority the Tax shown as due on
any Tax Return for which a member of the Newco Group is responsible for filing under this Section 4. If any member of the Emerson Group is required to make a
payment to a Taxing Authority for Taxes for which Newco is liable under Section 3, Newco shall pay the amount of such Taxes to Emerson in accordance with Section
10 and Section 11. If any member of the Newco Group is required to make a payment to a Taxing Authority for Taxes for which Emerson is liable under Section 3,
Emerson shall pay the amount of such Taxes to Newco in accordance with Section 10 and Section 11.

Section 5. Apportionment of Earnings and Profits and Tax Attributes.

(a) Any Tax Attributes arising in a Pre-Closing Period that are subject to allocation among members of a Combined Group shall be allocated among (and the
benefits and burdens of such Tax Attributes will inure to) the members of the Emerson Group and the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries in accordance with the Code,
Treasury Regulations, and any Applicable Law, as determined by Emerson in its reasonable discretion.

(b) Emerson shall in good faith, based on information reasonably available to it, advise Newco in writing, as soon as reasonably practicable after Newco’s
reasonable request following the Closing, of Emerson’s estimate of any earnings and profits, previously taxed earnings and profits (within the meaning of Section 959
of the Code (“PTI”)), Tax Attributes, Tax basis, overall foreign loss or other consolidated, combined or unitary attribute to be allocated or apportioned to any Emerson
Contributed Subsidiary under Applicable Tax Law (the “Proposed Allocation”). Newco shall have thirty (30) days to review the Proposed Allocation and provide
Emerson any comments with respect thereto. If Newco either provides no comments or provides comments to which Emerson agrees in writing, such resulting
determination will become final (the “Final Allocation”). If Newco provides comments to the Proposed Allocation and Emerson does not agree, the Final Allocation
will be determined in accordance with Section 25. All members of the Emerson Group and Newco Group shall prepare all Tax Returns in accordance with the Final
Allocation. In the event of any adjustment to the earnings and profits, PTI, Tax Attributes, Tax basis, overall foreign loss or other consolidated, combined or unitary
attributes, Emerson shall promptly advise Newco in writing of such adjustment. For the avoidance of doubt, Emerson shall not be liable to any member of the Newco
Group for any failure of any determination under this Section 5(b) to be accurate under Applicable Law.



(c) Except as otherwise provided herein, to the extent that the amount of any earnings and profits, PTI, Tax Attributes, Tax basis, overall foreign loss or
other consolidated, combined or unitary attribute
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allocated to members of the Emerson Group or an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary pursuant to Section 5(b), is later reduced or increased by a Taxing Authority or as a
result of a Tax Proceeding, such reduction or increase shall be allocated to the Company to which such earnings and profits, Tax Attributes, Tax basis, overall foreign
loss or other consolidated, combined or unitary attribute was allocated pursuant to this Section 5, as agreed by the Parties in good faith.

Section 6.  Utilization of Tax Attributes.

(a) Amended Returns. Any amended Tax Return or claim for a Tax Refund with respect to any member of the Newco Group may be made only by the Party
responsible for preparing the original Tax Return with respect to such member of the Newco Group pursuant to Section 4. If Newco reasonably determines that it is
necessary or appropriate to amend a Separate Tax Return of an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary, or desires to claim a Tax Refund with respect to any such Tax Return,
Emerson shall cooperate in good faith with Newco to amend such Tax Return or claim such Tax Refund; provided, that such amendment or claim shall be made only if
the benefit of amending such Tax Return or claiming such Tax Refund is reasonably expected to materially outweigh the cost of such action, as determined by
Emerson in its reasonable discretion; and provided, further, that Newco shall bear the out-of-pocket expenses of such amendment of such Tax Return and/or claim of
such Tax Refund.

(b) No Carryback Election. The Parties hereby agree, except as provided in Section 6(c), (i) not to make or cause to be made any election to claim in any
Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carried Item from a Post-Closing Period and (ii) to elect, to the extent permitted by
Applicable Law, to forgo the right to carry back any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carried Item from a Post-Closing Period to a Pre-Closing Emerson Combined
Tax Return.

(c) Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carrybacks.

(i) If Newco reasonably determines that an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary is required by Applicable Law to carry back any Emerson Contributed
Subsidiary Carried Item from a Post-Closing Period to a Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return, it shall notify Emerson in writing of such determination
at least sixty (60) days prior to filing the Tax Return on which such carryback will be reflected. Such notification shall include a description in reasonable
detail of the basis for any expected Tax Refund and the amount thereof. If Emerson disagrees with such determination, the Parties shall resolve their
disagreement pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 25. The Emerson Group shall, at the request of Newco and at Newco’s expense, file or cooperate
in good faith in the filing of any amended Tax Returns reflecting such carryback or claims for Tax Refund with respect to such carryback (unless such filing,
(x) assuming it is accepted, could reasonably be expected to change the Tax liability of Emerson or any of its Affiliates for any Taxable period or (y) is not
reasonably expected to provide a material benefit to Newco, as reasonably determined by Emerson).

(i) If an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carried Item from a Post-Closing Period is carried back to a Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return
pursuant to Section 6(c)(i), Emerson shall be required to make a payment to the Newco Group in an amount equal to the Tax Refund in respect of such

Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carried Item in accordance with Section 7(c).

(d) Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carryforwards. If a portion or all of any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carried Item is allocated to a member of a
Combined Group pursuant to Section 5, and is carried forward to an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Non-Emerson Group Tax Return, any Tax benefits arising from
such carryforward shall be retained by the Newco Group.

(e) Unified Loss Rules Election. Emerson shall make a timely and valid election pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-36(d)(6)(i)(A) to reduce
the basis of the stock of any Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries to which such election applies, to the extent necessary to prevent any attribute reduction pursuant to
Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-36(d)(6). Emerson shall not make an election pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-36(d)(6)(i)(B) or (C) to reattribute
any of the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries’ tax attributes to Emerson, without the prior written consent of Newco.
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Section 7. Certain Tax Benefits.

(a) Emerson Tax Refunds. Emerson shall be entitled to any Tax Refunds (including, in the case of any refund received, any interest actually received on or in
respect thereof) received by any member of the Emerson Group or any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary, other than any Tax Refunds to which Newco is entitled
pursuant to Section 7(b) (or, with respect to any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carried Item, Section 6). Newco shall not be entitled to any Tax Refunds received by
any member of the Emerson Group or any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary, except as set forth in Section 7(b), (or, with respect to any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary
Carried Item, Section 6).

(b) Newco Tax Refunds. Newco shall be entitled to any Tax Refunds (including, in the case of any refund received, any interest actually received on or in
respect thereof) received by any member of the Emerson Group or any member of the Newco Group after the Closing Date (i) with respect to any Tax for which a

resulting from an Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Carried Item to the extent provided in Section 6.

(c) Payments in Respect of Tax Refunds. A Company receiving (or realizing) a Tax Refund to which another Company is entitled hereunder (a “Tax Refund
Recipient”) shall pay over the amount of such Tax Refund (including interest received from the relevant Taxing Authority, but net of any Taxes imposed with respect
to such Tax Refund and any other reasonable costs associated therewith) within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof (or from the due date for payment of any Tax
reduced thereby); provided, however, that the other Company, upon the request of such Tax Refund Recipient, shall repay the amount paid to the other Company (plus
any penalties, interest or other charges imposed by the relevant Taxing Authority) to the extent that, as a result of a subsequent Final Determination, a Tax Refund that
gave rise to such payment is subsequently disallowed or required to be repaid to the relevant Taxing Authority.

(d) Corresponding Tax Benefits. Without duplication of Section 10(d), if any adjustment with respect to Taxes for which one Party is responsible under this
Agreement makes allowable to the other Party any reduction in Taxes payable by the other Party or any other Tax benefit to such other Party which would not, but for
such adjustment, be allowable, then the other Party (i) shall use commercially reasonable efforts to actually realize such Tax reduction or other Tax benefit, and (ii)
shall pay over to the first Party such Tax reduction or other Tax benefit as and when actually realized, determined on a “with and without” basis, at the time the Tax
Return which reflects such Tax reduction or other Tax benefit is filed.

Section 8.  Certain Tax Elections. With respect to any Tax election (x) which, if made, would bind one or more members of the Emerson Group, on the one hand, and
one or more members of the Newco Group, on the other hand, including the Specified Tax Elections, or (y) if made by one or more members of one Group would be effective
only if the same election is made by one or more members of the other Group, Emerson shall be entitled in its reasonable discretion, after consultation with Newco, to
determine whether the Emerson Group or the Newco Group shall make such Tax election, and no member of the Newco Group shall make any such Tax election without the
prior written consent of Emerson (which may be granted or withheld in the reasonable discretion of Emerson, after consultation with Newco). If Emerson determines that any
such Tax election shall be made, or agrees to make such election, in each case in accordance with this Section 8, Newco and Emerson shall, and shall cause the members of the
Newco Group and the Emerson Group, as appropriate, to cooperate in making such election.

Section 9.  Certain Representations and Covenants.
(a) Representations.

(i) Newco and each other member of the Newco Group represents that as of the date hereof, and covenants that as of the Closing Date, except as
contemplated by the Transaction Documents, there is no plan or intention:

(A) to contribute or otherwise transfer any equity interests in Roxar Software or Roxar Services to an entity treated as a corporation for

U.S. federal income tax purposes;
10
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(B) to liquidate Roxar Software or Paradigm BV (together, the “Spincos” and each a “Spinco”) or to merge, consolidate or amalgamate
any Spinco with any other Person subsequent to the Closing, unless, in the case of a merger, consolidation or amalgamation, such Spinco is the
survivor of the merger, consolidation or amalgamation);

(C) to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any material asset of any member of the Paradigm Group (except for
any Wind-Down Entity) to a Person other than a member of the Paradigm SAG subsequent to the Closing, except (A) dispositions in the ordinary
course of business, (B) any cash paid to acquire assets in arm’s length transactions, (C) transactions that are disregarded for U.S. federal income Tax
purposes, and (D) mandatory or optional repayment or prepayment of indebtedness;

(D) to take or fail to take any action in a manner that is inconsistent with any representations furnished by Newco to the Tax Advisor in
the Tax Representation Letters;

(E) to repurchase stock of either of the Spincos;

(F) to enter into any negotiations, agreements, or arrangements with respect to transactions or events (including stock issuances, pursuant
to the exercise of options or otherwise, option grants, the adoption of, or authorization of shares under, a stock option plan, capital contributions, or
acquisitions, but not including the Distributions) that could reasonably be expected to cause the Distributions to be treated as part of a plan (within
the meaning of Section 355(e) of the Code) pursuant to which one or more Persons acquire directly or indirectly stock of the Spincos representing a
50% or greater interest (within the meaning of Section 355(d)(4) of the Code) in either Spinco; provided, that the Parties agree, for the avoidance of
doubt, that a Non-Dilutive Equity Issuance is not such a transaction or event; or

(G) to cease to continue the active conduct of any Active Trade or Business, or to substantially reduce the business activity of any Active
Trade or Business.

(b) Covenants.

(i) Neither Emerson nor Newco shall, nor shall permit any other member of the Emerson Group or the Newco Group to, take or fail to take any

action that constitutes an Emerson Disqualifying Action or a Newco Disqualifying Action, as applicable.

(i) Neither Emerson nor Newco shall, nor shall permit any other member of the Emerson Group or the Newco Group to, take or fail to take any

action that is inconsistent with any representations furnished by Emerson or Newco to the Tax Advisor in the Tax Representation Letters.

(iii) During the two-year period following the Closing Date:

(A) each Spinco shall (x) maintain its status as a company engaged in the applicable Active Trade or Business for purposes of Section
355(b)(2) of the Code, (y) not engage in any transaction that would result in it ceasing to be a company engaged in the applicable Active Trade or
Business for purposes of Section 355(b)(2) of the Code, taking into account Section 355(b)(3) of the Code for purposes of each of clauses (x) and (y)
hereof, and (z) not dispose of or permit a member of the Paradigm Group to dispose of, directly or indirectly, any interest in a member of the
Paradigm Group (except for any Wind-Down Entity) to a Person other than a member of the Paradigm SAG subsequent to the Closing or permit any
such member of the Paradigm Group to make or revoke any election under Treasury Regulations Section 301.7701-3; provided, that this clause (z)
shall not prohibit an election under Treasury Regulations Section 301.7701-3 (I) to treat a member of the Paradigm Group as a disregarded entity or
partnership for U.S. federal



income Tax purposes, to the extent such entity is wholly owned by one or more members of the Paradigm Group or (II) to treat a nember of the
Paradigm Group as a corporation for U.S. federal income Tax purposes, to the extent such election is treated under Treasury Regulations Section
301.7701-3(g)(1) as a contribution of assets to a corporation that is or becomes a member of the Paradigm SAG;

(B) neither Spinco shall repurchase any of its Equity Interests;
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(C) neither Spinco shall, or shall agree to, merge, consolidate or amalgamate with any other Person, unless such Spinco is the survivor of
the merger, consolidation or amalgamation;

(D) Newco shall not cease to own, indirectly, 100% of the Equity Interests in either Spinco;
Y. quity Y

(E) Newco shall not, and shall not permit any other member of the Newco Group to, or to agree to, sell or otherwise issue to any Person,
any Equity Interests of Newco; provided, however, that Newco may issue Equity Interests to the extent such issuances (I) satisfy Safe Harbor VIII
(relating to acquisitions in connection with a person’s performance of services) or Safe Harbor IX (relating to acquisitions by a retirement plan of an
employer) of Treasury Regulations Section 1.355-7(d) or (II) constitute a Non-Dilutive Equity Issuance;

(F) Newco shall not, and shall not permit any other member of the Newco Group to (I) solicit any Person to make a tender offer for, or
otherwise acquire or sell, the Equity Interests of Newco, (II) participate in or support any unsolicited tender offer for, or other acquisition, issuance or
disposition of, the Equity Interests of Newco or (III) approve or otherwise permit any proposed business combination or any transaction which, in
the case of clauses (I) or (II), individually or in the aggregate, together with any transaction occurring within the four-year period beginning on the
date which is two years before the Closing Date and any other transaction which is part of a plan or series of related transactions (within the meaning
of Section 355(e) of the Code) that includes the Distributions, could result in one or more Persons acquiring (except for acquisitions that otherwise
satisfy Safe Harbor VIII (relating to acquisitions in connection with a person’s performance of services) or Safe Harbor IX (relating to acquisitions
by a retirement plan of an employer) of Treasury Regulations Section 1.355-7(d)) directly or indirectly any stock in either Spinco (or any successor
thereto); provided, that the Parties agree, for the avoidance of doubt, that a Non-Dilutive Equity Issuance shall not be prohibited by this Section 9(b)
effect retroactive to a Taxable period that includes the Closing Date shall be incorporated in the restrictions in this clause (iii) and the interpretation
thereof;

(G) Newco shall not, and shall not permit any other member of the Newco Group to, amend its certificate of incorporation (or other
organizational documents), or take any other action, whether through a stockholder vote or otherwise, affecting the voting rights of the Equity
Interests of Newco or either Spinco (including, without limitation, through the conversion of one class of Equity Interests of Newco or either Spinco
into another class of Equity Interests of Newco or such Spinco); and

(H) Newco shall not, and shall not permit any member of the Newco Group to, contribute or otherwise transfer any equity interests in
Roxar Software or Roxar Services to an entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income Tax purposes.

(iv) Neither Emerson nor Newco shall take or fail to take, or permit any other member of the Emerson Group or the Newco Group, respectively, to

take or fail to take, any action if such action or failure, as applicable, prevents the Intended Tax Treatment or could reasonably be expected to result in Tax
treatment that is inconsistent with the Intended Tax Treatment; provided that, with respect to Emerson and the Emerson Group, this covenant shall apply only
with respect to clause (v) of the definition of “Intended Tax Treatment”.

(v) Without the prior written consent of Emerson (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), before October 1, 2022, Newco will

not, directly or indirectly, cause or permit (A) the sale, exchange, transfer or other disposition of the shares of Paradigm BV, Roxar



Software or Roxar Services by the regarded owner (for U.S. federal income tax purposes) thereof as of the Closing Date, or (B) Paradigm BV, Roxar Software
or Roxar Services to engage in any merger, liquidation, reorganization or similar transaction, unless, in each case, such action does not constitute a triggering
event pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.367(a)-8(k), as reasonably determined by Emerson,
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after notice by and consultation with Newco at least 30 days prior to the taking by Newco of any such action; provided, that the Parties shall reasonably
cooperate to file any new gain recognition agreement to the extent necessary to cause any such action to qualify as a triggering event exception pursuant to
Treasury Regulations Section 1.367(a)-8(k).

(c) Certain Newco Covenants with respect to OSI.

(i) Newco will not cause or permit OSI or any of its Subsidiaries or any Affiliate of Newco to (i) file or amend or otherwise modify any Tax Return
of OSI or its Subsidiaries if (A) OSI or such Subsidiary was treated as an S corporation or disregarded entity for purposes of such Tax Return on or prior to
October 1, 2020 (the “OSI Acquisition” and such date, the “OSI Acquisition Date”) and (B) the results of operations reflected on such Tax Return would
also be reflected on a Tax Return of any owner of OSI prior to the OSI Acquisition, that relates in whole or in part to any taxable period (or portion thereof)
beginning prior to the OSI Acquisition Date (such taxable period, an “OSI Covered Tax Period,” and such Tax Return, an “OSI Pass-Through Tax
Return”), (ii) make or change any U.S. federal or state election or accounting method or practice with respect to any OSI Pass-Through Tax Return, or that
has retroactive effect to, any OSI Covered Tax Period, (iii) voluntarily approach any Tax authority with respect to any OSI Pass-Through Tax Return
attributable to an OSI Covered Tax Period or (iv) extend or waive the statute of limitations or other period for the assessment of any Tax with respect to any
OSI Pass-Through Tax Return with respect to any OSI Covered Tax Period in each case, without the prior written consent of Emerson;

(ii) Newco shall promptly notify Emerson in writing upon receipt by Newco, any member of the Newco Group or any of Newco’s Affiliates of
notice of any pending or threatened U.S. federal, state, local or foreign Tax audits, examinations or assessments relating to any OSI Pass-Through Tax Return
for any OSI Covered Tax Period (an “OSI Pass-Through Tax Contest”). OSI’s sellers’ representative (whom Emerson shall identify to Newco) shall have
the sole right to represent the interests of OSI or its Subsidiaries in any OSI Pass-Through Tax Contest, and to employ counsel of its choice at its expense.

(iii) Newco shall pay or cause to be paid to, or as directed by and on behalf of, Emerson the amount of any refund set forth on Schedule C (the
“Specified OSI Refunds”) received by Newco or any of the Newco Group members promptly following receipt thereof; provided, that, prior to the payment
of any Specified OSI Refund by Newco to Emerson, (i) Newco shall inform Emerson of the receipt of any Specified OSI Refund and (ii) Emerson shall
certify to Newco that (x) Emerson is obligated to pay the entire amount of such Specified OSI Refund to certain persons that Emerson shall therein specify
(the “OSI Sellers”), and (y) unless Emerson has directed Newco to pay such Specified OSI Refund on behalf of Emerson to the OSI Sellers, Emerson shall,
promptly following its receipt of the payment of the amount of such Specified OSI Refund from Newco, so pay the entire amount of such Specified OSI
Refund to the OSI Sellers. Newco shall cause the applicable Emerson Contributed Subsidiary to request a refund (rather than a credit in lieu of a refund) with
respect to all Specified OSI Refunds.

(d) Newco Covenants Exceptions. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 9(b), Newco and the other members of the Newco Group may:

(i) pay cash to acquire assets in arm’s length transactions, engage in transactions that are disregarded for U.S. federal Tax purposes, and make
mandatory or optional repayments or prepayments of indebtedness; or

(ii) take any action that would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the covenants contained in Section 9(b), if: (A) Newco notifies
Emerson of its proposal to take such action and Newco and Emerson obtain a ruling from the IRS to the effect that such action will not affect the Intended Tax
Treatment, provided that Newco agrees in writing to bear any expenses associated with obtaining such a ruling and, provided further that the Newco Group
shall not be



relieved of any liability under Section 10(a) of this Agreement by reason of seeking or having obtained such a ruling; (B) Newco notifies Emerson of its
proposal to take such action and obtains an unqualified opinion of counsel (I) from a Tax advisor recognized as an expert in U.S. federal income Tax matters
and reasonably acceptable to Emerson, (II) on which Emerson may rely and (I1I) to the effect that,
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assuming the Pre-Closing Restructuring, the Emerson Contributions and the Merger Exchange otherwise (without taking into account the action contemplated
by this paragraph) qualify for the Intended Tax Treatment, such action “will” not affect the Intended Tax Treatment, provided that the Newco Group shall not
be relieved of any liability under Section 10(a) of this Agreement by reason of having obtained such an opinion ; or (C) Newco obtains the prior written
consent of Emerson to take such action, provided that the Newco Group shall not be relieved of any liability under Section 10(a) of this Agreement by reason
of having obtained such consent.

Section 10. Indemnities.

(a) Newco Indemnity to Emerson. Newco and each other member of the Newco Group shall jointly and severally indemnify Emerson and the other members
of the Emerson Group against, and hold them harmless, without duplication, from:

(i) any Tax liability for which Newco is liable pursuant to Section 3;

(i) any Tax liability attributable to a breach, after the Closing, by Newco or any other member of the Newco Group of any representation, covenant
or provision contained in this Agreement (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any Taxes resulting from any breach for which the conditions set forth in
Section 9(d) are satisfied);

(iii) any Pre-Closing Restructuring Taxes attributable to a Newco Disqualifying Action (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any Taxes resulting

(iv) all liabilities, costs, expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable expenses of investigation and attorneys’ fees and expenses), losses,
damages, assessments, settlements or judgments arising out of or incident to the imposition, assessment or assertion of any Tax liability or damage described
in clauses (1), (ii) or (iii), including those incurred in the contest in good faith in appropriate proceedings relating to the imposition, assessment or assertion of
any such Tax, liability or damage.

(b) Emerson Indemnity to Newco. Emerson and each other member of the Emerson Group will jointly and severally indemnify Newco and the other
members of the Newco Group against, and hold them harmless, without duplication, from:

(1) any Tax liability for which Emerson is liable pursuant to Section 3;

(i) any Taxes imposed on any member of the Newco Group under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or similar or analogous provision of
state, local or foreign law) as a result of any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary being or having been a member of a Combined Group on or before the Closing
Date;

(iii) any Taxes imposed on any member of the Newco Group under any provision of state, local or foreign law similar or analogous to Treasury
Regulations Section 1.1502-6 as a result of such member being or having been a member of a Combined Group with any member of the Emerson Group on
or after the Closing Date;

(iv) all amounts required to be paid by any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary under any Tax Sharing Agreement to which such Emerson Contributed
Subsidiary is or was a party or is or was otherwise subject on or prior to the Closing Date;

(v) any Tax liability attributable to a breach, after the Closing, by Emerson or any other member of the Emerson Group of any representation in this
Agreement or any covenant or provision contained in this Agreement or the Transaction Agreement;



(vi) any Pre-Closing Restructuring Taxes, other than any Pre-Closing Restructuring Taxes for which Newco and each other member of the Newco

(vii) all liabilities, costs, expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable expenses of investigation and attorneys’ fees and expenses), losses,
damages, assessments, settlements or judgments
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arising out of or incident to the imposition, assessment or assertion of any Tax liability or damage described in clauses (i) through (vi), including those
incurred in the contest in good faith in appropriate proceedings relating to the imposition, assessment or assertion of any such Tax, liability or damage.

(¢) Discharge of Indemnity. Newco, Emerson and the members of their respective Groups shall discharge their obligations under Section 10(a) or Section
10(b) hereof, respectively, by paying the relevant amount in accordance with Section 11, within thirty (30) Business Days of demand therefor or, to the extent such
amount is required to be paid to a Taxing Authority prior to the expiration of such thirty (30) Business Days, at least ten (10) Business Days prior to the date by which
the demanding party is required to pay the related Tax liability. Any such demand shall include a statement showing the amount due under Section 10(a) or Section
10(b), as the case may be. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any member of the Newco Group or any member of the Emerson Group disputes in good faith the fact or
the amount of its obligation under Section 10(a) or Section 10(b), then no payment of the amount in dispute shall be required until any such good faith dispute is
resolved in accordance with Section 25 hereof; provided, however, that any amount not paid within thirty (30) Business Days of demand therefor shall bear interest as
provided in Section 11.

(d) Corresponding Tax Benefits. If an indemnification obligation of any member of the Emerson Group or any member of the Newco Group, as the case
may be, under this Section 10 arises in respect of an adjustment that makes allowable to an Indemnitee any reduction in Taxes payable by the Indemnitee or other Tax
benefit which would not, but for such adjustment, be allowable, then any such indemnification obligation shall be an amount equal to (i) the amount otherwise due but
for this Section 10(d), minus (ii) the reduction in actual cash Taxes payable by the Indemnitee in the Taxable year in which such indemnification obligation arises,
determined on a “with and without” basis.

Section 11.  Payments.

(a) Timing. All payments to be made under this Agreement (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, any payments to a Taxing Authority described herein)
shall be made in immediately available funds. Except as otherwise provided, all such payments will be due thirty (30) Business Days after the receipt of notice of such
payment or, where no notice is required, thirty (30) Business Days after the fixing of liability or the resolution of a dispute (the “Due Date”). Payments shall be
deemed made when received. Any payment that is not made on or before the Due Date shall bear interest at the rate equal to the “prime” rate as published on such Due
Date in the Wall Street Journal, Eastern Edition, for the period from and including the date immediately following the Due Date through and including the date of
payment. With respect to any payment required to be made under this Agreement, Emerson has the right to designate, by written notice to Newco, which member of
the Emerson Group will make or receive such payment.

(b) No Duplicative Payment. 1t is intended that the provisions of this Agreement shall not result in a duplicative payment of any amount required to be paid
under the Transaction Agreement or any other Transaction Document, and this Agreement shall be construed accordingly.

Section 12.  Guarantees. Emerson and Newco, as the case may be, each hereby guarantees and agrees to otherwise perform the obligations of each other member of
the Emerson Group or the Newco Group, respectively, under this Agreement.

Section 13.  Communication and Cooperation.

(a) Consult and Cooperate. Emerson and Newco shall consult and cooperate (and shall cause each other member of their respective Groups to consult and
cooperate) fully at such time and to the extent reasonably requested by the other party in connection with all matters subject to this Agreement. Such cooperation shall
include, without limitation:

(i) the retention, and provision on reasonable request, of any and all information including all books, records, documentation or other information
pertaining to Tax matters relating to the Newco Group (or, in the case of any Tax Return of the Emerson Group, the portion of such return that relates to Taxes
for which the Newco Group may be liable or earnings and profits, PTI, Tax



Attributes, Tax basis, overall foreign loss or other consolidated, combined or unitary attribute that may be allocated to
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a member of the Newco Group, in each case pursuant to this Agreement), any necessary explanations of information, and access to personnel, until one year
after the expiration of the applicable statute of limitation (giving effect to any extension, waiver or mitigation thereof);

(ii) the execution of any document that may be necessary (including to give effect to Section 14) or helpful in connection with any required Tax
Return or in connection with any audit, proceeding, suit or action; and

(iii) the use of the parties’ commercially reasonable efforts to obtain any documentation from a Governmental Authority or a third party that may
be necessary or helpful in connection with the foregoing.

(b) Provide Information. Except as set forth in Section 14, Emerson and Newco shall keep each other reasonably informed with respect to any material
development relating to the matters subject to this Agreement.

(c) Tax Attribute Matters. Emerson and Newco shall promptly advise each other with respect to any proposed Tax adjustments that are the subject of an
audit or investigation, or are the subject of any proceeding or litigation, and that may affect any Tax liability or any Tax Attribute (including, but not limited to, basis in
an asset or the amount of earnings and profits) of any member of the Newco Group or any member of the Emerson Group, respectively.

(d) Confidentiality and Privileged Information. Any information or documents provided under this Agreement shall be kept confidential by the party
receiving the information or documents, except as may otherwise be necessary in connection with the filing of required Tax Returns or in connection with any audit,
proceeding, suit or action. Without limiting the foregoing (and notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement or any other agreement), (i) no member of the
Emerson Group or Newco Group, respectively, shall be required to provide any member of the Newco Group or Emerson Group, respectively, or any other Person
access to or copies of any information or procedures other than information or procedures that relate to Newco, the business or assets of any member of the Newco
Group, or matters for which Newco or Emerson Group, respectively, has an obligation to indemnify under this Agreement, and (ii) in no event shall any member of the
Emerson Group or the Newco Group, respectively, be required to provide any member of the Newco Group or Emerson Group, respectively, or any other Person
access to or copies of any information if such action could reasonably be expected to result in the waiver of any privilege. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event
that Emerson or Newco, respectively, determines that the provision of any information to any member of the Newco Group or Emerson Group, respectively, could be
commercially detrimental or violate any law or agreement to which Emerson or Newco, respectively, is bound, Emerson or Newco, respectively, shall not be required
to comply with the foregoing terms of this Section 13(d) except to the extent that it is able, using commercially reasonable efforts, to do so while avoiding such harm
or consequence (and shall promptly provide notice to Emerson or Newco, to the extent such access to or copies of any information is provided to a Person other than a
member of the Emerson Group or Newco Group (as applicable)).

Section 14.  Audits and Contests.

(a) Notice. Each of Emerson or Newco shall promptly notify the other in writing upon the receipt of any notice of Tax Proceeding from the relevant Taxing
Authority or upon becoming aware of an actual or potential Tax Proceeding by a Taxing Authority that may affect the liability of any member of the Newco Group or
the Emerson Group, respectively, for Taxes under Applicable Law or this Agreement; provided, that a Party’s right to indemnification under this Agreement shall not
be limited in any way by a failure to so notify, except to the extent that the indemnifying Party is prejudiced by such failure.

(b) Emerson Control. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Emerson shall have the right to control all matters relating to any Tax
Proceeding relating to any Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Tax Return. Emerson shall have absolute discretion with respect to any decisions to be made, or the nature
of any action to be taken, with respect to any Tax Proceeding described in the preceding sentence; provided, however, that to the extent that any Tax Proceeding is
reasonably likely to (A) give rise to an



indemnity obligation of Newco under Section 10 hereof or (B) affect the allocation of earnings and profits, PTI, Tax Attributes, Tax basis, overall foreign loss or other
consolidated, combined or unitary
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attribute that may be allocated to a member of the Newco Group pursuant to Section 5 hereof, (i) Emerson shall keep Newco informed of all material developments
and events relating to any such Tax Proceeding described in this proviso, and (ii) other than with respect to any Tax Proceeding relating to any Pre-Closing Emerson
Combined Tax Return, at its own cost and expense, Newco shall have the right to participate in (but not to control) the defense of any such Tax Proceeding.

(c) Newco Control. Newco shall have the right to control all matters relating to any Tax Proceeding relating to any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary Non-
Emerson Group Tax Return and any Tax attributable to any Emerson Contributed Subsidiary or Deferred Business that is not required to be reported on a Tax Return,
other than any Tax Proceeding relating to Pre-Closing Restructuring Taxes or Deferred Closing Taxes. Newco shall have absolute discretion with respect to any
decisions to be made, or the nature of any action to be taken, with respect to any Tax Proceeding described in the preceding sentence; provided, however, that to the
extent that any such Tax Proceeding is reasonably likely to give rise to an indemnity obligation of Emerson under Section 10 hereof, (i) Newco shall keep Emerson
informed of all material developments and events relating to any such Tax Proceeding described in this proviso, (ii) at its own cost and expense, Emerson shall have
the right to participate in (but not to control) the defense of any such Tax Proceeding, and (iii) Newco shall not settle or compromise any such contest without
Emerson’s prior written consent (which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed).

(d) Pre-Closing Restructuring Taxes and Deferred Closing Taxes. Emerson shall have the right to control any Tax Proceeding relating to Pre-Closing

Restructuring Taxes and Deferred Closing Taxes; provided, that Emerson shall keep Newco fully informed of all material developments and, other than with respect to

any Tax Proceeding relating to any Pre-Closing Emerson Combined Return (which shall be governed by Section 14(b)), shall permit Newco, at its own cost and

expense, a reasonable opportunity to participate in the defense of the matter.

Section 15.  Deferred Business Tax Matters. Notwithstanding that pursuant to Section 7.05(e) of the Transaction Agreement the Newco Group is intended to be
treated as having the economic rights, benefits, and interests, and assuming the economic risk, encumbrances, and obligations, in each case, with respect to the ownership of
each Deferred Business as of the Effective Time, the Parties agree to treat the Emerson Group (or the applicable member(s) thereof) as the owner of each Deferred Business
during the applicable Deferred Closing Period for all applicable Tax purposes. Each of Emerson and Newco shall, and shall cause their respective Affiliates to, file all
applicable Tax Returns in a manner consistent with this Section 15, and shall not take any contrary Tax position, except to the extent required pursuant to a “determination”
under Section 1313(a) of the Code (or similar result or outcome under state, local or non-U.S. Tax law).

Section 16.  Notices. Any notice, instruction, direction or demand under the terms of this Agreement required to be in writing shall be duly given upon delivery, if
delivered by hand, facsimile transmission, email transmission, or mail, to the following addresses:

if to Emerson or the Emerson Group, to:

Emerson Electric Co.
[]

Attention: [*]

Email: [+]

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP

450 Lexington Avenue

New York, New York 10017

Attention: Michael Mollerus

Email: michael.mollerus@davispolk.com
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if to Newco or the Newco Group, to:

Aspen Technology, Inc.
[]

Attention: [*]

Email: [*]

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP

500 Boylston Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02116

Attention: Graham Robinson
Moshe Spinowitz
Chadé Severin

E-mail: graham.robinson@skadden.com
moshe.spinowitz@skadden.com
chade.severin@skadden.com

or such other address or facsimile number as such party may hereafter specify for the purpose by notice to the other party hereto. All such notices, requests and other
communications shall be deemed received on the date of receipt by the recipient thereof if received prior to 5:00 p.m. in the place of receipt and such day is a Business Day in

the place of receipt. Otherwise, any such notice, request or communication shall be deemed not to have been received until the next succeeding Business Day in the place of
receipt.

Section 17.  Costs and Expenses. The Party that prepares any Tax Return shall bear the costs and expenses incurred in the preparation of such Tax Return. Except as
expressly set forth in this Agreement or the Transaction Agreement, (i) each Party shall bear the costs and expenses incurred pursuant to this Agreement to the extent the costs
and expenses are directly allocable to a liability or obligation allocated to such Party and (ii) to the extent a cost or expense is not directly allocable to a liability or obligation, it
shall be borne by the Party incurring such cost or expense. For purposes of this Agreement, costs and expenses shall include, but not be limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees,
accountants’ fees and other related professional fees and disbursements.

Section 18.  Effectiveness, Termination and Survival. Except as expressly set forth in this Agreement, as between Emerson and Newco, this Agreement shall become
effective upon the consummation of the Closing. All rights and obligations arising hereunder shall survive until they are fully effectuated or performed; provided that,
notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement shall remain in effect and its provisions shall survive for one year after the full period of all
applicable statutes of limitation (giving effect to any extension, waiver or mitigation thereof) and, with respect to any claim hereunder initiated prior to the end of such period,
until such claim has been satisfied or otherwise resolved.

Section 19.  Specific Performance. Each Party to this Agreement acknowledges and agrees that damages for a breach or threatened breach of any of the provisions of
this Agreement would be inadequate and irreparable harm would occur. In recognition of this fact, each Party agrees that, if there is a breach or threatened breach, in addition to
any damages, the other nonbreaching Party to this Agreement, without posting any bond, shall be entitled to seek and obtain equitable relief in the form of specific
performance, temporary restraining order, temporary or permanent injunction, attachment, or any other equitable remedy which may then be available to obligate the breaching
Party (i) to perform its obligations under this Agreement or (ii) if the breaching Party is unable, for whatever reason, to perform those obligations, to take any other actions as
are necessary, advisable or appropriate to give the other Party to this



Agreement the economic effect which comes as close as possible to the performance of those obligations (including transferring, or granting liens on, the assets of the
breaching party to secure the performance by the breaching party of those obligations).
18



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Section 20.  Construction. In this Agreement, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:
(a) words used in the singular include the plural and words used in the plural include the singular;

(b) references to any Person include such Person’s successors and assigns but, if applicable, only if such successors and assigns are permitted by this
Agreement;

(c) except as otherwise clearly indicated, reference to any gender includes the other gender;
(d) the words “include,” “includes” and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation”;

(e) reference to any Article, Section, Exhibit or Schedule means such Article or Section of, or such Exhibit or Schedule to, this Agreement, as the case may
be, and references in any Section or definition to any clause means such clause of such Section or definition;

(f) the words “herein,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereto” and words of similar import shall be deemed references to this Agreement as a whole and not to any
particular Section or other provision hereof;

(g) reference to any agreement, instrument or other document means such agreement, instrument or other document as amended, supplemented and
modified from time to time to the extent permitted by the provisions thereof and by this Agreement;

(h) reference to any law (including statutes and ordinances) means such law (including all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder) as amended,
modified, codified or reenacted, in whole or in part, and in effect at the time of determining compliance or applicability;

(i) relative to the determination of any period of time, “from” means “from and including,” “to” means “to and including” and “through” means “through
and including”;

(j) the titles to Articles and headings of Sections contained in this Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be deemed
to be a part of or to affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement;

(k) unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, all references to dollar amounts herein shall be in respect of lawful currency of the United States; and
() any capitalized term used in an Exhibit or Schedule but not otherwise defined therein shall have the meaning set forth in this Agreement.
Section 21.  Entire Agreement; Amendments and Waivers.

(a) Entire Agreement.

(1) This Agreement and the other Transaction Documents constitute the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof
and thereof and supersede all prior agreements, understandings and negotiations, both written and oral, between the parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof and thereof. No representation, inducement, promise, understanding, condition or warranty not set forth herein or in the other Transaction Documents
has been made or relied upon by any party hereto or any member of their Group with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.
This Agreement is an “Ancillary Agreement” as such term is defined in the Transaction Agreement and shall be interpreted in accordance with the terms of
the Transaction Agreement in all respects, provided that in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the
Transaction Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control in all respects.



(i) THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT NO REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY, PROMISE, INDUCEMENT,
UNDERSTANDING, COVENANT OR AGREEMENT HAS BEEN MADE OR RELIED UPON BY ANY PARTY OTHER THAN THOSE EXPRESSLY SET
FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT AND IN THE OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS. WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE
DISCLAIMER SET FORTH IN THE PRECEDING SENTENCE, NEITHER EMERSON NOR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES HAS MADE OR SHALL BE
DEEMED TO HAVE MADE ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES IN ANY PRESENTATION OR WRITTEN
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INFORMATION RELATING TO THE ECHO BUSINESS GIVEN OR TO BE GIVEN IN CONNECTION WITH THE CONTEMPLATED
TRANSACTIONS OR IN ANY FILING MADE OR TO BE MADE BY OR ON BEHALF OF EMERSON OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES WITH ANY
GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY, AND NO STATEMENT MADE IN ANY SUCH PRESENTATION OR WRITTEN MATERIALS, MADE IN ANY
SUCH FILING OR CONTAINED IN ANY SUCH OTHER INFORMATION SHALL BE DEEMED A REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY
HEREUNDER OR OTHERWISE. NEWCO ACKNOWLEDGES THAT EMERSON HAS INFORMED IT THAT NO PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED
BY EMERSON OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES TO MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY IN RESPECT OF THE ECHO BUSINESS OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THE CONTEMPLATED TRANSACTIONS, UNLESS IN WRITING AND CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT OR IN ANY OF
THE OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS TO WHICH THEY ARE A PARTY.

(b) Amendments and Waivers.

(i) Any provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived if, and only if, such amendment or waiver is in writing and is signed, in the case of
an amendment, by each of Emerson and Newco, or in the case of a waiver, by the Party against whom the waiver is to be effective.

(i) No failure or delay by any Party (or the applicable member of such Party’s Group) in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall
operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right,
power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by Applicable Law.

Section 22.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the conflicts
of law rules of such state.

Section 23.  Jurisdiction. The Parties agree that any suit, action or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any matter arising out of or in
connection with, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby shall be brought in the Chancery Court of the State of Delaware and any state appellate court
therefrom within the State of Delaware (or if the Chancery Court of the State of Delaware declines to accept jurisdiction over a particular matter, any federal or state court
sitting in the State of Delaware and any federal or state appellate court therefrom), and each of the Parties hereto hereby irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of
such courts in any such suit, action or proceeding and irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection that it may now or hereafter have to the laying of
the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in any such court or that any such suit, action or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient
forum. Process in any such suit, action or proceeding may be served on any Party anywhere in the world, whether within or without the jurisdiction of any such court. Without
limiting the foregoing, each Party agrees that service of process on such Party as provided in Section 16 shall be deemed effective service of process on such Party.

Section 24.  WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY
IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

Section 25.  Dispute Resolution. In the event of any dispute relating to this Agreement, the Parties shall work together in good faith to resolve such dispute within
thirty (30) days. In the event that such dispute is not resolved, upon written notice by a Party after such thirty (30)-day period, the matter shall be referred to a U.S. Tax counsel
or other Tax advisor of recognized national standing (the “Tax Arbiter”) that will be jointly chosen by Emerson and Newco; provided, however, that, if Emerson and Newco do
not agree on the selection of the Tax Arbiter after five (5) days of good faith negotiation, the Tax Arbiter shall consist of a panel of three U.S. Tax counsel or other Tax advisor
of recognized national standing with one member chosen by Emerson, one member chosen by Newco, and a third member chosen by mutual agreement of the other members
within the following ten (10)-day period. Each decision of



a panel Tax Arbiter shall be made by majority vote of the members. The Tax Arbiter may, in its discretion, obtain the services of any third party necessary to assist it in
resolving the dispute. The Tax Arbiter shall furnish written notice to the Parties to the dispute of its resolution of the dispute as
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soon as practicable, but in any event no later than ninety (90) days after acceptance of the matter for resolution. Any such resolution by the Tax Arbiter shall be binding on the
Parties, and the Parties shall take, or cause to be taken, any action necessary to implement such resolution. All fees and expenses of the Tax Arbiter shall be shared equally by
the Parties to the dispute.

Section 26.  Counterparts; Effectiveness; Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original,
with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. This Agreement shall become effective when each Party hereto shall have received a
counterpart hereof signed by the other Party hereto. Until and unless each Party has received a counterpart hereof signed by the other Party hereto, this Agreement shall have no
effect and no Party shall have any right or obligation hereunder (whether by virtue of any other oral or written agreement or other communication). Except for Section 13(d)
and the indemnification and release provisions of Section 10, neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof is intended to confer any rights, benefits, remedies, obligations,
or liabilities hereunder upon any Person other than the Parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

Section 27.  Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective
successors and permitted assigns; provided that neither Party may assign, delegate or otherwise transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the
consent of the other Party hereto. If any Party or any of its successors or permitted assigns (i) shall consolidate with or merge into any other Person and shall not be the
continuing or surviving corporation or entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) shall transfer all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person, then, and in
each such case, proper provisions shall be made so that the successors and assigns of such Party shall assume all of the obligations of such Party under the Transaction
Documents.

Section 27.  Authorization. Each of Emerson and Newco hereby represents and warrants that it has the power and authority to execute, deliver and perform this
Agreement, on its behalf and on behalf of each member of its Group, that this Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of such Party
and each member of its Group, that this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of each such Party and each member of its Group, and that the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party and each member of its Group does not contravene or conflict with any provision or law or of its charter or bylaws or
any agreement, instrument or order binding on such Party or member of its Group.

Section 28. Change in Tax Law. Any reference to a provision of the Code, Treasury Regulations or any other Applicable Law shall include a reference to any
applicable successor provision of the Code, Treasury Regulations or other Applicable Law.

Section 29.  Performance. Each party shall cause to be performed all actions, agreements and obligations set forth herein to be performed by any member of such
party’s Group.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and delivered this Agreement as of the day and year first written above.

EMERSON ELECTRIC CO., on its
own behalf and on behalf of the
members of the Emerson Group

By:

Name: [*]
Title: [*]

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC.
(formerly known as Emersub CX,
Inc.) on its own behalf and on behalf
of the members of the Newco Group

By:

Name: [*]
Title: []

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO THE TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT]
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Exhibit D-1

CONFIDENTIAL

[FORM OF] TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT

This TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), is dated as of [ ] (the “Effective Date”), by and between Emerson Electric Co., a
Missouri corporation (together with its Affiliates, “Emerson”), and Emersub CX, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Newco”). Each of Emerson and Newco are referred to as a
“Party,” and collectively, as the “Parties.”

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

WHEREAS, the Parties, Aspen Technology, Inc., EMR Worldwide Inc. and Emersub CXI, Inc. have entered into a Transaction Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of
October 10, 2021, as amended on March [+], 2022 and [*], 2022 (as may be further amended from time to time, the “Transaction Agreement”);

WHEREAS, capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Transaction Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Transaction Agreement, Emerson and Newco have agreed to enter into this Agreement on the Closing Date in order to provide for the
provision of certain transitional services by Emerson to Newco and by Newco to Emerson (each of Emerson and Newco in its capacity as the recipient of services, the
“Recipient” and each of Emerson and Newco in its capacity as the provider of services, the “Provider”) in connection with the contribution of the Echo Business by Emerson
to Newco, upon the terms and subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants, conditions, and agreements hereinafter expressed, the Parties agree as follows:

1.Services to be Provided.

(a) During the Transition Period (as defined below) (or such shorter periods as may be specified in Schedule [A-1], Schedule [A-2] and Schedule [B]', respectively,
attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein (each, a “TSA Schedule” and together, the “TSA Schedules”) with respect to any Services), (i) Emerson shall
provide (or cause to be provided by an Affiliate or a third-party provider (each, a “Subcontractor”)) to Newco the services described on Schedule [A-1] and
Schedule [A-2] (collectively, and together with the Emerson Facility Services (as defined below), the “Emerson Services”) and (ii) Newco shall provide (or cause
to be provided by an Affiliate or a Subcontractor) to Emerson the services described on Schedule [B] (the “Newco Services” and together with the Emerson
Services, or either of the Newco Services or Emerson Services, as the context requires, the “Services”); provided, however, that, without the Recipient’s prior
written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, the Provider shall not cause a third-party Subcontractor to provide any Service if doing so
would result in an increase in the aggregate Service Charges and out-of-pocket costs for such Service of more than ten percent (10%) compared to the Service
Charges and out-of-pocket costs applicable to such Service as set forth in the applicable TSA Schedule; provided, further, that the Provider shall remain ultimately
responsible for ensuring that the obligations set forth in this Agreement are satisfied with respect to any Service provided by any Subcontractor. The Services shall
only be made available for, and the Recipient shall only be entitled to utilize the Services for, the benefit of the operation of, in the case Newco is the Recipient, the
Echo Business and natural extensions or evolutions thereof and, in the case Emerson the Recipient, the businesses of Emerson and the Emerson Retained
Subsidiaries (the “Emerson Business”) and natural extensions or evolutions thereof. Services will not be provided in any location or jurisdiction to the extent the
provision of any or all of the Services to an unrelated legal entity or business is illegal; provided,




however, that in any such event, the Provider as promptly as commercially practicable shall notify the Recipient, and the Parties shall use their commercially
reasonable efforts to develop, at the Recipient’s

e to Draft: Prior to the Closing, Emerson and Aspen shall cooperate in good faith to finalize the TSA Schedules reflecting Service Charges generally reflecting Provider’s actual costs and the exhibits to the Transition
Services Agreement as soon as reasonably practicable after the signing of the Transaction Agreement.
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reasonable cost and expense (subject to the Recipient’s prior written approval), a work-around arrangement that is reasonably acceptable to the Recipient; provided,
further, that in any such event, the Provider as promptly as commercially practicable shall use commercially reasonable efforts to perform, at the Recipient’s
reasonable cost and expense (subject to the Recipient’s prior written approval), such Services through alternative means in accordance with Applicable Laws, and if
not practicable, the Parties shall use commercially reasonable efforts, at the Recipient’s reasonable cost and expense (subject to the Recipient’s prior written
approval), to minimize the impact, and negotiate in good faith to provide, at the Recipient’s reasonable cost and expense (subject to the Recipient’s prior written
approval), a commercially reasonable alternative arrangement reasonably acceptable to the Recipient. The standard for such Services shall be as set forth in Section

(b) If a service (i) was provided by Emerson or an Emerson Retained Subsidiary (or a third party on its or their behalf) to the Echo Business during the twelve (12)
months prior to the Closing, (ii) cannot reasonably be obtained by Newco from a third party and (iii) is not included in Schedule [+] (Excluded Services) (any such
service, an “Omitted Service”), Newco may submit a written notice describing such service to Emerson within six (6) months after the Effective Date (or, for
Omitted Services that are performed on a quarterly, annual or other cyclical basis, within sixty (60) days after such Omitted Service would have been provided
under the first of such cycle to occur following the Effective Date). Promptly following receipt of such written notice, Emerson shall commence providing such
Omitted Service under the terms of this Agreement, such Omitted Service shall be promptly documented in writing by the Parties as an amendment to the
applicable TSA Schedule and such Omitted Service shall be included in the Services. For the avoidance of doubt, the Service Charges applicable to any Omitted
Service will be reasonably determined consistent with the methodology used to determine the Service Charges for similar Services.

(c) The Provider will notify the Recipient and in good faith use reasonable efforts to obtain any Consents from any third party that may be required in connection with
the performance of the Provider’s obligations hereunder, including the provision of the Services, in each case, with each Party bearing fifty percent (50%) of any
out-of-pocket third-party costs and expenses associated with obtaining the applicable Consents; provided that in the event any necessary Consents cannot be
obtained by the Provider despite its commercially reasonable efforts, the Provider as promptly as commercially practicable shall inform the Recipient, and the
Parties shall develop and implement a commercially reasonable alternative arrangement reasonably acceptable to the Recipient, with each Party bearing fifty
percent (50%) of any set-up costs for such arrangement.

(d) Management of, and control over, the provision of the Services provided hereunder (including the determination or designation at any time of the equipment,
employees and other resources of the Provider, its Affiliates or any Subcontractor to be used in connection with the provision of such Services) shall reside solely
with the Provider. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as provided in the TSA Schedules, all labor matters relating to any employees of the
Provider, its Affiliates and any Subcontractor shall be within the exclusive control of such entity, and the Recipient shall not have any rights with respect to such
matters. Except as provided in the TSA Schedules, the Provider shall be solely responsible for the payment of all salary and benefits and all Taxes (including
income tax, social security taxes, unemployment compensation, workers’ compensation tax, other employment taxes or withholdings) and premiums and
remittances with respect to employees used to provide any Services hereunder.

(e) All procedures, methods, systems, strategies, tools, equipment, facilities and other resources used by the Provider, its Affiliates, or any Subcontractor in connection
with the provision of Services (other than any such items being the property of the Recipient that are provided by the Recipient to the Provider to facilitate the
Provider’s provision of the Services to the Recipient) hereunder shall remain the property of the Provider, its Affiliates or such Subcontractor and shall at all times
be under the sole direction and control of the Provider, its Affiliates or such Subcontractor. The Recipient may not resell, license the use of or otherwise permit the
use by others of any Services, except with the prior written consent of the Provider. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all property, including all Intellectual Property,
materials, equipment, samples, third-party licenses (or Intellectual Property licensed thereunder), software, hardware, servers and Confidential Information, (i)
disclosed or provided by the Recipient to
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the Provider, its Affiliates or Subcontractors pursuant to this Agreement, together with Intellectual Property or data output generated by or on behalf of the Provider
for the Recipient in the performance of the Services to the extent exclusively relating to, with respect to Newco in its capacity as the Recipient, the Echo Business,
and with respect to Emerson in its capacity as the Recipient, the Emerson Business, as conducted during the Transition Period, is and shall remain the exclusive
property of the Recipient or its Affiliates and its suppliers, as applicable, and (ii) (x) disclosed or provided by Newco in its capacity as the Recipient to Emerson, its
Affiliates or Subcontractors pursuant to this Agreement to the extent relating to the Emerson Business or otherwise not exclusively relating to the Echo Business or
(y) disclosed or provided by Emerson to Newco in its capacity as the Recipient, its Affiliates or Subcontractors pursuant to this Agreement, other than Intellectual
Property generated by or on behalf of Emerson for Newco in its capacity as the Recipient in the performance of the Services to the extent exclusively relating to the
Echo Business as conducted during the Transition Period, in each case, is and shall remain the exclusive property of Emerson or its Affiliates and its suppliers, as
applicable. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, each Party hereby grants to the other Party a non-exclusive, worldwide, fully paid-up, royalty-free, non-
transferable (except in accordance with Section 18(g)) license, without the right to sublicense (except as necessary to receive the Services or to subcontract the
provision of Services in accordance with Section 1(a)), solely during the Transition Period, to use, reproduce, modify, create derivative works of, perform, display,
transmit and otherwise exploit any Intellectual Property (other than Trademarks) provided pursuant to this Agreement solely to perform or receive the Services, as
applicable.

(f) EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN SECTION I(e), NO LICENSES OR ANY OTHER RIGHT, TITLE OR INTEREST IN OR TO ANY
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARE GRANTED TO EITHER PARTY OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER BY
IMPLICATION, ESTOPPEL, EXHAUSTION OR OTHERWISE, AND EACH PARTY RETAINS AND RESERVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT, TITLE AND
INTEREST NOT EXPRESSLY GRANTED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

2. Consideration for Services.

(a) The Recipient shall pay to the Provider the fees for each Service (or category of Services, as applicable) as set forth on the applicable TSA Schedule (including, for
the avoidance of doubt, as adjusted in connection with any extension pursuant to Section 9(a)) (collectively, the “Service Charges,” and each, a “Service
Charge”). During the Transition Period, the amount of a Service Charge for any Service (or category of Services, as applicable) shall not increase, except to the
extent such costs and amounts increase for, in the case Emerson is the Provider, the Emerson Business, and, in the case Newco is the Provider, the Echo Business,
using the same service at the same location or changes in actual compensation and benefits costs. Where Service Charges are calculated on a per headcount basis,
the Provider understands and agrees that headcount may fluctuate in the ordinary course of business; provided that, if the Recipient provides updates to the
applicable headcount no later than five (5) days before any calendar month of the Transition Period, the Provider shall adjust the applicable Service Charges
effective as of such calendar month. The Recipient will be charged for the then-current headcount for the invoiced period. Actual, documented out-of-pocket costs
paid to any third-party provider that is providing goods or services used by the Provider in providing the Services (e.g., license costs for software) will be an
incremental cost to the Recipient in addition to the Service Charges, and will be charged to the Recipient at the actual third-party cost allocated to the Services in a
manner consistent with past practice; provided, however, that the Recipient’s prior written approval shall be required with respect to any out-of-pocket costs
exceeding twenty five thousand dollars ($25,000). Notwithstanding the foregoing, for the avoidance of doubt, Emerson shall bear all costs and expenses associated
with building or setting up the Transition Environment (as described in Schedule [A-1]) and the Service Charges to be paid by Newco in its capacity as the
Recipient shall reflect the costs and expenses associated with Newco’s connection to and Echo’s operation of the Transition Environment in connection with the
provision and receipt of the Services.




(b) The Provider shall deliver invoices to the Recipient on a monthly basis reflecting charges for the preceding month. the Provider agrees to afford the Recipient, upon
reasonable notice, access to such information, records and documentation of the Provider as the Recipient may reasonably request in order to verify any invoices
and charges for Services hereunder or additional out-of-pocket costs as set forth in Section 2(a).

(c) The Recipient shall pay the amount (other than amounts it disputes in good faith) of such invoice in U.S. dollars by wire transfer to the Provider within thirty (30)
days of the date of receipt of such invoice to the account specified by the Provider and payment of the disputed amount (if and to the extent required) shall be made
promptly after resolution of such dispute in accordance with this Section 2(c); provided that, at the Provider’s option, with respect to Services rendered outside the
United States, payments may be required to be made in local currency, subject to the Recipient’s consent (not to be unreasonably withheld). If the Recipient fails to
pay such amount by such date, the Recipient shall be obligated to pay to the Provider, in addition to the amount due, interest at the prime rate as published in The
Wall Street Journal, Eastern Edition in effect on such date, compounded monthly, accruing from the date the payment was due through the date of actual payment.
If the Recipient disputes in good faith the amount reflected on any invoice, the Recipient shall promptly, but in any event within sixty (60) days of the date of
receipt of such invoice, specify in writing the portion that it disputes and the basis for that dispute. If the Recipient has disputed an amount in connection with the
payment of an invoice in accordance with the foregoing, or if the Recipient provides written notice to the Provider challenging whether the Service Charges set
forth on an invoice rendered by the Provider pursuant to Section 2(b) accurately reflect the Services provided hereunder within sixty (60) days of the receipt of such
invoice, then, in either case, the Parties shall comply with the following process: (i) the appropriate representatives from the finance divisions of the Parties shall
promptly meet to review and attempt to resolve the matter; (ii) if the matter is still not resolved, then the Service Coordinators (as defined below) of the Parties
shall meet and shall use reasonable efforts to resolve the dispute; and (iii) if the matter is still not resolved within ten (10) days of referral to the Service
Coordinator, then the Parties shall undertake the procedures set forth in Section 18(b) hereof.

(d) Except as set forth in Section 2(c), the Recipient shall pay the full amount of the Service Charges and shall not set-off, counterclaim or otherwise withhold any
amount owed to the Provider under this Agreement on account of any obligation owed by the Provider to the Recipient that has not been finally adjudicated, settled
or otherwise agreed upon by the Parties in writing.

(e) Incremental to any other payments, fees or charges in this Agreement, the Recipient shall pay any Taxes imposed on, or payable with respect to, the provision of
Services, including all applicable sales, use, value added and similar Taxes, but excluding Taxes based on the Provider’s net income or assets.

(f) All amounts payable under this Agreement shall be paid free and clear of all deductions or withholdings unless the deduction or withholding is required by
Applicable Law. If deduction or withholding is required by Applicable Law on the payment of any amount under this Agreement, the amount of the payment due
from the Party required to make such payment shall be increased to an amount which, after any withholding or deduction, leaves an amount equal to the payment
which would have been due if no such deduction or withholding were required. The Recipient shall withhold (or cause to be withheld) such taxes, levies or charges
and pay (or cause to be paid) such withheld amounts over to the applicable taxing authority in accordance with the requirements of Applicable Law and provide the
Provider with an official receipt confirming payment. The Provider shall, prior to the date of any payment to be made pursuant to this Agreement, at the request of
the Recipient, use commercially reasonable efforts to provide the Recipient with any certificate or other documentary evidence (i) required by any Tax Law or (ii)
which the Provider is entitled by any Tax Law to provide in order to reduce the amount of any Taxes that may be deducted or withheld from such payment and the
Recipient agrees to accept and act in reliance on any such duly and properly executed or other applicable documentary evidence. Each Party shall reasonably
cooperate and use commercially reasonable efforts to minimize or eliminate any withholding Tax liability.

andard for Service. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or the TSA Schedules, the Provider agrees to perform each Service such that the nature, quality, standard of
care, level of priority and the service level at which such Service is performed are not materially less than the nature, quality, standard of
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care, level of priority and service level at which substantially the same service was performed by or on behalf of, in the case Emerson is the Provider, to the Echo
Business, and in the case Newco is the Provider, Newco or the Emerson Contributed Subsidiaries to the Emerson Business, during the twelve (12) months prior to the
Closing Date (or, if not so previously provided, then substantially the same as that applicable to similar services provided by, in the case Emerson is the Provider, Emerson
to the Emerson Retained Subsidiaries, and in the case Newco is the Provider, by Newco to its Subsidiaries). Without limiting the foregoing, in the event there is any
restriction on the Provider under an existing contract with a third party that would restrict the nature, quality or standard of care applicable to delivery of a Service to be
provided by the Provider to the Recipient, the Provider shall promptly provide notice to the Recipient of such restriction and the Parties shall reasonably cooperate in good
faith to mutually agree on alternative arrangements or procedures to allow the Provider to provide such Service in a manner as close as possible to the standards described
in this Section 3. The Provider shall not be responsible for any inability to provide a Service or any delay in doing so to the extent that such inability or delay is caused by
the failure of the Recipient to timely provide the information, access or other cooperation necessary for the Provider to provide such Service. Without limiting the
Provider’s obligation to provide the Services in accordance with the standards set forth in, and subject to, this Section 3, the Provider may supplement, modify, substitute
or otherwise alter any of the Services from time to time in a manner that is generally consistent with supplements, modifications, substitutions or alterations made for
similar services provided or otherwise made available by the Provider; provided that no such alteration adversely affects, in the case Emerson is the Provider, the Echo
Business or natural expansions or extensions thereof, and in the case Newco is the Provider, the Emerson Business or natural expansions or extensions thereof, in any
material respect. The Recipient may request to modify the terms and conditions relating to the performance of a previously agreed-upon Service in order to resolve issues
that were not apparent as of the Effective Date, which may include, among other things, new procedures or processes for providing such Service (a “Service
Modification”). In each such case, the Service Coordinators shall discuss such potential changes and determine possible scope impact on the Services. If the Service
Modification is a change to the Service that does not materially and adversely affect the Provider’s costs or ability to provide, or cause to be provided, such Service, the
Provider shall promptly, at the Recipient’s reasonable cost and expense, implement such Service Modification. In the event the Recipient desires a Service Modification
that would materially and adversely affect the Provider’s costs or ability to provide, or cause to be provided, the applicable Service, the Provider shall consider approving
such Service Modifications in good faith, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

4. Cooperation for Statutory and Tax Filings. Newco undertakes and agrees to cooperate in accordance with the standard for Services described in Section 3 to enable
Emerson to complete in a timely manner any and all statutory and Tax filings required to be filed by Emerson and/or its Affiliates pursuant to the Transaction Agreement
that include any information related to the Echo Business. Newco will provide and, as applicable, cause its employees and its Affiliates and their employees to provide,
all such reasonable cooperation to Emerson, its Affiliates and their respective representatives with respect to such filings as is reasonably requested, including preparing
or causing to be prepared (to the extent consistent with past practices) and furnishing or causing to be furnished records, information, work papers, reports and other
documents as requested by Emerson, its Affiliates or their respective representatives and causing Continuing Echo Business Employees who possess relevant knowledge
to make themselves available for consultation with respect to the foregoing; provided that notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4, Newco will only

be obligated to cause any Person to cooperate with Emerson pursuant to this Section 4 if and for so long as Newco is capable of directing the actions of such Person.

5. Migration Assistance. Within sixty (60) days after the date hereof, the Parties shall jointly develop a detailed plan for (a) separating and conveying any assets (including
data) held by Emerson or its Affiliates that are to be, or that have been, assigned to Newco, in each case, pursuant to the Transaction Agreement and (b) migrating the
Services and all related information and customer accounts, to the Recipient or its designee in an efficient, low-risk and low-disruption manner to both Parties (such plan,
as mutually agreed to by the Parties, the “Migration Plan”). Each Party shall perform all of its respective obligations in the Migration Plan. Such plan shall include, at a
minimum, key milestones and dependencies required by each Party to complete its own obligations.



6. Disaster Recovery & Business Continuity. During the Transition Period, Emerson shall implement and maintain (i) information technology security requirements and
policies and (ii) disaster recovery and other business continuity systems and processes, in the case Emerson is the Provider, that are substantially the same as Emerson
maintains for the Emerson Retained Subsidiaries and, in the case Newco is the Provider, that are substantially the same as Newco maintains for its Subsidiaries.

7. Force Majeure. No Party shall be responsible for a delay in delivery of or any failure to perform any Service if prohibited by Applicable Law or caused by an act of god or
public enemy, war, terrorism, cyber-attack, government acts or regulations, fire, flood, embargo, quarantine, pandemic, epidemic, unusually severe weather or other
cause similar to the foregoing, in each case which is beyond its reasonable control (each, a “Force Majeure Event”); provided, however, that such Party notifies the
other Party as soon as reasonably practicable, in writing, upon learning of the occurrence of the Force Majeure Event. Subject to compliance with the foregoing
provision, a Party’s obligations hereunder (except its payment obligations in respect of Services already provided) shall be postponed for such time as its performance is
suspended or delayed on account of the Force Majeure Event, and upon the cessation of the Force Majeure Event, such Party will use commercially reasonable efforts to
resume its performance hereunder.

8. Confidential and Proprietary Information and Rights. Newco and Emerson each acknowledge that any information provided to or coming into the possession of the other
pursuant to this Agreement will be governed by the confidentiality provisions of the Stockholders Agreement, mutatis mutandis (as applicable hereto, the
“Confidentiality Obligations”); provided, however, that notwithstanding any contrary provisions of the confidentiality provisions of the Stockholders Agreement, the
Confidentiality Obligations of the Parties shall remain in effect for five (5) years after the Closing Date, except that the Confidentiality Obligations of the Parties with
respect to the protection of confidential information that is source code or that otherwise constitutes or is treated as of the Closing by the disclosing Party as a trade secret
shall remain in effect perpetually.

9. Transition Period and Termination.

(a) The term of this Agreement (the “Transition Period”) shall commence on the Closing Date and continue with respect to each of the Services for the term thereof
(the “Service Term”), which Service Term shall, unless otherwise agreed to by Emerson and Newco in any TSA Schedule, terminate twelve months following the
Closing Date; provided that except as otherwise specified on any TSA Schedule, the Recipient may, upon written notice prior to the expiration of the applicable
Service Term, extend any Service Term by up to an additional six (6) months (i.e., for any twelve (12)-month Service Term, up to eighteen (18) months from the
Effective Date) at the same Service Charges applicable to the initial Service Term (such Services Charge, as adjusted in accordance with Section 2(a), the “Base
Charge”), and for up to a second additional six (6) month period (i.e., for any twelve (12)-month Service Term, up to twenty-four (24) months from the Effective
Date) at Services Charges reflecting: (i) the Base Charge for the nineteenth (19th) month after the Effective Date, (ii) one hundred and ten percent (110%) of the
Base Charge for the twentieth (20th) month after the Effective Date, (iii) one hundred and eleven percent (111%) of the Base Charge for the twenty-first (21st)
month after the Effective Date, (iv) one hundred and twelve percent (112%) of the Base Charge for the twenty-second (22nd) month after the Effective Date, (v)
one hundred and fourteen percent (114%) of the Base Charge for the twenty-third (23rd) month after the Effective Date and (vi) one hundred and fifteen percent
(115%) in the twenty-fourth (24th) month after the Effective Date; provided, further, that except as otherwise specified on any TSA Schedule, (i) the Recipient may
terminate one or more of the Services it receives at any time and for any reason on not less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Provider and (ii) both
Parties may terminate this Agreement with respect to one or more Services immediately upon mutual agreement; provided, further, that the termination date of the
Emerson Facility Services shall be as described in Section 12(b) hereof.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement by written notice to the other Party in the event that the other
Party materially breaches this Agreement and such breach remains uncured for thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from the non-breaching Party.



(c) Upon the effective date of termination of any Service pursuant to this Agreement, the Provider will have no further obligation to provide the terminated Service,
and the Recipient will have no obligation to pay any future Service Charges relating to any such Service; provided that the Recipient shall remain obligated to the
Provider for the Service Charges and any other fees, costs and expenses owed and payable in accordance with the terms of this Agreement in respect of Services
provided prior to the effective date of termination. Upon the effective date of termination of any Service pursuant to this Agreement, the Provider shall reduce for
the next monthly billing period the amount of the Service Charge for the category of Services in which the terminated Service was included (such reduction to
reflect the elimination of all costs incurred in connection with the terminated Service to the extent the same are not required to provide other Services to the
Recipient), and, upon request of the Recipient, the Provider shall provide the Recipient with documentation and/or information regarding the calculation of the
amount of the reduction. In connection with termination of any Service, the provisions of this Agreement not relating solely to such terminated Service shall
survive any such termination. The termination of any license of any Emerson Facility pursuant to this Agreement will be treated in a corresponding manner under
this Section 9(c).

(d) The failure of either Party to terminate this Agreement for breach of any term or condition shall not constitute a waiver of such breach and shall not affect such
Party’s right to terminate this Agreement by reason of subsequent breaches of the same or other terms or conditions.

(e) Any termination of this Agreement with respect to any one or more Services shall not terminate this Agreement with respect to any other Service then being
provided pursuant to this Agreement, except as otherwise specified on the applicable TSA Schedule.

10. Limitation of Liability; Exclusion of Warranties.

(a) Limitation of Liability. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, NO PARTY HERETO SHALL BE LIABLE FOR
(I) ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT THE
OTHER PARTY IS REQUIRED TO PAY ANY SUCH AMOUNTS TO A THIRD PARTY, IN EACH CASE ARISING FROM ANY CLAIM RELATING TO THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE SERVICES PROVIDED HEREUNDER (INCLUDING DELIVERABLES ASSOCIATED THEREWITH), INCLUDING
PERFORMANCE OR FAILURE TO PERFORM UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, OR (II) THE FURNISHING, PERFORMANCE, OR USE OF ANY GOODS OR
SERVICES SOLD OR PERFORMED PURSUANT HERETO, WHETHER BASED UPON AN ACTION OR CLAIM IN CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING
NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY), BREACH OF WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, EXCEPT IN THE CASE OF THIS CLAUSE (II) FOR THE
WILLFUL BREACH, GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT OF SUCH PARTY OR ITS AFFILIATES OR REPRESENTATIVES.
FURTHER, THE LIABILITY OF EMERSON TO NEWCO FOR ANY LOSS OR DAMAGE ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT SHALL
NOT EXCEED FIVE (5) TIMES THE TOTAL AMOUNT BILLED OR BILLABLE TO NEWCO IN ITS CAPACITY AS RECIPIENT UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT, AND THE LIABILITY OF NEWCO TO EMERSON FOR ANY LOSS OR DAMAGE ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT
SHALL NOT EXCEED FIVE (5) TIMES THE TOTAL AMOUNT BILLED OR BILLABLE TO EMERSON IN ITS CAPACITY AS RECIPIENT UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT.

(b) Obligation to Correct. Without limiting any rights or remedies of the Recipient, in the event of any breach of this Agreement by the Provider with respect to any
material error or defect in the provision of any individual Service, the Provider shall promptly, after the Provider’s Service Coordinator becomes aware of such
error or defect, notify the Recipient and, at the Recipient’s request, correct such error or defect or re-perform such Service in a timely manner as promptly as
practical after the Recipient’s request at the expense of the Provider.

(c) Exclusion of Warranties. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TSA SCHEDULES, (A) THE SERVICES, (B) THE
LICENSES IN SECTION 1(e) AND (C) THE



RIGHTS GRANTED HEREUNDER ARE, IN EACH CASE, PROVIDED AND GRANTED “AS-IS” WITH NO OTHER WARRANTIES, AND EMERSON
AND NEWCO EACH EXPRESSLY




DISCLAIMS ANY OTHER WARRANTIES UNDER OR ARISING AS A RESULT OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR
STATUTORY, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, NON-
INFRINGEMENT OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WHATSOEVER; PROVIDED, THAT NEITHER THIS DISCLAIMER NOR ANY OTHER PROVISION OF
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL IN ANY WAY LIMIT ANY REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF ANY PERSON UNDER THE TRANSACTION
AGREEMENT, STOCKHOLDERS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER ANCILLARY AGREEMENT IN EACH CASE RELATED THERETO.

11. Access to Records and Properties. The Recipient shall, during normal business hours and with reasonable prior notice, provide the Provider with access to its books and
records pertaining to in the case Newco is the Recipient, the Echo Business, and in the case Emerson is the Recipient, the Emerson Business, solely for the purposes of
the Provider’s provision of the Services and solely to the extent necessary for the Provider to provide the Services. The Recipient shall also provide the Provider with
physical access to computer and communications equipment at the applicable facilities in order to maintain or service such equipment and associated software, including
such access for a reasonable time following the termination of this Agreement, in each case, to the extent reasonably necessary for the provision of the Services.

12. Access to Emerson Facilities. Emerson, in its capacity as the Provider, hereby grants to Newco or an Affiliate thereof a limited right to use and access premises at any
facility identified as an “Emerson Facility” on Schedule [A-1] and, without additional charge, to continue to use furniture and equipment at any such facility (an
“Emerson Facility”) for substantially the same purposes as used by the Echo Business in the twelve (12) months prior to the Effective Date (all such rights, the
“Emerson Facility Services”). Schedule [A-1] sets forth a description of each Emerson Facility and all costs as to which Newco or an Affiliate is required to reimburse
Emerson on a proportionate basis based on the metric used to allocate such costs during the twelve (12) months prior to the Effective Date (e.g., headcount or rentable
square feet occupied by Newco or its Affiliates). At each Emerson Facility, Emerson shall, in addition to providing access to and the right to use such facility, provide to
the personnel of Newco and its Affiliates the facility-related ancillary services reasonably necessary to support Newco’s office work policies with respect to in-office
attendance, but in any event, not less than the services provided to the Echo Business during the twelve (12) months prior to the Closing at the Emerson Facility (e.g.,
reception, general maintenance and janitorial services, heat and air-conditioning and use of the mailroom) and Emerson shall provide, or cause to be provided each
Emerson Facility subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) Newco shall, and shall cause its Affiliates to, permit only Newco and its Affiliates’ respective authorized personnel, contractors, invitees or licensees to use the
Emerson Facility, except as otherwise permitted by Emerson in writing;

(b) Newco shall, and shall cause its Affiliates and their respective personnel, contractors, invitees or licensees to, vacate the Emerson Facility at or prior to the earliest
of (x) the expiration date of the lease relating to the Emerson Facility as set forth in Schedule [A-1], (y) the expiration or termination of this Agreement and (z)

the date set forth in Schedule [A-1], unless provided in Schedule [A-1] with respect to such space?, and upon such expiration, Newco or its Affiliate shall
deliver over to Emerson any portion of the Emerson Facility utilized by Newco or its Affiliates in substantially the same repair and condition as existed on the

Effective Date, ordinary wear and tear and damage by casualty or condemnation excepted; provided, however, that in the event that a third-party lease for an
Emerson Facility specifies otherwise, the Party vacating such Emerson Facility shall deliver over such Facility in such repair and condition (taking into account the
date that Newco began its occupation of such Emerson Facility such that Newco shall only bear any costs or expenses associated with delivering over such Facility
in substantially the same repair and condition as existing on the Effective Date and Emerson shall bear all incremental costs and expenses reasonably incurred by
Neweco in delivering over such Facility in the repair and condition as set forth in the third-party lease) as set forth in the third-party lease; provided, further, that
in the event that Newco shall fail to deliver over such Emerson

2 Note to Draft: Parties to discuss entering into a lease or sublease for certain spaces where a longer term arrangement may be contemplated.



Facility in such repair and condition as required by this Agreement and/or a third-party lease, Emerson may undertake reasonable actions to establish such
condition and repair, and shall be reimbursed for its reasonable costs associated with delivering over such Facility in substantially the same repair and condition as
existing on the Effective Date.

(c) Newco agrees that Newco or its Affiliates shall not make and shall cause their respective personnel, contractors, invitees and licensees to refrain from making, any

alterations or improvements to any Emerson Facility, except as otherwise permitted by Emerson in writing; provided, however, that Newco or its Affiliates shall
not require Emerson consent in connection with non-structural cosmetic changes or other immaterial alterations or improvements.

(d) Emerson and its Affiliates, and the landlord in respect of the third-party lease in which the applicable Emerson Facility is located, shall have (i) such access as
provided in the applicable lease and (ii) otherwise reasonable access to Newco’s and its Affiliates’ space at the Emerson Facility from time to time as reasonably
necessary in accordance with past practice;

(e) Newco agrees to maintain, and to cause its Affiliates to maintain, commercially appropriate and customary levels (in no event less than what is required by the
landlord of the tenant under the relevant third-party lease) of property and liability insurance in respect of the premises occupied in each Emerson Facility and the
activities conducted thereon; provided for any Emerson Facility, to the extent Newco reimburses Emerson for an allocable share of property insurance costs in
respect of a property insurance policy for such Emerson Facility, Newco shall not be required to maintain a separate policy of property insurance.

(f) Newco shall, and shall cause its Affiliates and their respective personnel, contractors, invitees and licensees to, comply with (i) all Applicable Laws relating to their
use or occupation of any Emerson Facility including those relating to environmental, health and workplace safety matters, (ii) Emerson’s generally applicable site
rules, regulations, policies and procedures (if any) which have been provided in writing to Newco as of the Effective Date and (iii) any applicable requirements of
such third-party lease governing any Emerson Facility which have been provided to Newco in writing as of the Effective Date; and

(g) the rights granted in this Section 12 shall be in the nature of a limited right and shall not create a leasehold or other estate or possessory right in any of Newco or
its Affiliates or their respective representatives, contractors, invitees or licensees, with respect to any Emerson Facility and, except as expressly provided herein,
shall not include any right of sub-license or sub-leasehold to any third party.

(h) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, where required by local law or otherwise beneficial to the Parties, the provision of Emerson Facility Services or
access to an Emerson Facility may be separately documented in a sublease or other document (as reasonably agreed by the Parties) with material terms
substantively consistent with those described in this Agreement (with such modifications as are reasonably required to comply with local law requirements).

13. Reports. The Provider shall cause to be provided to the Recipient in connection with the Services being provided by the Provider (in accordance with Section 3 hereof) the
same reports (whether generated internally or by any third party) that were provided in the ordinary course prior to the Effective Date in the same form as provided in the
ordinary course prior to the Effective Date and at the same frequency, to the extent such report directly relates or directly pertains to a Service and the costs and expenses
for the provision of such reports shall be included in the corresponding Service Charge. Upon written request by the Recipient, the Provider shall provide (consistent
with the standards set forth in Section 3 hereof), at the Recipient’s reasonable cost and expense, any reports necessary for the Recipient or its Affiliates to satisfy any
filing deadlines with Governmental Authorities.

14. Record-Keeping. The Provider shall maintain complete and accurate records of the Services performed by or on behalf of the Provider and its Affiliates under this
Agreement during the Transition Period and for one (1) year following the Transition Period. Such records may be used by the Provider’s Service Coordinator to resolve
any dispute pursuant to Section 18(b).



15. Controls and Compliance. The Provider will operate any IT control processes in accordance with the Provider’s internal control standards. If a material IT control
deficiency affecting the Services is identified in



the normal course of business operations for a previously working internal control administered by the Provider, Emerson and Newco will reasonably cooperate in good
faith to determine the root cause and potential remediation of the deficiency, with any such remediation to be at the Provider’s reasonable cost and expense.

16. Covenants. Emerson and Newco will not, and will use reasonable efforts to ensure that their respective employees, officers, directors, Affiliates and agents do not, make
any use of or attempt to gain access to any part of the other Party’s business systems and communications networks or to any data or information of the other Party or its
Affiliates not specifically made available to that Party under this Agreement. Emerson and Newco shall not introduce (i) any code, program, or script (devices) that, upon
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the occurrence or the non-occurrence of any event, will disable any system or application; (ii) to or through the other Party’s “network,” any worm, virus, trap door, back
door or any other contaminant or disabling devices; or (iii) any form of breach of security, data corruption or interruption into the other Party’s “network.” If a Party has
violated this covenant, then in addition to any rights and remedies (including damages) to which the non-breaching Party or its Affiliates may be entitled at law or in
equity, the breaching Party will, to the non-breaching Party’s reasonable satisfaction, promptly take all commercially reasonable action to implement all necessary
procedures to prevent the reoccurrence of any such violation; failing which, the non-breaching Party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written notice
(such notice to describe the breach in reasonable detail); provided, however, that the breaching Party shall have the opportunity to cure during the thirty (30)-day
notice period, to the non-breaching Party’s reasonable satisfaction, any such violation.

17. Indemnification. Each Party (the “Indemnitor”) shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party and its Affiliates, and its and their respective directors, officers,
agents, employees, successors and assigns (the “Indemnitee”) against, any Damages arising from or relating to third-party claims arising from or relating to the gross
negligence, willful misconduct or fraud of the Indemnitor or any of its Affiliates in connection with this Agreement. This Section 17 shall not apply with respect to Taxes
other than any Taxes that represent Damages arising from any non-Tax claim. Section 12.03 (Third-Party Claim Procedures) of the Transaction Agreement shall apply,
mutatis mutandis, to any indemnification hereunder.

18. General Provisions.

(a) Notice. All notices, requests and other communications to any Party shall be in writing (including facsimile transmission and electronic mail (“email”) transmission, so
long as a receipt of such email is requested and received) and shall be given to the address, facsimile number or email address specified for notices in Section 13.01 of
the Transaction Agreement or to such other address or facsimile number as such Party may hereafter specify for the purpose by notice to the other Party. All such
notices, requests and other communications shall be deemed received on the date of receipt by the recipient thereof if received prior to 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on a
business day in the place of receipt. Otherwise, any such notice, request or communication shall be deemed to have been received on the next succeeding business day
in the place of receipt.

(b) Dispute Resolution. Newco, on the one hand, and Emerson, on the other hand, shall by written notice to the other, appoint respective principal points of contact (each, a
“Service Coordinator”) who shall be responsible for the day-to-day implementation or monitoring (as applicable) of the Services, including attempted resolution of
any issues that may arise during the performance of the Parties’ obligations under this Agreement. In addition, Emerson will appoint an executive sponsor (the
“Emerson Executive Sponsor”) by written notice to Newco, and Newco will appoint an executive sponsor (the “Newco Executive Sponsor”) by written notice to
Emerson. In the event that the Service Coordinators are unable to resolve any issues regarding the performance of the Services hereunder after a period of ten (10)
days (the “Disputed Issues”), the Disputed Issues may be referred to a separation management committee (the “Separation Management Committee”), which shall
be at least four (4) persons and solely comprised of an equal number of members of Emerson’s and Newco’s management teams responsible for acquisition
integration. If the Separation Management Committee is unable to reach resolution on any Disputed Issues after a period of seven (7) days, such Disputed Issues shall
be submitted to the Emerson Executive Sponsor and Newco Executive Sponsor for resolution within seven (7) days and any unresolved disputes after such seven (7)
day period, the Parties may pursue an Action in accordance with Section 18(1); provided, however, that nothing herein
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shall prevent or limit either Party’s right to seek temporary, preliminary or permanent equitable, including injunctive, relief. Without limiting the foregoing, any
resolution of such Disputed Issues agreed to in writing by the Emerson Executive Sponsor and the Newco Executive Sponsor shall be considered final and binding
upon the Parties. For the avoidance of doubt, unless otherwise directed in writing by the Recipient, the Provider shall continue to provide all Services during the
pendency of any dispute hereunder. Unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the Parties, all communications relating to the Services shall be directed first, to the
Service Coordinators and second, to the Separation Management Committee. The initial Service Coordinators shall be set forth on Exhibit [A] attached hereto and the
Parties may replace their respective Service Coordinator(s) at any time by providing written notice to the other Party. Each Party may replace its members on the
Separation Management Committee at any time by providing written notice to the other Party, and each of Emerson and Newco may replace the Emerson Executive
Sponsor and the Newco Executive Sponsor, respectively, at any time by providing written notice to the other Party.

(c) Injunctive Relief. The Parties agree that irreparable damage would occur if any provision of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with the terms hereof and
that the Parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement or to enforce specifically the performance of the terms and
provisions hereof in any federal court located in the State of Delaware or any Delaware state court, in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or
in equity. Each Party further agrees to waive any requirement for the securing or posting of any bond in connection with such remedy.

(d) No Partnership, Joint-Venture Or Agency Created. The relationship of Emerson and Newco shall be that of independent contractors only. Nothing in this Agreement shall
be construed as making one Party a partner, joint-venturer, agent or legal representative of the other Party or otherwise as having the power or authority to bind the
other Party in any manner.

(e) Entire Agreement. The TSA Schedules are incorporated into this Agreement, and this Agreement together with the TSA Schedules, the Transaction Agreement and the
other Transaction Documents embody the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede
all prior agreements and understandings, both oral and written, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof. In the event of any conflict
between this Agreement and the Transaction Agreement, the terms of the Transaction Agreement shall control.

(f) Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction or other Governmental Authority to be invalid,
void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be
affected, impaired or invalidated so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to
any party. Upon such a determination, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the Parties as closely as
possible in an acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated hereby be consummated as originally contemplated to the fullest extent possible.

(g) Assignment; Binding Agreement. This Agreement and various rights and obligations arising hereunder shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties and
their successors and permitted assigns. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be transferred, delegated or assigned by
Emerson without the prior written consent of Newco, or by Newco without the prior written consent of Emerson (which consents shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed).

(h) Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto
were upon the same instrument. This Agreement shall become effective when each Party shall have received a counterpart hereof signed by the other Party. Until and
unless each Party has received a counterpart hereof signed by the other Party, this Agreement shall have no effect and no Party shall have any right or obligation
hereunder (whether by virtue of any other oral or written agreement or other communication).
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(i) Expenses. Except as otherwise provided herein, all costs and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement shall be paid by the Party incurring such cost or
expense.

(j) Headings; Interpretation. The section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation
of this Agreement. Each reference in this Agreement to a Section, Exhibit or Schedule, unless otherwise indicated, shall mean a Section of this Agreement or an
Exhibit or a Schedule attached to this Agreement, respectively. All Schedules annexed hereto or referred to herein are hereby incorporated in and made a part of this
Agreement as if set forth in full herein. References herein to “days,” unless otherwise indicated, are to consecutive calendar days. The words “hereof,” “herein,”
“hereto” and “hereunder” and words of like import used in this Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this
Agreement. The captions, headings and the division of this Agreement into Sections and other subdivisions herein are included for convenience of reference only and
shall be ignored in the construction or interpretation hereof. Any capitalized terms used in any Exhibit or Schedule but not otherwise defined therein, shall have the
meaning as defined in this Agreement. Any singular term in this Agreement shall be deemed to include the plural, and any plural term the singular. Whenever the
words “include,” “includes” or “including” are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation,” whether or not they are
in fact followed by those words or words of like import. “Writing,” “written” and comparable terms refer to printing, typing and other means of reproducing words
(including electronic media) in a visible form. References to any statute shall be deemed to refer to such statute as amended from time to time and to any rules or
regulations promulgated thereunder. References to any Contract are to that agreement or contract as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in
accordance with the terms hereof and thereof. References to any Person include the successors and permitted assigns of that Person. References from or through any
date mean, unless otherwise specified, from and including or through and including, respectively. References to “law,” “laws” or to a particular statute or law shall be
deemed also to include any Applicable Law. Both Parties have participated substantially in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement and agree that no ambiguity
herein should be construed against the draftsman. References to a “corporation” or “company” shall be construed so as to include any corporation, company, or other
body corporate, wherever and however incorporated or established.

(k) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the conflicts of law rules of
such state.

(1) Submission to Jurisdiction. The Parties agree that any Action seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any matter arising out of or in connection with, this
Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby (whether brought by either Party or any of its Affiliates or against either Party or any of its Affiliates) shall be
brought in the Delaware Chancery Court or, if such court shall not have jurisdiction, any federal court located in the State of Delaware or other Delaware state court,
and each of the Parties hereby irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction of such courts (and of the appropriate appellate courts therefrom) in any such Action and
irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection that it may now or hereafter have to the laying of the venue of any such Action in any such
court or that any such Action brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum. Process in any such Action may be served on any party anywhere
in the world, whether within or without the jurisdiction of any such court. Without limiting the foregoing, each Party agrees that service of process on such Party as

provided in Section 18(a) shall be deemed effective service of process on such Party.

(m) Amendment and Waiver. Any provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived only if such amendment or waiver is in writing and signed, in the case of an
amendment, by each of the Parties, or in the case of a waiver, by the Party against whom the waiver is to be effective. No failure or delay by either Party in exercising
any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof.

(n) Disclosure Generally. All TSA Schedules attached hereto are incorporated herein and expressly made part of this Agreement as though completely set forth herein. All
references to this Agreement herein or in any of the TSA Schedules attached hereto or in any agreement contemplated hereby shall be deemed to refer to this entire
Agreement, including all TSA Schedules.
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(o) No Third-Party Beneficiaries or Other Rights. No provision of this Agreement is intended to confer any rights, benefits, remedies, obligations or liabilities hereunder upon
any person other than the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.

(p) Personal Data. To the extent the Provider is processing any Personal Data (as defined in Exhibit [*]*) on behalf of the Recipient in connection with the provision of the
Services, the terms and conditions of the Data Protection Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit [¢] shall apply.

(q) Survival. The Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that the obligations of each Party set forth in Sections 1(e), 1(f), 4, 7. 8, 8, 10, 14, 16, 17 hereof and this
Section 18 shall survive any termination of this Agreement.

[Signature page follows]

3 Note to Draft: Exhibit to be agreed upon prior to Closing.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the day and year first above written.
Emerson Electric Co.

By:

Name:

Title:

Emersub CX, Inc.

By:

Name:

Title:

[Signature Page—Transition Services Agreement]
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Exhibit 31
Certification

I, S. L. Karsanbhai, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Emerson Electric Co.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

/s/ S. L. Karsanbhai

S. L. Karsanbhai

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Emerson Electric Co.

May 4, 2022




Certification

I, F. J. Dellaquila, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Emerson Electric Co.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

/sl F. J. Dellaquila

F. J. Dellaquila

Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Emerson Electric Co.

May 4, 2022




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(b) AND
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Emerson Electric Co. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2022, as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, S. L. Karsanbhai, certify, to the best of my knowledge, pursuant to Exchange Act
Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl S. L. Karsanbhai

S. L. Karsanbhai
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Emerson Electric Co.
May 4, 2022




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(b) AND
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Emerson Electric Co. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2022, as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, F. J. Dellaquila, certify, to the best of my knowledge, pursuant to Exchange Act Rule
13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl F. J. Dellaquila

F. J. Dellaquila

Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Emerson Electric Co.

May 4, 2022




